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12.0 Meetings 
a) Provincial General Managers Meeting: December 8, 2019 (Toronto) 
b) Conservation Ontario Council Meeting: December 9, 2019 (Toronto) 
c) Presentation to Frontenac County Council: January 15, 2020 (Glenburnie) 
d) RVCA Municipal Engagement Session: January 17, 2020 (Perth) 
e) Ad Hoc Policy Committee Meeting: January 22, 2020 (Manotick) 
f) Presentation to Lanark County Council, January 22, 2020 (Perth) 
g) Presentation to Drummond/North Elmsley Council: Jan 28, 2020 (Port Elmsley) 
h) Presentation to Leeds Grenville County Council: February 4, 2020 (Brockville) 
i) MECP Regional Consultation Session: February 7, 2020 (Colborne) 
j) City of Ottawa-CA General Managers Meeting: February 18, 2020 (Ottawa)  
k) Eastern General Managers Meeting: March 2, 2020 (Kingston) 
l) Audit Committee Meeting: March 10, 2020 (Manotick) 
m) Presentation to North Grenville Council: March 10, 2020 (Kemptville) 
n) RVCF Board of Directors Meeting: March 11, 2020 (Manotick) 
o) Mississippi-Rideau Source Protection Committee Meeting: April 6, 2020    
(Manotick) 

 
  Upcoming  

p) RVCA Board of Directors Meeting: May 28, 2020 (Manotick) 
 

13.0 Member Inquiries 
 
14.0 New Business 
 
15.0 Adjournment 

 



 
1.0  Administrative By-Law Amendment – Declared State of Emergency 
  Report #: 1-200423
         
To:  RVCA Board of Directors  
From:  Sommer Casgrain-Robertson 

General Manager 
Date:   April 16, 2020 
 
 
Recommendation:  
 
THAT the Board of Directors of the Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 
approves the attached amended Administrative By-Law to add “Section C 1B. 
Declared State of Emergency”; and  
 
THAT the Board of Directors of the Rideau Valley Conservation Authority defers 
the Annual General Meeting and Election of Chair and Vice-Chair to May 28, 2020. 
 
 
Purpose 
To approve the inclusion of “Section C 1B. Declared State of Emergency” in RVCA’s 
Administrative By-Law and defer RVCA’s Annual General Meeting and election of Chair 
and Vice-Chair to May. 
 
Background 
In 2017, the Conservation Authorities Act was amended to include Section 19 (1) which 
provided direction for conservation authorities to make by-laws for its administration. In 
September 2018, the RVCA adopted an Administrative By-Law that complied with 
Section 19(1) of the Act. 
 
Section C. 10 of RVCA’s Administrative By-Law states: 

Electronic Participation  

Members may participate in a meeting that is open to the public by telephonic or 
other electronic means that permits all participants to communicate adequately 
with each other during the meeting. A Member participating in a meeting 
electronically shall not be counted in determining quorum.  
 
A Member shall not participate electronically in a meeting that is closed to the 
public. 

 
 
 

 For Information 
 For Direction 
X For Adoption 

X Attachments – 41 
pages 

1



Section B. 5 of RVCA’s Administrative By-Law requires: 

Election of Chair and Vice-Chair 

The election of the Chair and Vice-Chair shall be held at the first meeting of the 
General Membership each year in accordance with the Authority’s Procedures for 
Election of Officers (Appendix 3). 

 
Analysis 
Under Ontario’s COVID-19 State of Emergency, conservation authorities have not been 
able to hold in-person Board meetings due to physical distancing requirements and 
bans on gatherings of 5 or more people. This presented an operational challenge as 
electronic participation by members does not count towards quorum and members 
cannot participate electronically in closed sessions. 
 
On March 26, 2020, the Minister of the Environment, Conservation and Parks issued a 
Direction to all conservation authorities enabling amendments to Administrative By-
Laws to allow for electronic participation during declared states of emergencies. For 
greater certainty, the Minister stated that this Direction also applies to conservation 
authorities when meeting as a source protection authority under the Clean Water Act, 
2006. 
 
Specifically, the attached Minister’s Direction directs conservation authorities to amend 
their Administrative By-Laws as follows: 
 

1. During any period where an emergency has been declared to exist, in all or part 
of an area over which a conservation authority has jurisdiction, under section 4 or 
7.0.1 of the Emergency Management and Civil Protection Act, that may prevent 
members of the authority from meeting in person, the by-laws provide:  

 
a. That members of the authority be permitted to participate in meetings 

electronically, which shall include the ability of those members participating 
electronically to register votes.  

b. That any member of the authority who is participating electronically in a 
meeting may be counted in determining whether or not a quorum of 
members is present at any point in time during the meeting in accordance 
with the requirement in subsection 16 (2) of the Conservation Authorities Act.  

c. That any member of the authority can participate electronically in a meeting 
that is closed to the public.  

d. That any hearing or appeal that is dealt with in the by-laws can be conducted 
electronically with provisions for applicants and their agents to participate, if 
the conservation authority holds any such hearing or appeal during any 
period where an emergency has been declared to exist.  
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The Minister’s Direction also stipulates that: 
 

2. Conservation authorities must continue to implement best practices to make 
board meetings open to the public in accordance with subsection 15 (3) of the 
Conservation Authorities Act. Where possible, conservation authorities must 
provide for alternative means to allow the public to participate in any meetings 
electronically.  

 
3. If there is anything that is required to be done under the by-laws during the 

emergency, including the holding of an annual general meeting, that the by-laws 
permit postponement to a later date.  

 
RVCA is grateful to South Nation Conservation and Conservation Ontario who prepared 
“Section C 1B. Declared State of Emergency” in the attached Administrative By-Law. 
This proposed amendment complies with the Minister’s Direction. 
 
RVCA staff determined that it would be most feasible to hold the first electronic meeting 
of the RVCA Board of Directors by teleconference with an opportunity for members of 
the public to participate in the meeting electronically. It is also recommended by staff, in 
consultation with the Chair, that the Annual General Meeting, including election of Chair 
and Vice-Chair be deferred to May in order to keep the length of the agenda 
manageable for this inaugural electronic meeting. Alternative meeting approaches may 
be considered for future meetings. 
 
Input From Other Sources 
South Nation Conservation and Conservation Ontario worked with legal counsel to 
prepare “Section C 1B. Declared State of Emergency” in the attached Administrative 
By-Law.  
 
Conservation Ontario also worked with conservation authorities to share best practices 
for holding electronic meetings and providing alternative means to the public to 
participate electronically.   
 
Financial Considerations 
N/A  
 
Legal Considerations 
The Conservation Authorities Act states: 
 

19.1 (7) The Minister may give an authority a written direction to make or amend 
a by-law on any matter described in subsection (1), in accordance with the 
direction, within such period of time as may be specified in the direction. 2017, c. 
23, Sched. 4, s. 16. 

 
The Minister’s Direction received from Minister Yurek on March 26, 2020 is pursuant to 
Section 19.1 (7) of the Conservation Authorities Act.  
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Adherence to RVCA Policy 
N/A 
 
Link to Strategic Plan  
N/A  
 
Attachments  

• Minister’s Direction for Conservation Authorities during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
(March 26, 2020) 

• Proposed Administrative By-Law Amendment (April 16, 2020) 
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Ministry of the Environment,  
Conservation and Parks 
 
 
Office of the Minister 
 
777 Bay Street, 5th Floor 
Toronto ON  M7A 2J3 
Tel.:   416-314-6790 
 

 
Ministère de l'Environnement,  
de la Protection de la nature et des 
Parcs  
 
Bureau du ministre 
 
777, rue Bay, 5e étage 
Toronto (Ontario)  M7A 2J3 
Tél. :   416.314.6790 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

March 26, 2020 

TO:   Conservation Authorities as listed in the attached Schedule “A” 

SUBJECT:  Minister’s Direction for Conservation Authorities during the COVID-19 
Outbreak 

As the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve locally and globally, I am writing to 
provide direction on how conservation authorities can continue operations while 
maintaining a safe physical distance. To ensure conservation authorities can continue to 
conduct meetings and hearings as necessary, we are giving conservation authorities 
the ability to amend their administrative by-laws to allow for virtual meetings, including 
by teleconference.  

As such, I am issuing this Minister’s Direction (“Direction”) pursuant to subsection 19.1 

(7) of the Conservation Authorities Act. This Direction applies to all conservation 
authorities in Ontario, listed in Schedule “A” as attached. For greater certainty, this 
Direction also applies to conservation authorities when meeting as a source protection 
authority under the Clean Water Act, 2006.   

The Conservation Authorities Act requires that, “[e]very meeting held by the authority 
shall be open to the public, subject to such exceptions as may be specified in the by-
laws of the authority.” Further, at any meeting that is held, “a quorum consists of one-
half of the members appointed by the participating municipalities, except where there 
are fewer than six such members, in which case three such members constitute a 
quorum”. It has been brought to my attention that the administrative by-laws that 
conservation authorities have adopted pursuant to subsection 19.1 (1) of the Act may 
create barriers in meeting these provisions of the Act during this time of emergency, 
where in-person attendance may not be feasible.  

The primary purpose of this Direction is to enable conservation authorities to convene a 
meeting electronically in order to make the necessary amendments to their by-laws to 
deal with emergencies. This Direction identifies the minimum areas where the by-laws 
should be amended, in the manner deemed appropriate by the authority, to make 
provision for emergency situations. However, each conservation authority, depending 
on their individual by-laws, may identify the need to make other necessary amendments 
to respond to emergencies.  
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Accordingly, I am directing that the conservation authority review and amend their by-
laws, as applicable, to ensure they comply with the following Direction and take the 
other necessary steps as set out in this Direction.  

Electronic participation, emergencies 

1. During any period where an emergency has been declared to exist, in all or part of 
an area over which a conservation authority has jurisdiction, under section 4 or 
7.0.1 of the Emergency Management and Civil Protection Act, that may prevent 
members of the authority from meeting in person, the by-laws provide: 
 

a. That members of the authority be permitted to participate in meetings 
electronically, which shall include the ability of those members participating 
electronically to register votes.     

b. That any member of the authority who is participating electronically in a 
meeting may be counted in determining whether or not a quorum of members 
is present at any point in time during the meeting in accordance with the 
requirement in subsection 16 (2) of the Conservation Authorities Act.  

c. That any member of the authority can participate electronically in a meeting 
that is closed to the public. 

d. That any hearing or appeal that is dealt with in the by-laws can be conducted 
electronically with provisions for applicants and their agents to participate, if 
the conservation authority holds any such hearing or appeal during any period 
where an emergency has been declared to exist.   
 

Meetings open to the public 

2. Conservation authorities must continue to implement best practices to make board 
meetings open to the public in accordance with subsection 15 (3) of the 
Conservation Authorities Act. Where possible, conservation authorities must 
provide for alternative means to allow the public to participate in any meetings 
electronically. 

 
General, emergency measures 

3. If there is anything that is required to be done under the by-laws during the 
emergency, including the holding of an annual general meeting, that the by-laws 
permit postponement to a later date.  

 
Publication of information  

4. The conservation authorities listed in Schedule “A” shall make this Direction 

publicly available on a website or other electronic means.  
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5. In accordance with subsection 19.1 (4) of the Conservation Authorities Act, an 
authority shall make any by-laws that are amended in accordance with this 
Direction available to the public in the manner it considers appropriate.  

 
Implementation procedure  

6. A conservation authority may hold a special meeting to amend a by-law for the 
purposes of implementing this Direction.  
 

7. Despite any provision in a by-law made under subsection 19.1 (1) of the 
Conservation Authorities Act, members of the authority can participate 
electronically in any special meeting that is required to implement this Direction.  

 
8. A member of the authority that is participating electronically in such a special 

meeting may be counted in determining whether or not a quorum of members is 
present at any time during the meeting.  

 
Effective date 

9. This Direction is effective immediately. If it is in the public interest to do so, I will 
provide further direction or clarification, at a later date, related to the matters set 
out in this Direction.  
 

If you have any questions related to this Direction, please contact:  
 

Chloe Stuart 
Assistant Deputy Minister, Land and Water Division, MECP 
Robinson Pl South Tower, 6th Floor 
300 Water Street 
Peterborough ON  K9J 3C7 
(705) 755-5341 
chloe.stuart@ontario.ca  
 

To learn more about how the province continues to protect Ontarians from COVID-19, 
please visit www.ontario.ca/coronavirus. 

Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Jeff Yurek 
Minister of the Environment, Conservation and Parks 
 
c: The Honourable Steve Clark, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing 

The Honourable John Yakabuski, Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry  
Ms. Kim Gavine, General Manager, Conservation Ontario  
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SCHEDULE “A” CONSERVATION AUTHORITIES 
 
Ausable Bayfield CA 
R.R. #3 
71108 Morrison Line 
Exeter ON  N0M 1S5 
Brian Horner 
bhorner@abca.on.ca 
 
Cataraqui Region CA 
Box 160 
1641 Perth Road 
Glenburnie ON  K0H 1S0 
Katrina Furlanetto 
kfurlanetto@crca.ca 
 
Catfish Creek CA 
R.R. #5 
8079 Springwater Road 
Aylmer ON  N5H 2R4 
Chris Wilkinson 
generalmanager@catfishcreek.ca 
 
Central Lake Ontario CA 
100 Whiting Avenue 
Oshawa ON  L1H 3T3 
Chris Darling 
cdarling@cloca.com 
 
Credit Valley CA 
1255 Old Derry Rd 
Mississauga ON  L5N 6R4 
Deborah Martin-Downs 
deb.martindowns@cvc.ca 
 
Crowe Valley CA 
Box 416 
70 Hughes Lane 
Marmora ON  K0K 2M0 
Tim Pidduck 
tim.pidduck@crowevalley.com 
 
Essex Region CA 
Suite 311 
360 Fairview Ave West 
Essex ON  N8M 1Y6 
Richard Wyma 
rwyma@erca.org 
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Ganaraska Region CA 
Box 328 
2216 County Road 28 
Port Hope ON  L1A 3V8 
Linda Laliberte 
llaliberte@grca.on.ca 
 
Grand River CA 
Box 729 
400 Clyde Road 
Cambridge ON  N1R 5W6 
Samantha Lawson 
slawson@grandriver.ca 
 
Grey Sauble CA 
R.R. #4 
237897 Inglis Falls Road 
Owen Sound ON  N4K 5N6 
Tim Lanthier 
t.lanthier@greysauble.on.ca 
 
Halton Region CA 
2596 Britannia Road West 
Burlington ON  L7P 0G3 
Hassaan Basit 
hbasit@hrca.on.ca 
 
Hamilton Region CA 
P.O. Box 81067 
838 Mineral Springs Road 
Ancaster ON  L9G 4X1 
Lisa Burnside 
lisa.burnside@conservationhamilton.ca 
 
Kawartha Region CA 
277 Kenrei (Park) Road 
Lindsay ON  K9V 4R1 
Mark Majchrowski 
mmajchrowski@kawarthaconservation.com 
 
Kettle Creek CA 
R.R. #8 
44015 Ferguson Line 
St. Thomas ON  N5P 3T3 
Elizabeth VanHooren 
elizabeth@kettlecreekconservation.on.ca 
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Lake Simcoe Region CA 
Box 282 
120 Bayview Parkway 
Newmarket ON  L3Y 3W3 
Mike Walters 
m.walters@lsrca.on.ca 
 
Lakehead Region CA 
Box 10427 
130 Conservation Road 
Thunder Bay ON  P7B 6T8 
Tammy Cook 
tammy@lakeheadca.com 
 
Long Point Region CA 
4 Elm Street 
Tillsonburg ON  N4G 0C4 
Judy Maxwell 
jmaxwell@lprca.on.ca 
 
Lower Thames Valley CA 
100 Thames Street 
Chatham ON  N7L 2Y8 
Mark Peacock 
mark.peacock@ltvca.ca 
 
Lower Trent Region CA 
R.R. #1 
714 Murray Street 
Trenton ON  K8V 5P4 
Rhonda Bateman 
rhonda.bateman@ltc.on.ca 
 
Maitland Valley CA 
Box 127 
1093 Marietta Street 
Wroxeter ON  N0G 2X0 
Phil Beard 
pbeard@mvca.on.ca 
 
Mattagami Region CA 
100 Lakeshore Road 
Timmins ON  P4N 8R5 
David Vallier 
david.vallier@timmins.ca 
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Mississippi Valley CA 
10970 Highway 7 
Carleton Place ON  K7C 3P1 
Sally McIntyre 
smcintyre@mvc.on.ca 
 
Niagara Peninsula CA 
250 Thorold Road West, 3rd Floor 
Welland ON  L3C 3W2 
Chandra Sharma 
csharma@npca.ca 
 
Nickel District CA 
199 Larch St 
Suite 401 
Sudbury ON  P3E 5P9 
Carl Jorgensen 
carl.jorgensen@conservationsudbury.ca 
 
North Bay-Mattawa CA 
15 Janey Avenue 
North Bay ON  P1C 1N1 
Brian Tayler 
brian.tayler@nbmca.ca 
 
Nottawasaga Valley CA 
8195 Line 8 
Utopia ON  L0M 1T0 
Doug Hevenor 
dhevenor@nvca.on.ca 
 
Otonabee Region CA 
250 Milroy Drive 
Peterborough ON  K9H 7M9 
Dan Marinigh 
dmarinigh@otonabeeconservation.com 
 
Quinte CA 
R.R. #2 
2061 Old Highway #2 
Belleville ON  K8N 4Z2 
Brad McNevin 
bmcnevin@quinteconservation.ca 
 
Raisin Region CA 
PO Box 429 
18045 County Road 2 
Cornwall ON  K6H 5T2 
Richard Pilon 
richard.pilon@rrca.on.ca 
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Rideau Valley CA 
Box 599 
3889 Rideau Valley Dr. 
Manotick ON  K4M 1A5 
Sommer Casgrain-Robertson 
sommer.casgrain-robertson@rvca.ca 
 
Saugeen Valley CA 
R.R. #1 
1078 Bruce Road #12, Box #150 
Formosa ON  N0G 1W0 
Dick Hibma 
d.hibma@svca.on.ca 
 
Sault Ste. Marie Region CA 
1100 Fifth Line East 
Sault Ste. Marie ON  P6A 6J8 
Corrina Barrett 
cbarrett@ssmrca.ca 
 
South Nation River CA 
38 Victoria Street 
P.O. Box 29 
Finch ON  K0C 1K0 
Angela Coleman 
acoleman@nation.on.ca 
 
St. Clair Region CA 
205 Mill Pond Crescent 
Strathroy ON  N7G 3P9 
Brian McDougall 
bmcdougall@scrca.on.ca 
 
Toronto and Region CA 
101 Exchange Avenue 
Vaughan ON  L4K 5R6 
John MacKenzie 
john.mackenzie@trca.ca 
 
Upper Thames River CA 
1424 Clarke Road 
London ON  N5V 5B9 
Ian Wilcox 
wilcoxi@thamesriver.on.ca 
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Introduction 
The Rideau Valley Conservation Authority is a non-share corporation, established under 
Section 3 of the Conservation Authorities Act, with the objects to provide, in the area over 
which it has jurisdiction, programs and services designed to further the conservation, 
restoration, development and management of natural resources other than gas, coal and 
minerals. 

Under the Act, municipalities within a common watershed are enabled to petition the 
province to establish a conservation authority. The purpose of the Act is to provide for the 
organization and delivery of programs and services that further the conservation, 
restoration, development and management of natural resources in watersheds in Ontario.  
 
The Authority is comprised of its Members, appointed as representatives by the 
Participating Municipalities:  
 

• Township of Athens 
• Augusta Township 
• Township of Beckwith 
• Township of Central Frontenac 
• City of Clarence-Rockland 
• Township of Drummond/North Elmsley 
• Township of Elizabethtown-Kitley 
• Village of Merrickville-Wolford 
• Township of Montague 
• City of Ottawa 
• Township of North Dundas 
• Municipality of North Grenville 
• Town of Perth 
• Township of Rideau Lakes 
• Town of Smiths Falls 
• Township of South Frontenac 
• Tay Valley Township 
• Village of Westport 

 
Vision  
The RVCA’s vision is a thriving watershed with clean abundant water, natural shorelines, 
rich forests and wetlands, diverse habitat and sustainable land use that is valued and 
protected by all. 
 
 
Mission 
The RVCA’s mission is to understand, manage, restore and enhance the Rideau watershed 
through science, stewardship, education, policy and leadership. 
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The Members of the Conservation Authority form the General Membership of the 
Conservation Authority. The Members are bound by the Act and other applicable 
legislation. The Authority must always act within the scope of its powers. As a non-share 
corporation, the Authority has the capacity and, subject to the Act and other applicable 
legislation, the rights, powers and privileges of a natural person. The powers of a 
conservation authority to accomplish its objects are set out in the Act, including those 
identified under subsection 21(1): 

Powers of authorities 

21 (1) For the purposes of accomplishing its objects, an authority has power, 

(a) to study and investigate the watershed and to determine programs and services 
whereby the natural resources of the watershed may be conserved, restored, developed 
and managed; 

(b) for any purpose necessary to any project under consideration or undertaken by the 
authority, to enter into and upon any land and survey and take levels of it and make such 
borings or sink such trial pits as the authority considers necessary; 

(c) to acquire by purchase, lease or otherwise and to expropriate any land that it may 
require, and, subject to subsection (2), to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of land so 
acquired; 

(d) despite subsection (2), to lease for a term of five years or less land acquired by the 
authority; 

(e) to purchase or acquire any personal property that it may require and sell or otherwise 
deal therewith; 

(f) to enter into agreements for the purchase of materials, employment of labour and other 
purposes as may be necessary for the due carrying out of any project or to further the 
authority’s objects; 

(g) to enter into agreements with owners of private lands to facilitate the due carrying out of 
any project; 

(h) to determine the proportion of the total benefit afforded to all the participating 
municipalities that is afforded to each of them; 

(i) to erect works and structures and create reservoirs by the construction of dams or 
otherwise; 

(j) to control the flow of surface waters in order to prevent floods or pollution or to reduce 
the adverse effects thereof; 
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(k) to alter the course of any river, canal, brook, stream or watercourse, and divert or alter, 
as well temporarily as permanently, the course of any river, stream, road, street or way, or 
raise or sink its level in order to carry it over or under, on the level of or by the side of any 
work built or to be built by the authority, and to divert or alter the position of any water-pipe, 
gas-pipe, sewer, drain or any telegraph, telephone or electric wire or pole; 

(l) to use lands that are owned or controlled by the authority for purposes, not inconsistent 
with its objects, as it considers proper; 

(m) to use lands owned or controlled by the authority for park or other recreational 
purposes, and to erect, or permit to be erected, buildings, booths and facilities for such 
purposes and to make charges for admission thereto and the use thereof; 

(m.1) to charge fees for services approved by the Minister;  

Note: On a day to be named by proclamation of the Lieutenant Governor, clause 21 
(1) (m.1) of the Act is repealed. (See: 2017, c. 23, Sched. 4, s. 19 (3)) 

(n) to collaborate and enter into agreements with ministries and agencies of government, 
municipal councils and local boards and other organizations and individuals; 

(o) to plant and produce trees on Crown lands with the consent of the Minister, and on other 
lands with the consent of the owner, for any purpose; 

(p) to cause research to be done; 

(q) generally to do all such acts as are necessary for the due carrying out of any project or 
as may be desirable to further the objects of the authority.   
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A. Definitions 
 
“Authority” means the Rideau Valley Conservation Authority. 

“Act” means the Conservation Authorities Act, R.S.O. 1990, chapter C.27 

 “Chair” means the Chairperson as referenced in the Act as elected by the Members of the 
Authority.  

“General Manager” means the General Manager of the Authority, and which may, by 
resolution of the Authority, include the responsibilities of the Secretary-Treasurer if so 
designated by resolution of the Authority.  
 
“Fiscal Year” means the period from January 1 through December 31. 
 
“General Membership” means all of the Members, collectively.  
 
“Levy” means the amount of costs apportioned to Participating Municipalities in 
accordance with the Act and Regulations under the Act.  
 
“Majority” means half of the votes plus one.  
 
“Members” shall mean the Members appointed to the Authority by the Participating 
Municipalities in the Authority’s area of jurisdiction.  

“Non-matching Levy” means that portion of an Authority’s levy that meets the definition of 
non-matching levy as found in Ontario Regulation 139/96.  
 
“Officer” means an officer of the Authority empowered to sign contracts, agreements and 
other documents on behalf of the Authority in accordance with section 19.1 of the Act, 
which shall include the Chair, Vice-Chair, and General Manager/Secretary-Treasurer. 
 
“Participating Municipality” means a municipality that is designated by or under the Act 
as a participating municipality in a conservation authority.  
 
“Pecuniary Interest” includes the financial or material interests of a Member and the 
financial or material interests of a Member of the Member’s immediate family.  
 
“Secretary-Treasurer” means Secretary-Treasurer of the Authority with the roles specified 
in the Act.  
 
“Staff” means employees of the Authority as provided for under Section 18(1) of the Act. 
 
“Vice-Chair” means the Vice-Chairperson as elected by the Members of the Authority.  
 
“Weighted Majority” means the votes of 51 per cent of those represented after the votes 
are weighted by the percentage that applies under Ontario Regulation 139/96 for Municipal 
Levies. 
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B. Governance 

1. Members  

a) Appointments 
Participating Municipalities within the jurisdiction of the Rideau Valley Conservation 
Authority may appoint Members in accordance with Section 14 of the Act. 
 
Appointed Members must reside in a Participating Municipality in which the Authority has 
jurisdiction and may include citizens as well as elected members of municipal councils.  

 
Collectively, the appointed Members comprise the Authority, and for the purposes of this 
by-law are also referred to as the General Membership.  

b) Term of Member Appointments 
In accordance with Section 14 of the Act, a Member shall be appointed for a term of up to 
four years at the discretion of the appointing municipal council; such term beginning at the 
first meeting of the Authority following his or her appointment and ending immediately 
before the first meeting of the Authority following the appointment of his or her replacement.  
The Secretary-Treasurer shall notify the appropriate municipality in advance of the 
expiration date of any Member’s term, unless notified by the municipality of the Member’s 
reappointment or the appointment of his or her replacement. A Member is eligible for 
reappointment. A Member can be replaced by a Participating Municipality at the 
municipality’s discretion prior to the end of their term.  

c) Powers of the General Membership 
Subject to the Act and other applicable legislation, the General Membership is empowered 
without restriction to exercise all of the powers prescribed to the Authority under the Act. In 
addition to the powers of an authority under s.21 of the Act for the purposes of 
accomplishing its objects, as referenced in the introduction of this by-law, the powers of the 
General Membership include but are not limited to: 
 

i. Approving by resolution, the creation of Committees and/or Advisory Boards, the 
members thereof and the terms of reference for these Committees and/or Advisory 
Boards; 

ii. Appointing a General Manager and/or Secretary-Treasurer;  
iii. Terminating the services of the General Manager and/or Secretary-Treasurer. 
iv. Approving, establishing and implementing regulations, policies and programs; 
v. Awarding contracts or agreements where the approval of the Authority is required 

under the Authority’s purchasing policy. 
vi. Appointing an Executive Committee and delegating to the Committee any of its 

powers except:  
i. The termination of the services of the General Manager and/or Secretary-

Treasurer, 
ii. The power to raise money, and 
iii. The power to enter into contracts or agreements other than those contracts or 

agreements as are necessarily incidental to the works approved by the 
Authority. 

vii. Approving by resolution, any new capital project of the Authority; 
viii. Approving by resolution, the method of financing any new capital projects; 
ix. Approving details on budget allocations on any new or existing capital projects; 
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x. Approving of the total budget for the ensuing year, and approving the levies to be 
paid by the Participating Municipalities; 

xi. Receiving and approving the Financial Statements and Report of the Auditor for the 
preceding year; 

xii. Authorizing the borrowing of funds on the promissory note of the Authority in 
accordance with subsection 3(5) of the Act; 

xiii. Approving by resolution, any proposed expropriation of land or disposition of land, 
subject to the requirements under the Act;  

xiv. Delegating to the General Manager and other staff by resolution, the issuance of 
permits as may be required under any regulations made under Section 28 of the Act.  

xv. Delegating to the Executive Committee the holding of hearings as may be required 
under any regulations made under Section 28 of the Act.  

d) Member Accountability 
Participating Municipalities appoint Members to the Authority as their representatives. 
Members have the responsibilities of Directors of the corporation that is the Authority. While 
the administration is responsible for the day-to-day operations, the General Membership is 
responsible for matters of governance, ensuring compliance with applicable legislation, and 
ensuring appropriate policies are in place and for financial soundness of the Authority. 
 
All Members have the responsibility to be guided by and adhere to the Member Code of 
Conduct (Appendix 1) and Member Conflict of Interest Policy (Appendix 2), as adopted by 
the Authority. 
 
Members are responsible for: 

i. Attending all meetings of the Authority; 
ii. Understanding the purpose, function and responsibilities of the Authority; 
iii. Being familiar with the Authority’s statutory and other legal obligations; 
iv. With the administration, setting strategic direction for the Authority. 

e) Applicable Legislation   
In addition to the Act, the Members are subject to other legislation including, but not limited 
to: 

• Municipal Conflict of Interest Act  
• Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act 

If any part of the by-law conflicts with any provision of the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act 
or the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act or a provision of a 
regulation made under one of those acts, the provision of that act or regulation prevails. 

f) Relationship Between Members and Staff 
The General Membership relies on the General Manager/Secretary-Treasurer to manage 
the operations of the organization, including all employees of the Authority. The General 
Manager/Secretary-Treasurer is accountable to the Authority, working cooperatively to 
achieve the goals established by the Authority.  

The General Membership will ensure that a process exists for regular performance 
appraisals of the General Manager/Secretary-Treasurer.  
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2. Officers  
The Officers of the Authority, and their respective responsibilities, shall be:  

Chair 
• Is a Member of the Authority; 
• Presides at all meetings of the General Membership and Executive Committee; 
• Calls special meetings if necessary;  
• Acts as a public spokesperson on behalf of the General Membership; 
• Serves as a signing officer for the Authority;  
• Ensures relevant information and policies are brought to the Authority’s attention;  
• Keeps the General Membership apprised of significant issues in a timely fashion; 
• Performs other duties when directed to do so by resolution of the Authority.  

Vice-Chair 
• Is a Member of the Authority; 
• Attends all meetings of the General Membership and Executive Committee; 
• Carries out assignments as requested by the Chair;  
• Understands the responsibilities of the Chair and acts as Chair immediately upon 

the death, incapacity to act, absence or resignation of the Chair until such time as 
a new Chair is appointed or until the Chair resumes his/her duties;  

• Serves as a signing officer for the Authority. 
 
Responsibilities of the General Manager/Secretary-Treasurer as assigned by the 
Authority include, but are not limited to the following: 

• Is an employee of the Authority; 
• Fulfills the requirements of the Secretary-Treasurer as defined in the Act; 
• Attends all meetings of the General Membership or designates an acting General 

Manager if not available;  
• Attends meetings of advisory boards and other commitees as required; 
• Works in close collaboration with the Chair and Vice-Chair and keeps them 

apprised of relevant information and significant issues in a timely fashion;  
• Develops a strategic plan for approval by the General Membership and 

Implements short and long-range goals and objectives;  
• Is responsible for the management of the operations of the Authority, including all 

staff and programs of the Authority;  
• Ensures resolutions of the Authority are implemented in a timely fashion; 
• Develops and maintains effective relationships and ensures good communications 

with Participating Municipalities, federal and provincial government 
ministries/agencies, Indigenous communities, other conservation authorities, 
Conservation Ontario, stakeholders, community groups and associations; 

• Is the custodian of the Corporate Seal; 
• Serves as a signing officer for the Authority.  

3. Absence of Chair and Vice-Chair 
In the event of the absence of the Chair and Vice-Chair from any meeting, the Members 
shall appoint an Acting Chair who, for the purposes of that meeting has all the powers and 
shall perform all the duties of the Chair.  
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4. Maximum Term for Chair and Vice-Chair 
The term for Chair and Vice-Chair shall be limited to five consecutive years. A Member 
shall not be eligble for re-election to Authority Chair or Vice-Chair for a period of one year 
following completion of the maximum term.    

5. Election of Chair and Vice-Chair 
The election of the Chair and Vice-Chair shall be held at the first meeting of the General 
Membership each year in accordance with the Authority’s Procedures for Election of 
Officers (Appendix 3). 

6. Representatives to Conservation Ontario Council 
The Authority shall appoint up to three Representatives to Conservation Ontario Council at 
the Annual meeting of the General Membership. Appointment of Voting Delegate and 
Alternate(s) to Conservation Ontario Council shall be made by the Chair, subject to 
approval by the General Membership. 
 
Conservation authorities may appoint up to three Representatives to Conservation Ontario 
Council (“Council”), designated as Voting Delegate and Alternate(s). Council will consist of 
the Voting Delegates appointed by each Member Conservation Authority. The Voting 
Delegate and Alternates shall be registered with Conservation Ontario annually.  

7. Appointment of Auditor 
The General Membership shall appoint an auditor for the coming year at the Annual 
Meeting in accordance with Section 38 of the Act.  

8. Appointment of Financial Institution 
The General Membership shall appoint a financial institution to act as the Authority’s 
banker as required. 

9. Appointment of Solicitor  
The General Membership shall appoint a solicitor(s) to act as the Authority’s legal counsel 
for the coming year at the Annual Meeting.  

10. Appointment of Officers to Enforce Section 28 and 29 of the Act  
The General Membership shall appoint staff as officers to enforce any regulations made 
under Section 28 or 29 of the Act. Such appointments will be made as required. 

11. Financial Statements and Report of the Auditor  
The General Membership shall receive and approve the Audited Financial Statements and 
Report of the Auditor by March 31 of each year for the previous year.  
 
The Authority shall forward copies of the Audited Financial Statements and Report of the 
Auditor to Participating Municipalities and the Minister in accordance with Section 38 of the 
Act and will make the Audited Financial Statements available to the public.  

12. Borrowing Resolution 
If required, the Authority shall establish a borrowing resolution by March 31 of each year 
and such resolution shall be in force until it is superseded by another borrowing resolution.  

13. Levy Notice  
The levy due to the Authority from Participating Municipalities shall be communicated to 
those municipalities in accordance with the Act and any applicable Regulations.  
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14. Signing Officers  
All deeds, transfers, assignments, contracts, and obligations entered into by the Authority 
shall be signed by the signing officers of the Authority. The General Membership shall 
appoint signing officers for the coming year at the Annual Meeting.  
 
Signing authority that was authorized by any previous Administration Regulation or by-law 
is superseded by this by-law.  

15. Executive Committee 
The Authority shall appoint an Executive Committee at the Annual meeting of the General 
Membership each year in accordance with Section 19 of the Act and Section 1(c)(vi) of this 
by-law.  

Resolutions and policies governing the operation of the Authority shall be observed in all 
Executive Committee meetings.  

Terms of Reference for the Executive Committee are attached in Appendix 4-A. 

16. Advisory Boards and Other Committees  
In accordance with Section 18(2) of the Act, the Authority shall establish such Advisory 
Boards as required by regulation and may establish such other Advisory Boards or 
committees as it considers appropriate to study and report on specific matters.  

The General Membership shall approve the terms of reference for all such Advisory Boards 
and committees, which shall include the role, the frequency of meetings and the number of 
members required.  

Terms of Reference for current Advisory Boards and committees include:  

• Audit Committee (Appendix 4-B). 

Appointment of members to Advisory Boards and committees shall be made by the Chair, 
subject to approval by the General Membership. 

Resolutions and policies governing the operation of the Authority shall be observed in all 
Advisory Board and committee meetings. 

Each Advisory Board or committee shall report to the General Membership, presenting any 
recommendations made by the Advisory Board or committee. 

17. Remuneration of Members  
The Authority shall establish a per-diem rate from time to time to be paid to Members for 
attendance at General Meetings, Executive Committee meetings and Advisory Board or 
other Committee meetings, and at such other business functions as may be from time to 
time requested by the Chair, through the Secretary-Treasurer. In addition, an honorarium 
may be approved by the Authority for the Chair as compensation for their additional 
responsibilities. A single per-diem will be paid for attendance at more than one meeting if 
they occur consecutively on the same day.  

The Authority shall reimburse Members’ reasonable travel expenses incurred for the 
purpose of attending meetings and/or functions on behalf of the Authority. A per-kilometre 
rate to be paid for use of a personal vehicle shall be approved by Resolution of the General 
Membership from time-to-time. Requests for such reimbursements shall be submitted 
within a timely fashion and shall be consistent with Canada Revenue Agency guidelines. 
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18. Records Retention 
The Authority shall keep full and accurate records including, but not limited to: 

i. Minutes of all meetings of the Authority, including registries of statements of 
interests in accordance with the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act; 

ii. Assets, liabilities, receipts and disbursements of the Authority and Financial 
Statements and Reports of the Auditors; 

iii. Human Resources Files for all employees and Members as applicable; 
iv. Workplace Health and Safety documents including workplace inspections, 

workplace accidents, investigations, etc.; 
v. Electronic Communications including emails 
vi. Contracts and Agreements entered into by the Authority; 
vii. Strategic Plans and other documents providing organizational direction 
viii. Projects of the Authority; 
ix. Technical Studies and data gathered in support of Programs of the Authority; 
x. Legal Proceedings involving the Authority; 
xi. Incidents of personal injury or property damage involving the Authority and 

members of the public. 
 

Such records shall be retained and protected in accordance with all applicable laws and the 
Records Retention Policy of the Authority as approved by the General Membership from 
time-to-time. 

19. Records Available to Public 
Records of the Authority shall be made available to the public, subject to requirements of 
the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Personal Privacy Act (MFIPPA). 

20. By-law Review 
In accordance with the Act, these by-laws shall be reviewed by the Authority to ensure the 
by-laws are in compliance with the Act and any other relevant law. The General 
Membership shall review the by-laws every four years to ensure best management 
practices in governance are being followed to comply with Section 19.1 of the Act.  

21. By-law Available to Public 
In accordance with the Act, the Authority shall make its by-laws available to the public on 
the Authority’s website. By-laws shall also be available for review by any member of the 
public at the Authority’s administration centre or provided in alternative formats, in 
accordance with the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, if requested by 
interested parties. 

22. Enforcement of By-laws and Policies 
The Members shall respect and adhere to all applicable by-laws and policies (for example, 
the Member Code of Conduct and Member Conflict of Interest Policy). The Authority may 
take reasonable measures to enforce its by-laws and policies, including the enforcement 
mechanisms under the Municipal Act or the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act. The 
procedure for enforcement shall include: 

i. An investigation will be conducted regarding the alleged breach; 
ii. An opportunity will be provided to the affected Member to respond to the allegation;  
iii. The findings of the investigation and the affected Member’s response will be 

communicated to the General Membership in a closed meeting;  
iv. The appointing municipality shall be notified of the outcome of the investigation  
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23. Indemnification of Members, Officers and Employees
The Authority undertakes and agrees to indemnify and save harmless its Members, 
Officers and Employees and their heirs and legal representatives, respectively, from and 
against all costs, charges and expenses, including all amounts paid to settle an action or 
satisfy any judgement, reasonably incurred by any such Member, Officer or Employee in 
respect of any civil, criminal or administrative action or proceeding to which any such 
Member, Officer or Employee is made a party by reason of being a Member, Officer or 
Employee of the Authority (except in respect of an action by or on behalf of the Authority to 
procure a judgment in its favour) if; 

• Such Member, Officer or Employee acted honestly, in good faith with a view to the best
interests of the Authority and within the scope of such Member's, Officer's or
Employee's duties and responsibilities, and,

• In the case of a criminal or administrative action or proceeding that is enforced by a
monetary penalty that such Member, Officer or Employee had reasonable grounds for
believing that the conduct was lawful.
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C. Meeting Procedures 
D. The Meeting Procedures below governing the procedure of the Authority shall be 

observed in committee and Advisory Board meetings, as far as they are applicable, and 
the words committee or Advisory Board may be substituted for the word Authority as 
applicable. 

1.a Rules of Procedure 
In all matters of procedure not specifically dealt with under the Act and this By-law, the 
current edition of Robert’s Rules of Order shall be binding. 
 
The Authority may choose to conduct its business as a committee of the whole.  

1.b Declared State of Emergency 
 
During any period where an emergency has been declared to exist, in all or part of an area 
over which the Authority has jurisdiction, under Section 4 or 7.0.1 of the Emergency 
Management and Civil Protection Act, that may prevent the General Membership from 
meeting in person, a Member may participate in meetings electronically and shall have the 
ability to: 
 

• Register a vote; 
• Be counted towards determining quorum; and 
• Participate in meetings closed to the public. 

 
During any period where an emergency has been declared to exist, in all or part of an area 
over which the Authority has jurisdiction, under Section 4 or 7.0.1 of the Emergency 
Management and Civil Protection Act, that may prevent the General Membership from 
meeting in person, any date or timeline requirement established under any Section in this 
By-law shall be postponed until such time as the General Membership can reasonably 
address the issue. 
 
During any period where an emergency has been declared to exist, in all or part of an area 
over which the Authority has jurisdiction, under Section 4 or 7.0.1 of the Emergency 
Management and Civil Protection Act, the Authority shall implement best practices to make 
meetings of the Authority open to the public in accordance with Subsection 15(3) of the Act. 
Where possible, the Authority will provide for alternative means for the public to participate 
in meetings electronically. 
 
During any period where an emergency has been declared to exist, in all or part of an area 
over which the Authority has jurisdiction, under Section 4 or 7.0.1 of the Emergency 
Management and Civil Protection Act, that may prevent the General Membership from 
meeting in person, any hearing or appeal dealt with in this By-law may be conducted 
electronically with provisions for applicants and their agents to participate if the Authority 
decides to hold any such hearing or appeal. 

2. Notice of Meeting 
The General Membership shall approve a schedule for regular meetings in advance. The 
Secretary-Treasurer shall send Notice of regular meetings to all Members at least five 
calendar days in advance of a meeting. Notice of all regular or special meetings of the 
General Membership or its committees shall be made available to the public as soon 
aspossible after its delivery to General Membership. 
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Notice of any meeting shall indicate the time and place of that meeting and the agenda for 
the meeting.  

All material and correspondence to be dealt with by the Authority at a meeting will be 
submitted to the Secretary-Treasurer 14 days in advance of the meeting where it is to be 
dealt with, if it is to be included in the published agenda, or two days if it is to be introduced 
at the meeting. 

The Chair may, at his/her pleasure, call a special meeting of the Authority as necessary on 
three calendar days notice in writing or email. That notice shall state the business of the 
special meeting and only that business shall be considered at that special meeting. Any 
Member, with 50% support of the other Members, may also request the Chair to call a 
meeting of the Authority and the Chair will not refuse.  

The Chair or the Secretary-Treasurer may, by notice in writing or email delivered to the 
Members so as to be received by them at least 24 hours before the hour appointed for the 
meeting, postpone or cancel any meeting until the next regularly scheduled meeting date.  

The Chair or the Secretary-Treasurer may, if it appears that a storm or like occurrence will 
prevent the Members from attending a meeting, postpone that meeting by advising as 
many Members as can be reached. Postponement shall not be for any longer than the next 
regularly scheduled meeting date. 

3. Meetings Open to Public
All meetings of the General Membership and its committees shall be open to the public. 

 meeting or part of a meeting may be closed to the public if the subject matter being 
considered is identified in the closed meeting section of the Agenda and the subject matter 
meets the criteria for a closed meeting as defined in this by-law.  

4. Agenda for Meetings
Authority staff, under the supervision of the Secretary-Treasurer and in consultation with 
the Chair, shall prepare an agenda for all regular meetings of the Authority that shall 
include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following headings:  

• Agenda Review
• Adoption of Agenda
• Declaration of Interest
• Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting
• Business Arising from Minutes
• Staff Reports / Activity Reports
• Meetings: Past and Upcoming
• Member Inquiries
• New Business
• Closed Session
• Adjournment

The agenda for special meetings of the Authority shall be prepared as directed by the 
Chair. 

Agendas for meetings shall be forwarded to all Members at least five calendar days in 
advance of the meeting. Such agendas shall be made available to the public on the 
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Authority’s website at the same time, unless the meeting is closed to the public in 
accordance with this by-law. Such agendas shall also be available in alternative formats, in 
accordance with the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, if requested by 
interested parties. 

5. Quorum  
At any meeting of the General Membership, a quorum consists of one-half of the Members 
appointed by the Participating Municipalities, except where there are fewer than six such 
Members, in which case three such Members constitute a quorum. At any Executive 
Committee, Advisory Board or committee meeting, a quorum consists of one-half of the 
Members of the Executive Committee, Advisory Board or committee. 
 
If there is no quorum within one half hour after the time appointed for the meeting, the Chair 
for the meeting shall declare the meeting adjourned due to a lack of a quorum, or shall 
recess until quorum arrives, and the recording secretary shall record the names of the 
Members present and absent.  
 
If during an Authority or Advisory Board or Committee meeting a quorum is lost, then the 
Chair shall declare that the meeting shall stand recessed or adjourned, until the date of the 
next regular meeting or other meeting called in accordance with the provisions of this by- 
law. Agenda items including delegations present may be covered and presented and 
issues discussed, but no formal decisions may be taken by the remaining Members which 
do not constitute a quorum.   
 
Where the number of Members who are disabled from participating in a meeting due to the 
declaration of a conflict of interest is such that at that meeting the remaining Members are 
not of sufficient number to constitute a quorum, the remaining number of Members shall be 
deemed to constitute a quorum, provided such number is not less than two. 
 

6. Order of Business 
The business of the Authority shall be taken up in the order in which it stands on the 
agenda unless otherwise decided by a majority of those Members present.  
 
No Member shall present any matter to the Authority for its consideration unless the matter 
appears on the agenda for the meeting of the Authority or leave is granted to present the 
matter by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Members present.  

7. Debate 
The Authority shall observe the following procedures for discussion/debate on any matter 
coming before it:  

a) A Member shall be recognized by the Chair prior to speaking;  
b) Where two or more Members rise to speak, the Chair shall designate the Member 

who has the floor, who shall be the Member who in the opinion of the Chair was first 
recognized;  

c) All questions and points of discussion shall be directed through the Chair;  
d) Where a motion is presented, it shall be moved and seconded before debate;  
e) No Member shall speak more than once to the same question without leave from 

the Chair, except in explanation of a material part of the speech;  
f) No Member shall speak more than five minutes without leave of the Chair;  
g) Any Member may ask a question of the previous speaker through the Chair;  
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h) The Member who has presented a motion, other than a motion to amend or dispose 
of a motion, may speak again to the motion immediately before the Chair puts the 
motion to a vote;  

i) When a motion is under debate, no motion shall be received other than a motion to 
amend, to defer action, to refer the question, to take a vote, to adjourn, or to extend 
the hour of closing the proceedings;  

j) When a motion is under consideration, only one amendment is permitted at a time. 

8. Matters of Precedence 
The following matters shall have precedence over the usual order of business: 

  
a) A point of order; 
b) Matter of privilege;  
c) A matter of clarification;  
d) A motion to suspend a rule of procedure or to request compliance with the rules of 

procedure;  
e) A motion that the question be put to a vote;  
f) A motion to adjourn.  

9. Members’ Attendance 
The Authority shall provide a listing of Members’ attendance at scheduled meetings of the 
Authority to the Participating Municipalities at least annually. 
 
Upon a Member’s vacancy due to death, incapacity or resignation occurring in any office of 
the Authority, the Authority shall request the municipality that was represented by that 
Member appoint a Member replacement.  
 
If a Member is unable to attend any meeting and wishes to bring any additional information 
or opinion pertaining to an agenda item to the General Membership, the Member shall 
address in writing or email to the Chair or Secretary-Treasurer such correspondence prior 
to the start of the meeting. The correspondence shall be read aloud by the Secretary-
Treasurer without comment or explanations. 

10. Electronic Participation  
Members may participate in a meeting that is open to the public by telephonic or other 
electronic means that permits all participants to communicate adequately with each other 
during the meeting. A Member participating in a meeting electronically shall not be counted 
in determining quorum.  
 
A Member shall not participate electronically in a meeting that is closed to the public. 

11. Delegations 
Any person or organization who wishes to address the Authority may make a request in 
writing or email to the Secretary-Treasurer. The request should include a brief statement of 
the issue or matter involved and indicate the name of the proposed speaker(s). If such 
request is received 14 days in advance of a scheduled meeting, the delegation shall be 
listed on the published agenda.  
 
Any person or organization requesting an opportunity to address the Authority, but not 
having made a written request to do so in the timelines specified above, may appear before 
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the meeting if approved by a majority of Members present, or shall be listed on the 
published agenda for the following meeting.  
 
Any person or organization who wishes to address the Authority regarding an item on the 
published agenda may make a request in writing or email to the Secretary-Treasurer. The 
request should indicate the agenda item to be addressed and the name of the proposed 
speaker(s). If such request is received two days in advance of a scheduled meeting, the 
delegation shall be permitted.  
 
Any person or organization requesting an opportunity to address the Authority regarding an 
item on the published agenda, but not having made a written request to do so in the 
timelines specified above, may appear before the meeting if approved by a majority of 
Members present. Delegations shall provide twenty-three copies of any handouts and one 
electronic copy of any electronic presentation to the Secretary-Treasurer 15 minutes prior 
to the start of the meeting.  
 
Except by leave of the Chair or appeal by the leave of the meeting, delegations shall be 
limited to one (1) speaker for not more than 10 minutes. 
 
Speakers will be requested not to repeat what has been said by previous speakers at the 
meeting. A returning delegation will only be allowed to speak again if new, relevant 
information has become available since their previous presentation. The Chair may choose 
to end a returning delegation’s presentation if, in the opinion of the Chair, the new 
information being presented is not relevant to a decision facing the General Membership. 
 

12.  Annual Meeting 
The Authority shall designate one meeting of the General Membership each year as the 
annual meeting and shall include the following items on the agenda, in addition to the 
normal course of business: 

• Appointment of auditor  
• Appointment of solicitor(s)  
• Appointment of signing officers 

13.  Meetings with Closed “In Camera” Sessions  
Every meeting of the General Membership, Executive Committee, Advisory Board or other 
committee, if applicable, shall be open to the public as per Section 15(3) of the Act, subject 
to the exceptions set out below. Meetings may be closed to the public if the subject matter 
being considered relates to: 

a) The security of the property of the Authority; 
b) Personal matters about an identifiable individual, including employees of the Authority; 
c) A proposed or pending acquisition or disposition of land by the Authority; 
d) Labour relations or employee negotiations; 
e) Litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals (e.g. 

Local Planning Appeal Tribunal), affecting the Authority; 
f) Advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege; 
g) A matter in respect of which the General Membership, Executive Committee, Advisory 

Board or committee or other body may hold a closed meeting under another act; 
h) Information explicitly supplied in confidence to the Authority by Canada, a province or 

territory or a Crown agency of any of them; 
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i) A trade secret or scientific, technical, commercial, financial or labour relations 
information, supplied in confidence to the Authority, which, if disclosed, could 
reasonably be expected to prejudice significantly the competitive position or interfere 
significantly with the contractual or other negotiations of a person, group of persons, 
or organization; 

j) A trade secret or scientific, technical, commercial or financial information that belongs 
to the Authority and has monetary value or potential monetary value; or 

k) A position, plan, procedure, criteria or instruction to be applied to any negotiations 
carried on or to be carried on by or on behalf of the Authority. 

The Authority shall close a meeting if the subject matter relates to the consideration of a 
request under MFIPPA. The General Manager is the head of an institution for the purposes 
of MFIPPA. 

Before holding a meeting or part of a meeting that is to be closed to the public, the 
Members shall state by resolution during the open session of the meeting that there will be 
a meeting closed to the public and the general nature of the matter to be considered at the 
closed meeting. Once matters have been dealt with in a closed meeting, the General 
Membership shall reconvene in an open session.  
 
The General Membership shall not vote during a meeting that is closed to the public, 
unless: 

a) The meeting meets the criteria outlined in this by-law to be closed to the public; and 
b) The vote is for a procedural matter or for giving directions or instructions to Officers, 

employees or agents of the Authority. 
 

Any materials presented to the General Membership during a closed meeting shall be 
returned to the Secretary-Treasurer prior to departing from the meeting and shall be treated 
in accordance with the Authority’s procedures for handling confidential material. 
 
A meeting of the Authority, Executive Committee, Advisory Board or other committee may 
also be closed to the public if: 

a) The meeting is held for the purpose of educating or training the Members, and 
b) At the meeting, no Member discusses or otherwise deals with any matter in a way 

that materially advances the business or decision-making of the authority, the 
Executive Committee, Advisory Board or other committee. 

14.   Voting 
In accordance with Section 16 of the Act: 

a) Each Member, including the Chair, is entitled to one vote, and 
b) A majority vote of the Members present at any meeting is required upon all matters 

coming before the meeting.  
 
If any Member who is qualified to vote abstains from voting, they shall be deemed to have 
voted neither in favour nor opposed to the question, which will not alter the number of votes 
required for a majority.  
 
On a tie vote, the motion is lost. 
 
Interrelated motions shall be voted on in the order specified in Robert’s Rules of Order. 
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Unless a Member requests a recorded vote, a vote shall be by a show of hands or such 
other means as the Chair may call.  
 
If a Member present at a meeting at the time of the vote requests immediately before or 
after the taking of the vote that the vote be recorded, each Member present taken by 
alphabetical surname with the Chair voting last, except a Member who is disqualified from 
voting by any Act, shall announce his or her vote openly answering “yes” or “no” to the 
question, and the Secretary-Treasurer shall record each vote. 
 
At the meeting of the Authority at which the Non-Matching Levy is to be approved, the 
Secretary-Treasurer shall conduct the vote to approve of Non-Matching Levy by a 
Weighted Majority of the Members present and eligible to vote, in accordance with Ontario 
Regulation 139/96 with the weighting for the City of Ottawa capped at 50%.  
 
Where a question under consideration contains more than one item, upon the request of 
any Member, a vote upon each item shall be taken separately.  
 
Except as provided in Section B, Paragraph 6 of this By-law (Election of Chair and Vice-
Chair), no vote shall be taken by ballot or by any other method of secret voting, and every 
vote so taken is of no effect. 

15.   Notice of Motion  
Written notice of motion to be made at an Authority, Executive Committee, Advisory Board 
or committee meeting may be given to the Secretary-Treasurer by any Member of the 
Authority not less than seven business days prior to the date and time of the meeting and 
shall be forthwith placed on the agenda of the next meeting. The Secretary-Treasurer shall 
include such notice of motion in full in the agenda for the meeting concerned.  
 
Recommendations included in reports of Advisory Boards or committees that have been 
included in an agenda for a meeting of the General Membership or Executive Committee (if 
applicable), shall constitute notice of motion for that meeting. 
 
Recommendations included in staff reports that have been included in an agenda for a 
meeting of the General Membership or Executive Committee (if applicable), shall constitute 
notice of motion for that meeting. 
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, any motion or other business may be introduced for 
consideration of the Authority provided that it is made clear that to delay such motion or 
other business for the consideration of an appropriate Advisory Board or committee would 
not be in the best interest of the Authority and that the introduction of the motion or other 
business shall be upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the Members of the Authority 
present.  

16.   Duties of the Meeting Chair 
It shall be the duty of the Chair, with respect to any meetings over which he/she presides, 
to: 

a) Preserve order and decide all questions of order, subject to appeal; and without 
argument or comment, state the rule applicable to any point of order if called upon 
to do so;  

b) Ensure that the public in attendance does not in any way interfere or disrupt the 
proceedings of the Members;  

c) Ask any individual that is disrupting the proceedings of the Members to leave; 
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d) Adjourn the meeting without question, in the case of grave disorder arising in the 
meeting room; 

e) Receive and submit to a vote all motions presented by the Members, which do not 
contravene the rules of order or regulations of the Authority;  

f) Decline to put to a vote motions which infringe upon the rules of procedure, or 
which are beyond the jurisdiction of the Authority; 

g) Enforce on all occasions the observance of order and decorum among the 
Members; 

h) Announce the results of the vote on any motions so presented;  
i) Adjourn the meeting when business is concluded. 

17.   Conduct of Members 
Members shall maintain a high standard for conduct and at all times comply with applicable 
laws and the Authority’s Member Code of Conduct (Appendix 1). 

No Member at any meeting of the Authority shall: 

a) Speak in a manner that is discriminatory in nature based on an individual’s race, 
ancestry, place of origin, citizenship, creed, gender, sexual orientation, age, colour, 
marital status, family status or disability;  

b) Leave their seat or make any noise or disturbance while a vote is being taken or 
until the result is declared; 

c) Interrupt a Member while speaking, except to raise a point of order or a question of 
privilege;  

d) Speak disrespectfully or use offensive words against the Authority, the Members, 
staff, or any member of the public;  

e) Speak beyond the question(s) under debate;  
f) Resist the rules of order or disobey the decision of the Chair on the questions or 

order or practices or upon the interpretation of the By-laws. 
 
 

18.   Polls 
Polls of Members may be undertaken with permission from the Chair for items of business 
considered to be urgent or an emergency and where it is considered impractical to convene 
a special meeting. Such polls may be conducted via conferencing methods (e.g. 
teleconference) or individual notices (e.g. electronic survey methods). 

19.   Minutes of Meetings 
The Secretary-Treasurer shall undertake to have a recording secretary in attendance at 
meetings of the Authority, Executive Committee, Advisory Boards or committees. The 
recording secretary shall make a record in the form of minutes of the meeting proceedings 
and in particular shall record all motions considered at the meeting.  
 
If a recording secretary is not present in a closed session, the Secretary-Treasurer shall 
take notes of any direction provided, for endorsement by the Chair and Vice-Chair.  
 
Minutes of all meetings shall include the time and place of the meeting and a list of those 
present and shall state all motions presented together with the mover and seconder and 
voting results.  
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The Secretary-Treasurer or designate shall include draft minutes of the previous meeting 
available to each Member of the Authority at the same time as agendas for the next 
meeting are distributed.  
 
After the minutes have been approved by resolution, original copies shall be signed by the 
Chair and Secretary-Treasurer and copies of all non-confidential minutes shall be posted 
on the Authority’s website. Such minutes shall also be available for review by any member 
of the public at the Authority’s administration centre or provided in alternative formats, in 
accordance with the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, if requested by 
interested parties.  
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E. Approval of By-law  
 
The following motion was passed at the Authority meeting of September 27, 2018: 
 
Motion: 3-180927 
 
Moved by: Sharon Mousseau 
 
Seconded by: Judy Brown 
 

That the Board of Directors of the Rideau Valley Conservation Authority repeal RVCA’s 
Administrative Resolutions and Procedures for Board Meetings and adopt By-Law No. 1 
(Administrative By-Law) including Appendices 1, 2, 3, 4-A and 4-B (Member Code of 
Conduct, Member Conflict of Interest Policy, Procedure for Election of Officers, Terms of 
Reference for Executive Committee and Terms of Reference for Audit Committee). 

 
 
           CARRIED  
 
 
 
 
The following motion was passed at the Authority meeting of April 25, 2019: 
 
Motion: 2-190425 
 
Moved by: George Darouze 
 
Seconded by: Anne Robinson 
 

THAT the Board of Directors of the Rideau Valley Conservation Authority approve the 
attached revised Terms of Reference for the RVCA’s Executive Committee which is 
Appendix 4-A of RVCA’s By-law No. 1 (Administrative Bylaw). 

 
 
           CARRIED  
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F. Appendices to the Administrative By-law 

Appendix 1 – Member Code of Conduct 

1. Background 
The Rideau Valley Conservation Authority demands a high level of integrity and ethical 
conduct from its General Membership. The Authority’s reputation has relied upon the good 
judgement of individual Members. A written Code of Conduct helps to ensure that all 
Members share a common basis for acceptable conduct. Formalized standards help to 
provide a reference guide and a supplement to legislative parameters within which 
Members must operate. Further, they enhance public confidence that Members operate 
from a base of integrity, justice and courtesy.  
 
The Member Code of Conduct is a general standard. It augments the laws which govern 
the behaviour of Members, and it is not intended to replace personal ethics.  
 
This Member Code of Conduct will also assist Members in dealing with confronting 
situations not adequately addressed or that may be ambiguous in Authority resolutions, 
regulations, or policies and procedures.  

2. General  
All Members, whether municipal councillors or appointed representatives of a municipality, 
are expected to conduct themselves in a manner that reflects positively on the Authority. 
  
All Members shall serve in a conscientious and diligent manner. No Member shall use the 
influence of office for any purpose other than for the exercise of his/her official duties.  
 
It is expected that Members adhere to a Code of Conduct that:  

i. Upholds the mandate, vision and mission of the Authority; 
ii. Considers the Authority’s jurisdiction in its entirety, including their appointing 

municipality; 
iii. Respects confidentiality; 
iv. Approaches all Authority issues with an open mind, with consideration for the 

organization as a whole;  
v. Exercises the powers of a Member when acting in a meeting of the Authority; 
vi. Respects the democratic process and respects decisions of the General 

Membership, Executive Committee, Advisory Boards and other committees; 
vii. Declares any direct or indirect pecuniary interest or conflict of interest when one 

exists or may exist; and 
viii. Conducts oneself in a manner which reflects respect and professional courtesy and 

does not use offensive language in or against the Authority or against any Member 
or any Authority staff. 

3. Gifts and Benefits  
Members shall not accept fees, gifts, hospitality or personal benefits that are connected 
directly or indirectly with the performance of duties, except compensation authorized by 
law.  
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4. Confidentiality  
The Members shall be governed at all times by the provisions of the Municipal Freedom 
and Information and Protection of Privacy Act. 
 
All information, documentation or deliberations received, reviewed, or taken in a closed 
meeting are confidential.  
 
Members shall not disclose or release by any means to any member of the public, either in 
verbal or written form, any confidential information acquired by virtue of their office, except 
when required by law to do so.  
 
Members shall not permit any persons, other than those who are entitled thereto, to have 
access to information which is confidential.  
 
In the instance where a Member vacates their position on the General Membership they will 
continue to be bound by MFIPPA requirements. 
 
Particular care should be exercised in protecting information such as the following:  

i. Human Resources matters;  
ii. Information about suppliers provided for evaluation that might be useful to other 

suppliers;  
iii. Matters relating to the legal affairs of the Authority;  
iv. Information provided in confidence from an Aboriginal community, or a record that 

if released could reasonably be expected to prejudice the conduct of relations 
between an Aboriginal community and the Authority; 

v. Sources of complaints where the identity of the complainant is given in confidence; 
vi. Items under negotiation;  
vii. Schedules of prices in tenders or requests for proposals;  
viii. Appraised or estimated values with respect to the Authority’s proposed property 

acquisitions or dispositions; 
ix. Information deemed to be “personal information” under MFIPPA. 

 
The list above is provided for example and is not exhaustive.  

5. Use of Authority Property  
No Member shall use for personal purposes any Authority property, equipment, supplies, or 
services of consequence other than for purposes connected with the discharge of Authority 
duties or associated community activities of which the Authority has been advised. 

6. Work of a Political Nature  
No Member shall use Authority facilities, services or property for his/her election or re-
election campaign to any position or office within the Authority or otherwise. 

7. Conduct at Authority Meetings  
During meetings of the Authority, Members shall conduct themselves with decorum. 
Respect for delegations and for fellow Members requires that all Members show courtesy 
and not distract from the business of the Authority during presentations and when others 
have the floor.  
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8. Influence on Staff  
Members shall be respectful of the fact that staff work for the Authority as a whole and are 
charged with making recommendations that reflect their professional expertise and 
corporate perspective, without undue influence.  

9. Business Relations  
No Member shall borrow money from any person who regularly does business with the 
Authority unless such person is an institution or company whose shares are publicly traded 
and who is regularly in the business of lending money.  
 
No Member shall act as a paid agent before the Authority, the Executive Committee or an 
Advisory Board or committee of the Authority, except in compliance with the terms of the 
Municipal Conflict of Interest Act. 

10. Encouragement of Respect for the Authority and its Regulations 
Members shall represent the Authority in a respectful way and encourage public respect for 
the Authority and its Regulations.  

11. Harassment  
It is the policy of the Authority that all persons be treated fairly in the workplace in an 
environment free of discrimination and of personal and sexual harassment. Harassment of 
another Member, staff or any member of the public is misconduct. Members shall follow the 
Authority’s Workplace Violence and Harassment Policy as approved from time-to-time. 
 
Examples of harassment that will not be tolerated include: verbal or physical abuse, 
threats, derogatory remarks, jokes, innuendo or taunts related to an individual’s race, 
religious beliefs, colour, gender, physical or mental disabilities, age, ancestry, place of 
origin, marital status, source of income, family status or sexual orientation. The Authority 
will also not tolerate the display of pornographic, racist or offensive signs or images; 
practical jokes that result in awkwardness or embarrassment; unwelcome invitations or 
requests, whether indirect or explicit and any other prohibited grounds under the provisions 
of the Ontario Human Rights Code. 

12. Breach of Member Code of Conduct  
Should a Member breach the Code of Conduct, they shall advise the Chair in writing, with a 
copy to the Secretary-Treasurer, as soon as possible after the breach. 
  
Should a Member allege that another Member has breached the Code of Conduct, the said 
breach shall be communicated to the Chair in writing, with a copy to the Secretary-
Treasurer. In the absence of the Chair, or if a Member alleges that the Chair has breached 
the Code of Conduct, the said breach shall be communicated to the Vice-Chair in writing, 
with a copy to the Secretary-Treasurer.  
 
Should a member of the public or a municipality allege that a Member has breached the 
Code of Conduct, the party making the allegation will be directed to follow the notification 
procedure outlined above.  
 
Any breach, or alleged breach, of the Code of Conduct shall be investigated in accordance 
with the Enforcement of By-laws and Policies procedure outlined or referred to in the 
Authority’s Administrative By-law.  
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Appendix 2 – Member Conflict of Interest Policy 

1. Municipal Conflict of Interest Act 
The Authority Members commit themselves and the Authority to ethical, businesslike, and 
lawful conduct when acting as the General Membership. The Authority is bound by the 
Municipal Conflict of Interest Act. This appendix to the by-law is intended to assist 
Members in understanding their obligations. Members are required to review the Municipal 
Conflict of Interest Act on a regular basis.  

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest 
Where a Member, either on his or her own behalf or while acting for, by, with or through 
another, has any pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in any matter and is present at a 
meeting of the Authority, Executive Committee, Advisory Board or committee at which the 
matter is the subject of consideration, the Member: 

a) Shall, prior to any consideration of the matter at the meeting, disclose the pecuniary 
interest and the general nature thereof;  

b) Shall not take part in the discussion of, or vote on any question in respect of the 
matter; and, 

c) Shall not attempt in any way whether before, during or after the meeting to influence 
the voting on any such question.  

3. Chair’s Conflict of Interest or Pecuniary Interest  

Where the Chair of a meeting discloses a conflict of interest with respect to a matter under 
consideration at a meeting, another Member shall be appointed to chair that portion of the 
meeting by Resolution. 

4. Closed Meetings 
Where a meeting is not open to the public, a Member who has declared a conflict of 
interest shall leave the meeting for the part of the meeting during which the matter is under 
consideration.  

5. Member Absent 
Where the interest of a Member has not been disclosed by reason of their absence from 
the particular meeting, the Member shall disclose their interest and otherwise comply at the 
first meeting of the Authority, Executive Committee, Advisory Board or Committee, as the 
case may be, attended by them after the particular meeting.  

6. Disclosure Recorded in Minutes 
The recording secretary shall record in reasonable detail the particulars of any disclosure of 
conflict of interest or pecuniary interest made by Members and whether the Member 
withdrew from the discussion of the matter. Such record shall appear in the minutes/notes 
of that particular meeting of the General Membership, Executive Committee, Advisory 
Board or committee, as the case may be. 

7. Breach of Member Conflict of Interest Policy 
Should a Member breach the Conflict of Interest Policy, they shall advise the Chair in 
writing, with a copy to the Secretary-Treasurer, as soon as possible after the breach. 
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Should a Member allege that another Member has breached the Conflict of Interest Policy, 
the said breach shall be communicated to the Chair in writing, with a copy to the Secretary-
Treasurer.  
 
In the absence of the Chair, or if a Member alleges that the Chair has breached the Conflict 
of Interest Policy, the said breach shall be communicated to the Vice-Chair in writing, with a 
copy to the Secretary-Treasurer. 
 
Should a member of the public or a municipality allege that a Member has breached the 
Conflict of Interest Policy, the party making the allegation will be directed to follow the 
notification procedure outlined above.  
 
Any breach, or alleged breach, of the Conflict of Interest Policy shall be investigated in 
accordance with the Enforcement of By-laws and Policies procedure outlined or referred to 
in the Authority’s Administrative By-law. 

  

41



30 | P a g e   
A p r i l  1 6 ,  2 0 2 0  –  P r o p o s e d  A m e n d m e n t s  

 

Appendix 3 – Procedure for Election of Officers 

1. Voting  
Voting shall be by secret ballot and no Members may vote by proxy. 

2. Acting Chair 
The General Membership shall appoint a person, who is not a voting Member, as Acting 
Chair or Returning Officer, for the purpose of Election of Officers. 

3. Scrutineer(s)  
The appointment of one or more scrutineers is required for the purpose of counting ballots, 
should an election be required. All ballots shall be destroyed by the scrutineers afterwards. 
The Acting Chair shall call a motion for the appointment of one or more persons, who are 
not Members of the Authority, to act as scrutineers.  

4. Election Procedures  
The Acting Chair shall advise the Members that the election will be conducted in 
accordance with the Act as follows:  

 
a) The elections shall be conducted in the following order: 

i. Election of the Chair, who shall be a Member of the Authority 
ii. Election of the Vice-chair, who shall be a Member of the Authority. 

 
b) The Acting Chair shall ask for nominations to each position; 

 
c) Only current Members of the Authority who are present may vote; 
 
d) Nominations shall be called three (3) times and will only require a mover; 
 
e) The closing of nominations shall require both a mover and a seconder;  
 
f) Each Member nominated shall be asked to accept the nomination. The Member 

must be present to accept the nomination unless the Member has advised the 
Secretary-Treasurer in writing or by email in advance of the election of their 
willingness to accept the nomination.  

 
If one Nominee: 

g) If only one nominee, the individual shall be declared into the position by 
acclamation. 

 
If More than One Nominee: 
 

h) In the event of an election, each nominee shall be permitted not more than three (3) 
minutes to speak for the office, in the order of the alphabetical listing by surnames.  
 

i) Upon the acceptance by nominees to stand for election to the position of office, 
ballots shall be distributed to the Members by the scrutineers for the purpose of 
election and the Acting Chair shall ask the Members to write the name of one 
individual only on the ballot. 

 
j) The scrutineers shall collect the ballots, leave the meeting to count the ballots, 

return and advise the Acting Chair who was elected with more than 50% of the vote. 
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A majority vote shall be required for election. If there are more than two nominees, and 
upon the first vote no nominee receives the majority required for election, the name of the 
person with the least number of votes shall be removed from further consideration for the 
office and new ballots shall be distributed. In the case of a vote where no nominee receives 
the majority required for election and where two or more nominees are tied with the least 
number of votes, a special vote shall be taken to decide which one of such tied nominees’ 
names shall be dropped from the list of names to be voted on in the next vote.  
 
Should there be a tie vote between two remaining candidates, new ballots shall be 
distributed and a second vote held. Should there still be a tie after the second ballot a third 
vote shall be held. Should there be a tie after the third vote, the election of the office shall 
be decided by lot drawn by the Acting Chair or designate. 
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Appendix 4-A – Terms of Reference for Executive Committee 

1. Purpose 
The Authority shall maintain a standing Executive Committee to: 

• Hold hearings under Section 28 of the Act. The Executive Committee shall evaluate 
the information presented at a hearing by both Conservation Authority staff and the 
applicant and decide whether the application will be approved with or without 
conditions or refused, or if a permit will be cancelled. Applicants can appeal 
decisions of the Executive Committee to the Minister.  

• Undertake an annual performance appraisal of the General Manager / Secretary-
Treasurer. The Executive Committee shall work collaboratively with the General 
Manager / Secretary-Treasurer to set annual performance objectives and then 
review the General Manager / Secretary-Treasurer’s performance in achieving 
those objectives. 

2. Membership  
The Executive Committee shall consist of the Chair, Vice-Chair and three other Members, 
such that the Committee is comprised of at least one Member from the City of Ottawa. The 
Chair and Vice-Chair of the Authority shall be the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Executive 
Committee in accordance with Section 19(2) of the Act.  

Appointment of Members to the Executive Committee shall be made by the Chair, subject 
to approval by the General Membership.  

The Authority shall appoint an Executive Committee at the Annual meeting of the General 
Membership each year.  

3. Meeting Procedures  
Resolutions and policies governing the operation of the Authority shall be observed in all 
Executive Committee meetings. 

The Executive Committee shall hold hearings in accordance with the Authority’s Rules of 
Procedure for hearings as approved by the General Membership from time-to-time as well 
as other applicable laws including the Statutory Powers Procedure Act under which the 
Executive Committee is considered an Administrative Tribunal. 

4. Frequency of Meetings  
Meetings shall generally be held the second Thursday of the month as required.  
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Appendix 4-B – Terms of Reference for Audit Committee 

1. Purpose  
The Authority shall maintain a standing Audit Committee to ensure adequate financial 
systems, internal controls and reporting are in place for financial soundness of the 
Authority, to meet annually with the auditors before the General Membership receives and 
approves the Financial Statements and Report of the Auditor for the preceding year, and to 
address other specific financial matters as required. 

The Audit Committee shall report to the General Membership, presenting any 
recommendations made by the Committee.   

2. Membership  
The Audit Committee shall consist of the Chair, Vice-Chair and three other Members, such 
that the Committee is comprised of at least one Member from the City of Ottawa. The Chair 
and Vice-Chair of the Authority shall be the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Audit Committee.  

Appointment of Members to the Audit Committee shall be made by the Chair, subject to 
approval by the General Membership.  

The Authority shall appoint an Audit Committee at the Annual meeting of the General 
Membership each year.  

3. Meeting Procedures  
Resolutions and policies governing the operation of the Authority shall be observed in all 
Audit Committee meetings. 

4. Frequency of Meetings  
Meetings shall be held at the call of the Chair. The Committee shall normally meet in 
February or March with the Auditors to review draft Financial Statements and Report of the 
Auditor, and thereafter as required.  
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7.0  Financial Reports for the Year Ending December 31, 2019  
  Report #: 03-200423 
         
To:  RVCA Board of Directors  
From:  Sarah Wayne 

Manager of Finance 
Date:   February 20, 2020 
 
 
Recommendation:  
 
THAT the Board of Directors of the Rideau Valley Conservation Authority review 
and receive the Unaudited Revenue and Expenditure Reports and Unaudited 
Statement of Financial Position for the year ending December 31, 2019. 
 
 
Note: This Staff Report was originally on the agenda for RVCA’s February 27, 2020 
Board of Directors meeting which had to be cancelled due to inclement weather (no 
quorum). There was then no Board of Directors meeting in March because of physical 
distancing requirements under Ontario’s State of Emergency due to COVID-19.  

 
Purpose 
To present draft year-end financial reports to the Board of Directors for review prior to 
the Auditor presenting audited Financial Statements for approval in March.   
 
Background 
Draft year-end financial reports are presented to the Board of Directors in February to 
provide timely insight into the financial results of the Authority prior to the Auditor 
presenting audited Financial Statements in March. By providing year-end financial 
information in February, in a format that is in keeping with the format of RVCA’s budget 
and interim financial reports, it enables the Board to review and analyze information in 
advance of the Auditor’s presentation in March.  
 
Attached are three financial reports. The first shows revenues and expenditures for the 
year ending December 31, 2019. In this document, revenues and expenditures are 
presented against the 2019 approved budget. A second attachment provides a side-by-
side version of revenues and expenses by program. The third attachment is a 
Statement of Financial Position (Balance Sheet) as at December 31, 2019.  
 
 
 
 

 For Information 
 For Direction 
X For Adoption 
X Attachments – 6 pages 
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Analysis 
The attached reports show an operational surplus of $554,551 before discretionary 
reserve transfers, which is approximately 4.7% of the budget. At a high level, the 
surplus is due to: 

• A significant increase in program revenue in many areas, particularly Planning 
Advisory and Regulatory Services; and 

• A continued effort to reduce non-staff costs in all areas to improve our financial 
position. 

The attached report indicates revenue and expenditure variance within certain programs 
compared to the 2019 budget. Many of these variances have corresponding increases 
or decreases in external funding and therefore have no effect on the municipal levy. A 
summary of these variances is below. 
 
Revenues and Expenses 
 
Watershed Science and Engineering Services 

o Flood Erosion and Drought Studies undertook a slope stability study, funded by 
the City of Ottawa, in the amount of $420,000.  

o The major component of Water Control Infrastructure Operations is Rideau River 
Ice Management, which is fully funded by the Province and a special levy to the 
City of Ottawa. Revenue and expenditure for this program exceeded budget by 
$704,000. 

o Aquatic and Terrestrial Habitat Monitoring saw a program revenue increase of 
$34,000, while costs decreased by $50,000 due to staff resources being 
allocated to other programs.  
 

Planning Advisory and Regulatory Services 
o Site Specific Plan Review saw a $85,000 increase in program revenue due to a 

higher level of activity, with a decrease in expenditure of $100,000 as staff time 
was spread to other programs that were also experiencing an increase in activity.  

o Section 28 Conservation Authorities Act saw a $60,000 increase in program 
revenue due to a higher level of activity, with a corresponding $80,000 increase 
in expenditure. 

o Part VIII Building Code Act saw a $128,000 increase in program revenue (a 24% 
increase) due to significantly higher activity. There was an increase in 
expenditure of only $45,000 as existing staff covered much of the extra effort.  
Note that we are required to transfer surplus from this program to a reserve. 

  
Stewardship Services 

o Clean Water Program experienced revenue and expenses both under budget by  
$175,000 (35%). We have $123,000 in grants that have been allocated, but not 
yet disbursed.   

 
Conservation Land Management Services 

o Overall program revenue and expenses were very close to budget.  
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Corporate Services 
o Management and Members reduced travel and other expenditures by $15,000, 

more than offsetting the loss of Section 39 funding. 
o Finance and Administration recognized $125,000 of interest income, which had 

been budgeted at only $40,000, as has been our practice for the last number of 
years, in an effort to reduce or eliminate reliance on interest income for our 
operating budget. 

o Communications had a $66,000 decrease in expenditures due to a partial staff 
vacancy and the postponement of some key projects. 

 
Capital Projects 

o Revenue for capital projects is $212,000 lower than budget due to projects not 
being initiated as expected by third parties. Spending on capital projects was 
similarly down, but all projects were of an operating expense nature rather than a 
capital asset nature.  For this reason, expenses for capital projects show as 
being $680,000 over budget.   This year’s projects were done on a pay-for-
services basis where we do not retain ownership. For these projects, revenues 
and costs run through operations. For the projects where we retain ownership, 
costs get capitalized and therefore do not appear in operations. For both types of 
projects, the end effect on the Authority’s accumulated surplus is the same.     

 
Internal Cost Recoveries 
 
Vehicles and Equipment 

o This year, recoveries from the Authority’s programs more than offset costs, due 
to a combination of lower maintenance costs and higher recovery rates. The 
surplus gets allocated to the reserve to fund the future replacement of assets.   

 
Statement of Financial Position (Balance Sheet) 
 

o Financial assets are up compared to last year by $1,073,000 due mainly to this 
year’s surplus and a higher Accounts Payable balance at year end.  There were 
two contractors who invoiced us for substantial work on capital projects at the 
end of the year.  

o Liabilities are up by $241,000 due mainly to the late-in-the-year invoicing by 
contractors, offset by the paydown of the capital lease obligation and the 
recognition of revenue that had been deferred last year. 

o Correspondingly, our net financial asset position has increased from $331,000 to 
$1,400,000. 

 
 
Input From Other Sources 
When this report was prepared, RVCA’s audit was well underway but not yet complete.  
At that time, the Auditors had not found any adjustments to recommend.  
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Financial Considerations 
See Analysis section 
 
Legal Considerations 
N/A 
 
Adherence to RVCA Policy 
The attached year-end financial reports were prepared in accordance with RVCA’s 
Deferred Revenue Policy. 
 
Link to Strategic Plan 
Supports Priority #3 under Strategic Direction #4:  
 

• Modernize financial processes, including budgeting and reporting, to increase 
automation, strengthen internal controls and provide timely and reliable data. 

 
Attachments: 

• Expenditure and Revenue Report (Draft) – For the Period Ending December 31, 
2019 - Compared to Budget 

• Expenditure and Revenue Report (Draft) – For the Period Ending December 31, 
2019 - By Program 

• Unaudited Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2019 
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Rideau Valley Conservation Authority

Expenditure and Revenue Report

For the period ending December 31, 2019
 Fiscal 2018 

Audited 

 2019 

Approved 

Budget 

 2019 Year to 

Date Actuals 

Revenue 10,488,693           10,765,201    11,858,108  

Watershed Sciences and Engineering Services 3,198,027             3,017,608      4,111,368    

Program Management 114,340                59,508           51,478         

Watershed Report Cards 184,859                164,610         165,396       

Drinking Water Source Protection 201,874                230,803         201,340       

Surface Water Quality Monitoring 375,059                475,715         456,808       

Hydrometric Monitoring and Forecasting 250,711                254,933         250,340       

Flood Erosion and Drought Studies 356,321                323,115         815,477       

Groundwater Monitoring 283,990                291,745         222,154       

Aquatic and Terrestrial Habitat Monitoring 423,160                410,185         444,635       

Water Control Infrastructure Operations 960,813                757,395         1,454,140    

Amortization 46,900                  49,600           49,600         

Planning Advisory and Regulatory Services 2,179,521             2,086,021      2,396,579    

Program Management 115,454                126,361         126,361       

Site Specific Plan Review 565,841                613,353         698,603       

Non-Site Specific Plan Input 181,366                173,266         168,630       

S. 28 Conservation Authorities Act 575,240                595,264         655,320       

S. 28 Conservation Authorities Act - Program Development 19,860                  20,135           20,135         

Part IV Clean Water Act 20,599                  7,800             3,830           

Part VIII Building Code Act 678,707                524,251         652,967       

Septic Re-Inspection Program 19,854                  22,889           68,033         

Amortization 2,600                    2,700             2,700           

Stewardship Services 1,744,847             1,647,034      1,468,519    

Program Management 143,184                147,733         147,733       

LRC - Storefront\General Stewardship 177,122                -                 -               

Private Land Forestry Assistance 733,107                646,315         637,045       

Clean Water Program 372,234                498,280         322,803       

Shoreline Stewardship Program 202,070                279,382         277,271       

Beaver Management 15,164                  6,000             6,000           

Ontario Rural Wastewater Centre 99,441                  66,723           75,066         

Amortization 2,525                    2,600             2,600           

Conservation Land Management Services 1,193,379             1,293,767      1,294,443    

Program Management 88,913                  87,986           87,986         

Land Donations/Acquisitions 4,207                    20,000           1,766           

Baxter Conservation Area 330,891                309,743         331,164       

Foley Mountain Conservation Area 280,932                297,679         324,448       

Other Developed Conservation Areas 222,666                286,635         270,816       

Other Conservation Lands 182,853                210,325         197,425       

Lease and Management Agreements 34,241                  32,000           31,437         

Amortization 48,675                  49,400           49,400         

Corporate Services 1,590,245             1,560,273      1,633,441    

Management and Members 290,671                298,211         293,251       

Finance and Administration 448,719                421,309         498,180       

Communications 306,142                275,470         276,104       

Foundation 84,615                  87,386           87,386         

Watershed Information Management System 200,461                228,655         229,278       

Headquarter Lease and Management 259,637                249,242         249,242       

DRAFT
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Internal Recoveries 273,810                268,999         274,218       

Amortization 269,614                254,300         254,300       

Internal Recoveries 4,196                    14,699           19,918         

Capital Projects 308,863                891,500         679,542       

Water Control Structures 308,863                891,500         679,542       

Expenses 9,427,315             9,850,116      11,064,161  

Watershed Sciences and Engineering Services 3,329,130             3,031,314      4,672,369    

Program Management 177,164                59,971           94,085         

Watershed Report Cards 203,429                165,073         141,836       

Drinking Water Source Protection 201,874                230,803         201,340       

Surface Water Quality Monitoring 320,871                476,179         435,097       

Hydrometric Monitoring and Forecasting 224,025                255,396         294,082       

Flood Erosion and Drought Studies 321,262                323,578         745,346       

Groundwater Monitoring 236,311                292,208         162,202       

Aquatic and Terrestrial Habitat Monitoring 405,973                410,649         346,280       

Water Control Infrastructure Operations 982,586                757,858         1,448,546    

Amortization 51,143                  49,600           107,225       

Planning Advisory and Regulatory Services 1,855,084             2,088,338      2,177,742    

Program Management 92,283                  126,824         153,333       

Site Specific Plan Review 459,358                613,817         504,326       

Non-Site Specific Plan Input 120,997                173,730         171,534       

S. 28 Conservation Authorities Act 554,559                595,727         673,176       

S. 28 Conservation Authorities Act - Program Development 40,594                  20,599           29,060         

Part IV Clean Water Act 20,599                  7,800             3,830           

Part VIII Building Code Act 544,000                524,251         569,935       

Septic Re-Inspection Program 19,957                  22,889           69,812         

Amortization 2,736                    2,700             2,736           

Stewardship Services 1,653,548             1,649,351      1,420,415    

Program Management 139,711                148,197         137,435       

LRC - Storefront\General Stewardship 159,592                -                 0                  

LRC - Production Centre 84,367                  -                 (0)                 

Private Land Forestry Assistance 595,476                646,778         623,299       

Clean Water Program 372,234                498,744         322,803       

Shoreline Stewardship Program 202,070                279,846         274,524       

Beaver Management 9,070                    6,463             2,559           

Ontario Rural Wastewater Centre 88,360                  66,723           57,127         

Amortization 2,667                    2,600             2,667           

Conservation Land Management Services 1,114,254             1,296,084      1,275,748    

Program Management 57,413                  88,449           101,876       

Land Donations/Acquisitions 4,207                    20,000           7,121           

Baxter Conservation Area 309,759                310,206         345,926       

Foley Mountain Conservation Area 265,735                298,142         280,990       

Other Developed Conservation Areas 204,099                287,098         252,838       

Other Conservation Lands 188,778                210,789         204,383       

Lease and Management Agreements 33,365                  32,000           33,184         

Amortization 50,898                  49,400           49,429         

Corporate Services 1,302,166             1,563,516      1,382,040    

Management and Members 265,241                298,674         284,262       

Finance and Administration 433,946                421,772         410,146       

Communications 150,844                276,396         210,320       

Foundation 77,111                  87,849           83,825         

Watershed Information Management System 185,061                229,118         214,245       

Headquarter Lease and Management 189,965                249,705         179,242       
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Internal Recoveries 152,098                200,480         160,882       

Common Cost (1,537)                   14,699           16,247         

Vehicles and Equipment (104,921)               (68,518)          (121,456)      

Amortization 263,003                254,300         278,148       

Gain on Disposal (4,447)                   -                 (12,057)        

Capital Projects 204,491                10,000           696,331       

Water Control Structures 204,491                10,000           696,331       

Non Pension Benefit Obligation 21,034                  21,034           (25,034)        

Non-Pension Benefit Obligation 21,034                  21,034           (25,034)        

Annual Surplus (Deficit) 1,061,379             915,085         793,947       

TCA, Reserves, and Debenture Activity

Assets Capitalized as TCA (243,866)               (915,000)        (175,144)      

Gain on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (4,447)                   -                 (12,057)        

Amortization 370,448                358,600         440,206       

Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 12,871                  -                 21,856         

Repayment of obligation under capital lease (263,667)               (274,667)        (274,667)      

Transfers from reserves 68,803                  35,000           88,500         

Required transfers to reserves (334,196)               (119,018)        (328,090)      

Operational Surplus before Discretionary Transfer to Reserves 667,325                0                    554,551       

Proposed Discretionary Transfers from Reserves -                        94,236         

Proposed Discretionary Transfers to Reserves (666,713)               (647,010)      

Increase/(decrease) in Unrestricted Surplus 612                       1,777           

Starting Unrestricted Surplus 99,676                  100,288         100,288       

Ending Unrestricted Surplus 100,288                100,288         102,065       
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Rideau Valley Conservation Authority

Expenditure and Revenue Report

For the period ending December 31, 2019 2019 Year to Date Actuals

Revenue Expense Surp/(Deficit)

Watershed Sciences and Engineering Services 4,111,368        3,976,038        135,330           

Program Management 51,478             94,085             (42,607)            

Watershed Report Cards 165,396           141,836           23,561             

Drinking Water Source Protection 201,340           201,340           (1)                     

Surface Water Quality Monitoring 456,808           435,097           21,711             

Hydrometric Monitoring and Forecasting 250,340           294,082           (43,742)            

Flood Erosion and Drought Studies 815,477           745,346           70,131             

Groundwater Monitoring 222,154           162,202           59,951             

Aquatic and Terrestrial Habitat Monitoring 444,635           346,280           98,355             

Water Control Infrastructure Operations 1,454,140        1,448,546        5,595               

Amortization 49,600             107,225           (57,625)            

Planning Advisory and Regulatory Services 2,396,579        2,177,742        218,837           

Program Management 126,361           153,333           (26,972)            

Site Specific Plan Review 698,603           504,326           194,277           

Non-Site Specific Plan Input 168,630           171,534           (2,904)              

S. 28 Conservation Authorities Act 655,320           673,176           (17,856)            

S.28 Conservation Authorities Act - Program Development 20,135             29,060             (8,925)              

Part IV-Clean Water Act 3,830               3,830               0                      

Part VIII - Building Code Act 652,967           569,935           83,032             

Septic Re-Inspection Program 68,033             69,812             (1,779)              

Amortization 2,700               2,736               (36)                   

Stewardship Services 1,468,519        1,420,415        48,104             

Program Management 147,733           137,435           10,299             

Private Land Forestry Assistance 637,045           623,299           13,746             

Clean Water Program 322,803           322,803           -                   

Shoreline Stewardship Program 277,271           274,524           2,747               

Beaver Management 6,000               2,559               3,441               

Ontario Rural Wastewater Centre 75,066             57,127             17,939             

Amortization 2,600               2,667               (67)                   

Conservation Land Management Services 1,294,443        1,275,748        18,695             

Program Management 87,986             101,876           (13,890)            

Land Donations / Acquisitions 1,766               7,121               (5,355)              

Baxter Conservation Area 331,164           345,926           (14,762)            

Foley Mountain Conservation Area 324,448           280,990           43,458             

Other Developed Conservation Areas 270,816           252,838           17,978             

Other Conservation Lands 197,425           204,383           (6,958)              

Lease and Management Agreements 31,437             33,184             (1,747)              

Amortization 49,400             49,429             (29)                   

Corporate Services 1,633,441        1,382,040        251,401           

Management and Members 293,251           284,262           8,989               

Finance and Administration 498,180           410,146           88,034             

Communications 276,104           210,320           65,784             

Foundation 87,386             83,825             3,561               

Watershed Information Management System 229,278           214,245           15,032             

Headquarters & Lease 249,242           179,242           70,000             

DRAFT
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Internal Recoveries 274,218           160,882           113,336           

Common Cost 19,918             16,247             3,671               

Vehicles and Equipment -                   (121,456)          121,456           

Amortization 254,300           278,148           (23,848)            

Gain on Disposal -                   (12,057)            12,057             

Capital Projects 679,542           696,331           (16,789)            

Water Control Structures 679,542           696,331           (16,789)            

Non Pension Benefit Obligation -                   (25,034)            25,034             

Non Pension Benefit Obligation -                   (25,034)            25,034             

11,858,108      11,064,161      793,947           

Assets Capitalized as TCA (175,144)          

Gain on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (12,057)            

Amortization 440,206           

Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 21,856             

Repayment of obligation under capital lease (274,667)          

Transfers from reserves 88,500             

Required transfers to reserves (328,090)          

Operational Surplus before Discretionary Transfer to Reserves 554,551           

Proposed Discretionary Transfers from Reserves 94,236             

Proposed Discretionary Transfers to Reserves (647,010)          

Increase/(decrease) in Unrestricted Surplus 1,777               

Starting Unrestricted Surplus 100,288           

Ending Unrestricted Surplus 102,065           
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Rideau Valley Conservation Authority

Statement of Financial Position (unaudited draft)

December 31 2019 2018

$ $

Financial Assets

Cash and Short Term Investments 6,239,127             5,165,686                      

Accounts Receivable 1,181,908             944,143                         

7,421,035             6,109,829                      

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,227,558             770,646                         

Vacation pay and sick leave entitlements 229,582                183,304                         

Deferred revenues 1,601,550             1,563,418                      

Non pension post retirement benefits 395,810                420,844                         

Obligation under capital lease 2,565,999             2,840,665                      

6,020,499             5,778,878                      

Net Financial Assets (Debt) 1,400,536             330,951                         

Non-Financial Assets

Tangible capital assets 10,930,490           11,205,350                    

Prepaid expenses 57,186                  57,964                           

10,987,675           11,263,314                    

Accumulated Surplus 12,388,211           11,594,265                    
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8.0 Proposed Year-End Reserve Transfers for 2019 
Report #: 4-200423

To: RVCA Board of Directors 
From: Sarah Wayne 

Manager of Finance 
Date: February 20, 2020 

Recommendation:  

THAT the Board of Directors of the Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 
approves the attached 2019 Proposed Reserve Transfers. 

Note: This Staff Report was originally on the agenda for RVCA’s February 27, 2020 
Board of Directors meeting which had to be cancelled due to inclement weather. 
There was then no Board of Directors meeting in March because of physical 
distancing requirements under Ontario’s State of Emergency due to COVID-19.  

Purpose 
To approve reserve transfers prior to completing audited Financial Statements for 2019. 

Background 
RVCA has four categories of reserves: capital reserves, a separate building life cycle 
reserve (required by the City of Ottawa), a working fund reserve, and program reserves. 
Surpluses realized in 2017 and 2018 through unexpectedly high user-fee activity and 
overall operational cost savings allowed RVCA to increase our total reserves from 
$1,856,751 at the end of 2016 to $3,129,291 at the end of 2018.  At the Board’s 
direction, these surpluses were strategically distributed amongst the reserves for a 
balanced approach to building capital and non-capital reserves. 

RVCA has twelve Capital Reserves plus a Building Lifecycle Reserve. As assets 
depreciate, these reserves are used to fund major maintenance or replacement, so it is 
important that capital reserves reach appropriate levels over time to adequately support 
asset management. In recent years, the Auditor has cautioned that RVCA’s Capital 
Reserves may be low in relation to its total tangible capital assets, a concern for many 
public sector entities. Over the two years from 2016 to 2018, we have transferred 
$384,925 into the Capital and Building Life Cycle Reserves, for combined balances of 
$1,436,006 at the end of 2018. In 2020, we will undertake the second phase of our 
asset management plan, at the completion of which we will have a map of reserve 
requirements to responsibly maintain the Authority’s capital assets.   

For Information 
 For Direction 
X For Adoption 
X Attachments – 1 page 
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At the end of 2016, the RVCA also had nine Program Reserves totaling $508,670 plus a 
general Working Fund Reserve of $297,000. These reserves are necessary for 
Management and the Board of Directors to be able to undertake strategic priorities and 
initiatives, take advantage of partnership and funding opportunities, and address and 
absorb unforeseen expenditures or decreases in projected revenue that can create 
year-end deficits (revenue stabilization). In recent years, the Auditor had cautioned that 
RVCA’s program reserves may be low in relation to its total operating expense. With 
surpluses in 2017 and 2018, RVCA was able to increase those reserves to a combined 
balance of $1,693,285 at the end of 2018.    

As seen in the year-end financial reports presented under Agenda Item 7.0, RVCA 
experienced a significant annual surplus for 2019. After accounting for our “below the 
line” items such as amortization, debenture repayment and required reserve transfers, 
the Board of Directors is left with approximately $647,000 for discretionary transfers. 
This opportunity to contribute to reserves in 2019 continues our movement toward a 
healthier reserve ratio and builds resilience to cyclical drops in user-fee activity.  
Management recommends allocating this year’s surplus to reserves as presented in the 
attached schedule.  

Analysis 
The attached chart shows the continuity of the reserve balances from last year to this 
year, with proposed 2019 transfers. The transfers highlighted in yellow are ones that are 
required or standard, totaling $328,090. The remaining proposed transfers, totaling 
$647,010 represent Management’s recommendations for building capital reserves and 
program reserves, along with a $355,000 allocation to the Working Fund Reserve. 
Management’s recommendations are designed to address long-standing challenges, 
support the implementation of strategic priorities and ensure that user fees, application 
fees and special funding stays within the program area it was intended to fund.  

Capital Reserves 
Transfers of $248,619 into ten of our twelve Capital Reserves is proposed including: 

o A proposed transfer of $50,000 to the Topographical Data Reserve. Staff have
identified the need to update our LIDAR imaging at the next opportunity.

Building Life Cycle Reserve 
Through RVCA’s debenture agreement with the City of Ottawa, RVCA is required to 
contribute $70,000 each year to this reserve to fund future maintenance costs of our 
office headquarters. This annual contribution is included in RVCA’s budget each year. 

Program Reserves 
Transfers of $301,481 into five Program Reserves are proposed including: 

o A transfer of $50,000 to Watershed Science and Engineering to help address
gaps identified through RVCA’s recent Watershed Hazard Characterization
Program review (costs still to be quantified).
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o A transfer of $150,000 to Planning and Regulations. Increasing this reserve has 
been a priority to mitigate inevitable periodic dips in fee-generation and mitigate 
possible litigation costs which are becoming an increasing issue for conservation 
authorities.  

 
Input From Other Sources 
N/A 
 
Financial Considerations 
See analysis section  
 
Legal Considerations 
Reserves required through legislation or signed agreements are in place. 
 
Adherence to RVCA Policy 
Proposed reserve transfers are in keeping with RVCA’s Reserve Policy while ensuring 
the Board of Directors makes strategic transfers at year-end to best support program 
needs and priorities. 
 
Link to Strategic Plan  
Supports Priority #3 under Strategic Direction #4:  
 

• Modernize financial processes, including budgeting and reporting, to increase 
automation, strengthen internal controls and provide timely and reliable data. 

 
Attachments  

o RVCA Reserves Continuity Schedule with 2019 Proposed Transfers 
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RVCA Reserves Continuity Schedule with 2019 Proposed Transfers

Balance 2019 Changes Balance
Description YE 2018 Decrease Increase YE 2019

Vehicles 129,848 67,161                   91,092           153,779
Workshop Equipment 107,272 21,339                   30,364           116,297
Trimble Equipment 24,098 4,163             28,261
Environmental Science Equipment 40,000 20,000           60,000
Water Control Stuctures 59,793 10,000           69,793
Britannia Water Control Structure 21,500           21,500
Conservation Areas Infrastructure 177,500 25,760                   151,740
Topographical Data 25,000 50,000           75,000
Flood Event Aerial Imaging 30,000 10,000           40,000
Drape Imagery Acquisition 13,500 3,500             17,000
Information Management System 66,100 8,476                     57,624
Mike 11 34,000 8,000             42,000

Subtotal 707,111 122,736                 248,619         832,994

Building Life Cycle Reserve 728,895 70,000           798,895

Part 8 Program 224,493 83,032           307,525
Watershed Science & Engineering 67,500 50,000           117,500
Stewardship 122,555 60,000                   510                63,065
LRC Production Centre 100,800 100,800
ORWC 107,463 17,939           125,402
Conservation Lands 91,443 91,443
Corporate Communications 90,491 90,491
Part IV 523 523
Planning & Regulations 333,017 150,000         483,017

Subtotal 1,138,285 60,000                   301,481         1,379,766

Working Fund Reserve 555,000 355,000         910,000

Total Reserves 3,129,291 182,736 975,100 3,921,655

Highlighted cells indicate required or standard transfers.

Capital Reserves

Program Reserves

Working Fund Reserve
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9.0 2019 Audited Financial Statements and Report of the Auditor 
Report #: 5-190423

To: RVCA Board of Directors 
From: Sarah Wayne 

Manager of Finance  
Date: April 16, 2020 

Recommendation: 

THAT the Board of Directors of the Rideau Valley Conservation Authority approve 
the attached Draft 2019 Audited Financial Statements and receive the Report of 
the Auditor. 

Purpose 
To review and approve the audited financial statements for the year 2019 and receive 
the Report of the Auditor. 

Background 
The firm of MNP LLP completed an audit of the RVCA in February 2020 and met with 
RVCA’s Audit Committee on March 10, 2020 to review the attached draft Financial 
Statements. Ian Murphy of MNP will attend our April Board meeting to present the draft 
Financial Statements and answer questions. 

Analysis 
Under Agenda Item 7.0, staff presented a detailed internal statement of operations 
which reported the same operating results as this set of Financial Statements, with one 
exception; there was an audit adjustment to increase the Non-Pension Post Retirement 
Benefit by $39,597. There were no changes to Program Revenues and Expenses. 
Operations for 2019 yielded a surplus of $754,350. The surplus was the result of two 
factors: a significant increase in program revenue in many areas, particularly Planning 
Advisory and Regulatory Services; and a continued effort to reduce non-staff costs in all 
areas to improve our financial position. After accounting for non-cash items, the result of 
the surplus was an increase in cash and investments of $666,605. 

Under Agenda Item 8.0, staff proposed net transfers to reserves of $975,100, leaving a 
decrease of $37,819 in unrestricted surplus. 

For Information 
 For Direction 
X For Adoption 

X Attachments – 34
pages 
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Input From Other Sources 
The Financial Statements were audited by MNP LLP and will be circulated to all 
municipalities in the watershed, the Minister and will be made available to the public.  
 
Financial Considerations 
Ending the year with a surplus provided the RVCA with an opportunity to increase both 
its capital and program reserves which had been recommended by the Auditor in 
previous years. This year’s reserve contributions made progress towards this long-term 
financial priority.  
 
Legal Considerations 
The appointment of auditors is in accordance with the Conservation Authorities Act and 
Section 11 of RVCA’s Administrative By-law.  
 
Specifically, Section 38 of the Act states: 

38 (1)  Every authority shall cause its accounts and transactions to be audited 
annually by a person licensed under the Public Accounting Act, 2004. 
R.S.O, 1990, c. C.27, s. 38 (1): 2004, c. 8, s. 46. 

      (3)  An authority shall, upon receipt of the auditor’s report of the examination 
of its accounts and transactions, forthwith forward a copy of the report to 
each participating municipality and to the Minister.  
R.S.O.  1990, c. C.27, s. 38 (3). 

 
Specifically, Section 11 of RVCA’s Administrative By-law states: 
 

11  The General Membership shall receive and approve the Audited Financial 
Statements and Report of the Auditor by March 31 of each year for the 
previous year. 

  
 The Authority shall forward copies of the Audited Financial Statements and 

Report of the Auditor to Participating Municipalities and the Minister in 
accordance with Section 38 of the Act and will make the Audited Financial 
Statements available to the public 

Adherence to RVCA Policy 
Approval of the audited Financial Statements is in accordance with RVCA’s 
Administrative By-law. 
 
Attachments: 

• Draft Audited Financial Statements (December 31, 2019) 
• 2019 Management Letter  
• 2019 Audit Findings Report 
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying financial statements of the Rideau Valley Conservation Authority are the 
responsibility of the Authority’s management and have been prepared in compliance with 
legislation, and in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards.  A summary 
of significant accounting policies are described in note 2 to the financial statements.  The 
preparation of financial statements necessarily involved the use of estimates based on 
management’s judgement, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period 
cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods. 
 
The Authority’s management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide 
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and 
recorded in compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial 
information is available on a timely basis for preparation of financial statements.  These systems 
are monitored and evaluated by management. 
 
The Audit Committee and management meet with the external auditors to review the financial 
statements and discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters.  The Board 
of Directors meets with management subsequently to review these same matters prior to the 
Board`s approval of the financial statements. 
 
The financial statements have been audited by MNP LLP, independent external auditors 
appointed by the Authority.  The accompanying Auditor’s Report outlines their responsibilities, 
the scope of their examination and their opinion on the Authority’s financial statements. 
 
 
   
Sommer Casgrain-Robertson, General Manager  
 
 
   
Sarah Wayne, Manager of Finance
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Independent Auditor's Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To the Members of Rideau Valley Conservation Authority:  
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Rideau Valley Conservation Authority (the "Authority"), which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019, and the statements of operations, changes in net 
financial assets, cash flows and the related schedule for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Authority as at December 31, 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Other Matter 
 
The financial statements of the Authority for the year ended December 31, 2018 were audited by another accounting 
firm who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on March 28, 2019. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Authority or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 
 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Authority’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Authority to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Cornwall, Ontario 
 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
 

March 26, 2020  Licensed Public Accountants 
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 Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 
 Statement of Financial Position  

 
December 31 

 
 
 2019  

 
 
 2018  

 
 

 
 $ 

 
 $ 

 
Financial Assets 
 

Cash   
Short term investments (note 3) 
Long term investments (note 3)     
Accounts receivable (note 4)     
 

 4,081,823 
 350,468 

1,400,000 
 1,588,744 

  
 3,415,218 
 300,000 

1,450,468 
 944,143 

 
 
  7,421,035 

 
 6,109,829 

 
  

 
 

 
 
Liabilities 
 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  
Vacation pay and other leave entitlements 
Deferred revenues (note 6)     
Non pension post retirement benefit obligation (note 7) 
Obligation under capital lease (note 9)     

 1,227,562 
 229,582 
 1,601,550 
 435,406 
 2,565,999 

 770,650 
 183,304 
 1,563,418 
 420,844 
 2,840,665 

 
 
  6,060,099 

 
 5,778,881  

 
  

 
 

 
 
Net Financial Assets   1,360,936 

 
 330,948 

 
  

 
 

 
Non-Financial Assets 

Tangible capital assets (note 10)  
Prepaid expenses     

 10,930,490 
 57,186 

 
 11,205,350 
 57,964 

 
  10,987,676 

 
 11,263,314 

 
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (note 15) 
 
Subsequent Events (note 20) 
 
Accumulated Surplus (note 11)   12,348,612 

 
 11,594,262 
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

  
 
 Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 
 Statement of Operations  

 
For the year ended December 31 

 
 (Note 17) 
 Budget 

 
 

2019  

 
 

2018  
 
 

 
 $ 

 
$  

 
$  

Revenues 
 

Municipal levies 
Special municipal levies      

Rideau River Ice Management 
Water Control Infrastructure < Reserve        

< Operation and maintenance 
Water Quality Monitoring 
Britannia Water Control Structure – Reserve 
 

Provincial Funding        
Ministry of Natural Resources     

< Operating Grant 
< Drinking Water Source Protection (note 13)      

Program revenues (Schedule 2)     
Watershed Sciences and Engineering Services 
Planning Advisory and Regulatory Services     
Stewardship Services 
Conservation Land Management Services     
Corporate Services              

Other income < capital projects      

5,833,355 
 

575,059 
10,000 
40,000 

194,000 
21,500 

 
 

242,687 
230,803 

 
273,425 

1,134,940 
963,633 
344,000 

41,800 
860,000 

5,833,355 
 

1,329,002 
10,000 
40,000 

161,084 
21,500 

 
 
 

125,286 
200,590 

 
773,696 

1,451,167 
785,117 
344,675 
134,594 
648,042 

    
5,647,004 

 
793,014 

10,000 
23,500 

- 
- 
 

 
242,687 
201,874 

 
472,485 

1,383,471 
972,112 
332,999 
110,684 
298,863 

 
Total Revenues 10,765,202 11,858,108 

 
10,488,693 

 
   

 
 

 
Expenditures 
 

Program expenditures (Schedule 3) 
Watershed Sciences and Engineering Services 
Planning Advisory and Regulatory Services     
Stewardship Services 
Conservation Land Management Services     
Corporate Services 

Non Pension Post Retirement Benefit Obligation      

3,031,315 
2,088,336 
1,649,352 
1,296,084 
1,763,995 

21,034 

4,672,369 
2,177,742 
1,420,415 
1,275,748 
1,542,922 

14,562 

 
3,329,129 
1,855,084 
1,653,548 
1,114,254 
1,454,266 

21,034 
 
 
Total Expenditures 9,850,116 11,103,758 

 
9,427,315 

 
 
Annual Surplus  
 
Accumulated Surplus, Beginning of Year 

915,086 

 
11,594,262 

754,350 

 
11,594,262 

 
1,061,378 

 
10,532,884 

 
 
Accumulated Surplus, End of Year  12,509,348 12,348,612 

 
11,594,262 
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

  
 
 Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 
 Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets 
 
 
For the year ended December 31 

 
 (Note 17) 
 Budget 

 
 
 2019  

 
 
 2018  

 
 

 
 $ 

 
 $  

 
 $  

 
Annual Surplus   915,086  754,350 

 
 1,061,378 

 
 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 
Amortization of buildings under capital lease 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets  
Change in prepaid expenses       
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets 
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets     

 
 212,287 
 146,313 
 (915,000) 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 293,892 
 146,313 
 (175,143) 
 778 
 (12,057) 
 21,855 

 
 224,134 
 146,313 
 (243,866) 
 (8,907) 
 (4,447) 
 12,872 

 
  (556,400)  275,638 

 
 126,099 

 
 
Increase in Net Financial Assets  358,686  1,029,988 

 
 1,187,477 

 
 
Net Financial Assets, Beginning of Year  330,948  330,948 

 
 (856,529) 

 
 
Net Financial Assets, End of Year  689,634  1,360,936 

 
 330,948 
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
  

 
 Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 
 Statement of Cash Flows  

 
For the year ended December 31 

 
 
 2019  

 
 
 2018  

 
 

 $  
 

 $ 
 
Operating Activities 
 

Annual surplus  
Amortization of tangible capital assets 
Amortization of buildings under capital lease 
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets     

 754,350 
 293,892 
 146,313 
 (12,057) 

 
 1,061,378 
 224,134 
 146,313 
 (4,447) 

 
  1,182,498 

 
 1,427,378 

 
Change in Working Capital 
 

Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses     
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  
Deferred revenues     
Vacation pay and other leave entitlements 
Non pension post retirement benefit obligation      

 
 (644,601) 
 778 
 456,912 
 38,132 
 46,278 
 14,562 

 
 (85,789) 
 (8,907) 
 65,282 
 (136,468) 
 (23,661) 
 21,034 

 
  (87,939) 

 
 (168,509) 

 
Net change in operating activities  1,094,559 

 
 1,258,869 

 
Capital Activities 
 

Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets 

 21,855 
 (175,143) 

 
 12,872 
 (243,866) 

 
Net investment in tangible capital assets  (153,288) 

 
 (230,994) 

 
Investing Activities 
 

(Purchase) redemption of short-term investments 
  
     (50,468)      100,000 

 
Financing Activities 
 

Capital lease payments 
Redemption (purchase) of long-term investments 

 (274,666) 
 50,468 

 
 (263,667) 

(100,000) 
 

Net change from financing activities  (224,198) 
 

 (363,667) 
 
 
Net Increase in Cash Resources 
 
Cash Resources, Beginning of Year 

 666,605  
  
 3,415,218 

 
 764,208 
 
 2,651,010 

Cash Resources, End of Year  4,081,823  3,415,218 
  
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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 Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2019  
 
 
1.  Status of the Authority 
 

The Rideau Valley Conservation Authority (the ‘Authority’) is established under the Conservation 
Authorities Act of Ontario to maintain and improve the quality of the valley environment through 
watershed planning, cooperative resource management and conservation awareness.  The Authority 
is exempt from income taxes. 

 
  
 
 
2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

The financial statements of the Rideau Valley Conservation Authority are the representations of 
management and have been prepared in all material respects in accordance with Canadian Public 
Sector Accounting Standards. 

 
Basis of Accounting 

 
The financial statements reflect financial assets, liabilities, operating revenues and expenditures, 
reserves, reserve funds and changes in investment in tangible capital assets of the Authority. 

 
The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.  The accrual basis of 
accounting records revenue as it is earned and measurable.  Expenditures are recognized as they 
are incurred and measurable based on receipt of goods and services and/or the creation of a legal 
obligation to pay.   

 
Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the 
provision of services.  They have useful lives extending beyond the current year, and are not intended 
for sale in the ordinary course of operations.  The change in non-financial assets during the year, 
together with the excess of revenues over expenses, provides the Change in Net Financial Assets for 
the year. 

 
Tangible Capital Assets 

 
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which include all amounts that are directly attributable to 
acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset.  The cost, less residual value, of 
the tangible capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as 
follows: 

  
 Estimated Useful Life 

 
Buildings  20 - 50 years 
Building under Capital Lease 50 years 
Infrastructure < Dams / Berms / Dykes 25 years 

< Bridges / Boardwalks 20 - 30 years 
< Vehicles 7 years 
< Machinery and Equipment 5 - 15 years 
< Computer and IT Equipment 5 years 
< Office and Audio Equipment 5 - 20 years 

 
Amortization is charged from the date of acquisition.  Assets under construction are not amortized 
until the asset is available for productive use. 

  

70



 

10 
 

 
 Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2019  
 
 
2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies / continued 
 

Tangible Capital Assets / continued 
 

When tangible capital assets are disposed of, either by way of a sale, destruction or loss, or 
abandonment of the asset, the asset’s net book value, historical cost less accumulated amortization, 
is written off.  Any resulting gain or loss, equal to the proceeds on disposal less the asset’s net book 
value, is reported on the statement of operations in the year of disposal.  Transfers of assets to third 
parties are recorded as an expense equal to the net book value of the asset as of the date of transfer. 

 
When conditions indicate that a tangible capital asset no longer contributes to the Authority’s ability to 
provide services or the value of the future economic benefits associated with the tangible capital asset 
are less than its net book value, and the decline is expected to be permanent, the cost and 
accumulated amortization of the asset are reduced to reflect the revised estimate of the value of the 
asset’s remaining service potential.  The resulting net adjustment is reported as an expense on the 
statement of operations. 

 
The Authority has a capitalization threshold of $5,000 so that individual capital assets of lesser value 
are expensed, unless they are pooled because, collectively, they have significant value, or for 
operating reasons. 

 
Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the date of receipt, 
and that fair value is also recorded as revenue.  Similarly, transfers of assets to third parties are 
recorded as an expense equal to the net book value of the assets as of the date of transfer. 

 
Leases 

 
Leases are classified as capital or operating leases.  Leases which transfer substantially all of the 
benefits and risks incidental to ownership of property are accounted for as capital leases.  All other 
leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related lease payments are charged to expenses 
as incurred. 

 
Pension and Employee Benefits 

 
The Authority accounts for its participation in the Ontario Municipal Employees Benefit Retirement 
System (‘OMERS’), a multi-employer public sector pension fund, as a defined benefit plan.  The 
OMERS plan specifies the retirement benefits to be received by employees based on length of service 
and pay rates. 

 
Employee benefits include vacation entitlement which are accrued as entitlements are they are earned 
in accordance with the Authority’s policy. 

 
The Authority provides Post-Retirement Benefits in the form of employer paid group insurance 
premiums commencing on retirement and payable until the attainment of age 65.  The annual cost of 
the benefit obligation will be charged as a program expenditure. 

 
  Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

The Authority considers cash and cash equivalents to be highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less. 
 

  
 

  

71



 

11 
 

 
 Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2019  
 
2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies / continued 

Deferred Revenues 
 

The Authority receives restricted contributions under the authority of Federal and Provincial legislation 
and Authority by-laws.  These funds by their nature are restricted in their use and until applied to 
applicable costs are recorded as deferred revenue.  Amounts applied to qualifying expenses are 
recorded as revenue in the fiscal period they are expended. 

 
Deferred revenue represents certain user charges and fees which have been collected but for which 
the related services have yet to be performed.  Deferred revenue also represents contributions that 
the Authority has received pursuant to legislation, regulation or agreement that may only be used for 
certain programs or in the completion of specific work.  These amounts are recognized as revenue in 
the fiscal year the services are performed or related expenses incurred. 

 
Revenue Recognition 

 
Municipal levies are recognized in the financial statements as revenues in the period in which they are 
levied.   
 
Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenues in the period in which 
events giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria 
have been met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made. 

 
The Authority defers recognition of user charges and fees which have been collected but for which the 
related services have yet to be performed.  These amounts will be recognized as revenues in the 
fiscal year the services are performed. 

 
Reserves 

 
Reserves for future expenditures and contingencies are established as required at the discretion of 
the Board members of the Authority.  Increases or decreases in these reserves are made by 
appropriations to or from operations. 

 
Investments  

 
Short-term and long-term investments are recorded at cost plus accrued interest.  If the market value 
of investments become lower than cost and the decline in value is considered to be other than 
temporary, the investments are written down to market value. 

 
Financial Instruments 

 
The Authority recognizes its financial instruments when the authority becomes party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instrument.  All financial instruments are initially recorded at their fair value. 

 
All financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost. 

 
Transaction costs are added to the carrying amount for those financial instruments subsequently 
measured at amortized cost. 
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 Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2019  
 
 
2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies / continued 
 

Financial Instruments / continued 
 
All financial assets are tested annually for impairment.  Management considers recent collection 
experience for the financial assets, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments 
in determining whether objective evidence of impairment exists.  Any impairment which is not 
considered temporary is recorded in the statement of operations.  Write-downs of financial assets at 
amortized costs to reflect losses in value are not reversed for subsequent increases in value. 
 
Measurement Uncertainty 

 
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures 
during the period.  Actual results could differ from these estimates.  These estimates are reviewed 
periodically and as adjustments become necessary, they are recorded in the financial statements in 
the period in which they become known. Significant estimates include estimated useful life of tangible 
capital assets, the valuation of allowances for doubtful accounts receivable, and future employment 
benefits. 
 

Contributed services 

 
Volunteers contribute significant time to the delivery of the Authority's programs. Due to the difficulty 
in determining the fair value of these contributions, contributed services are not recognized in the 
financial statements 

 
Corporate Services Program Revenues and Expenditures 

 
Internal charges are made to allocate common overhead expenses, payroll burden and vehicle 
charges to all program areas.  Actual expenditures are applied to these recovery revenues at year 
end which results in a net surplus or expenditure each year.  These net amounts are included in 
Corporate Services - Administration and Finance - Program Expenditures. 

 
Contaminated Sites 

 
Contaminated sites are the result of contamination being introduced in air, soil, water or sediment of a 
chemical, organic, or radioactive material or live organism that exceed an environmental standard.  A 
liability for remediation of contaminated sites is recognized, net of any expected recoveries, when all 
of the following criteria are met: a) an environmental standard exists; b) contamination exceeds the 
environmental standard; c) the organization is directly responsible or accepts responsibility for the 
liability; d) future economic benefits will be given up; and e) a reasonable estimate of the liability can 
be made. 

  
 
3. Investments 
 

Short-term investments consist of GIC’s at 1.4% maturing in June 2020. Long-term investments 
consist of GIC’s with interest rates between 1.6%-3.2% maturing between May 2021 and June 2024. 
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Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2019  
 
 
4. Accounts Receivable 

 
  

 
 

2019  

 
 

2018  
 
 

 
$  

 
$  

 
Trade and other 
Rideau Valley Conservation Foundation (note 7)  
City of Ottawa      

 
379,918 
229,134 
979,692 

 
281,310 
211,460 
451,373 

 
  1,588,744 

 
944,143 

 
   

 
5. Credit Facility 
 

The Authority maintains an operating line facility with the Bank of Montreal of $750,000 which bears 
interest at prime + 0.25% and is due on demand. As of December 31, 2019, no balance (2018 $Nil) 
was payable under the facility. 

 
  

 
6.  Deferred Revenues 

 

 
 

2019  

 
 

2018  
 
 

 
$  

 
$  

   
 
Conservation Land Management Services 
Watershed Sciences and Engineering Services 
Planning Advisory & Regulatory Services  
Stewardship Services     

 
12,859 

170,736 
175,832 

1,242,123 

 
5,662 

173,649 
153,354 

1,230,753 
 
  1,601,550 

 
1,563,418 

 
  
 
7.  Non Pension Post Retirement Benefit Obligation 
 

The Authority’s employee benefits plan consists of employer-paid group insurance premiums for 
extended health care and dental care, as well as life insurance coverage.  Benefits commence on 
retirement and are payable for five years, or until the employee reaches the age of sixty-five, if earlier. 
The valuation was based on a number of assumptions about future events such as inflation rates, 
interest rates, medical and dental inflation rates, wage and salary increases, and employee turnover 
and mortality. 
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Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2019  
 
7.  Non Pension Post Retirement Benefit Obligation / continued 

 
An actuarial valuation was performed for accounting purposes on February 11, 2020. 
The accrued benefit obligation as at December 31, 2019 consists of the following components: 

 2019  2018  

 
 

$  
 

$  
   
 
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year 
Adjustment for post-retirement benefits relating to prior years' service 
Current service cost  
Benefits paid during the year 
Interest accrued 
Experience Gain/(Loss) 
Unamortized Gain/(Loss) 

 
420,844 

-- 
20,883 

(19,853) 
20,015 

(46,079) 
39,596 

 
399,810 

-- 
28,996 

(27,000) 
19,038 

-- 
-- 

 
Expected accrued benefit obligation, end of year  435,406 

 
420,844 

  
 
8.  Pension Contributions 
 

The Authority is a member of the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System (‘OMERS’), which 
is a multi-employer plan.  The plan is a contributory defined benefit plan which specifies the amount 
of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based on the length of service and rates of 
pay.  Employers and employees contribute to the plan.  Since any surpluses or deficits are a joint 
responsibility of all Ontario municipalities and their employees, the Authority does not recognize any 
share of the OMERS pension surplus or deficit in these financial statements.   
 
The amount contributed to OMERS was $387,951 (2018 $369,244) for current services and is included 
as an expenditure on the Statement of Operations classified under the appropriate functional 
expenditure.   

  
 

9.  Obligation Under Capital Lease 
 

The Rideau Valley Conservation Authority is committed to a capital lease obligation with principal 
repayments as outlined below: 

 
 
Year 

 
Annual Payment  

$  
 
2020  
2021  
2022  
2023  
2024 
and thereafter   

 
255,568  
202,704  
202,704  
202,704  
202,704 

1,148,656  
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Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2019  
 
9.  Obligation Under Capital Lease / continued 

 
The Authority has entered into a twenty year lease agreement with the City of Ottawa for the new office 
building located in Beryl Gaffney Park which expires August 2030.  Minimum annual payments are 
based on the annual debt charges that the City will incur on a twenty year debenture of $4,735,000. The 
effective interest rate as of December 31, 2019 was 4.35%. In addition, an annual park development fee 
of $32,000 will be paid to the City for the term of the lease.  Rent and park development fees (excluding 
HST) in the amount of $446,611 were paid for 2019 (2018 $446,338). Interest on the obligation was paid 
in the amount of $139,944 (2018 $150,671).  
In accordance with Article 2.04 of the building lease, monthly payments are based on estimated debt 
charges and will be amended to reflect actual debt charges. 
 
The present value of the obligation at December 31, 2019, under the terms of the capital lease, is 
$2,565,999 (2018 $2,840,665). 

 
At the end of the term, the Authority shall have the option to purchase the building for $1. In no event 
shall acquisition of the building include the demised lands. 
 

  
 
10.  Tangible Capital Assets 

 
Cost 

 
 

Opening  

 
 

Additions  

 
 
Transfers 

 
 
Disposals  

 
 

Closing  
 
 

 
$  

 
$  

 
$ 

 
 $  

 
$  

 
Land 
Buildings 
Building Under Capital Lease 
Infrastructure <  
  Dams/Berms/Dykes 
Infrastructure < 
  Bridges/Boardwalks 
Vehicles 
Machinery and Equipment 
Computers and IT Equipment 
Office and Audio Visual 
  Equipment 
Assets Under Construction 

 
1,971,309 
1,720,797 
7,315,669 
7,871,830 

 
538,212 

 
742,397 
383,574 
438,465 
163,160 

 
1,527,265   

-- 
-- 
-- 

1,527,266 
 

-- 
 

67,161 
54,931 
21,763 
5,528 

 
25,760   

-- 
-- 
-- 
-- 

 
-- 

 
-- 
-- 
-- 
-- 

 
(1,527,266) 

-- 
-- 
-- 
-- 

 
-- 

 
(25,841) 
(21,861) 
(74,977) 
(62,133) 

 
-- 

1,971,309 
1,720,797 
7,315,669 
9,399,096 

 
538,212 

 
783,717 
416,644 
385,251 
106,555 

 
25,760 

 
  

 
22,672,678 1,702,409 (1,527,266) (184,812) 22,663,010 
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Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2019  
 
10.  Tangible Capital Assets / continued 
 

 
 
Accumulated Amortization 

 
 

Opening  

 
 

Additions  

 
 
Disposals  

 
 

Closing  
 
 

 
$  

 
$  

 
 $  

 
$  

 
Buildings 
Building Under Capital Lease 
Infrastructure < Dams/Berms/Dykes 
Infrastructure < Bridges/Boardwalks 
Vehicles 
Machinery and Equipment 
Computers and IT Equipment 
Office and Audio Visual Equipment 

 
1,124,405 
1,621,640 
7,244,269 

314,943 
459,273 
269,465 
316,692 
116,642 

 
29,160 

146,313 
101,686 

20,932 
71,631 
25,758 
36,128 
8,597 

 
-- 
-- 
-- 
-- 

(24,841) 
(13,063) 
(74,977) 
(62,133) 

1,153,565 
1,767,953 
7,345,955 

335,875 
506,063 
282,160 
277,843 

63,106 
 
  

 
11,467,329 440,205 (175,014) 11,732,520 

 
 
 

 
 
Net Book Value 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2019  

 
 

2018  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
$  

 
$  

 
Land 
Buildings 
 
Infrastructure < Dams/Berms/Dykes 
Infrastructure < Bridges/Boardwalks 
Vehicles       
Machinery and Equipment 
Computers and IT Equipment      
Office and Audio Visual Equipment 
Assets Under Construction    

 
 

 
 

1,971,309 
567,232 

5,547,716 
2,053,141 

202,337 
277,654 
134,484 
107,408 

43,449 
25,760 

1,971,309 
596,392 

5,694,029 
627,561 
223,270 
283,124 
114,109 
121,773 

46,518 
1,527,265 

 
  

 
 

 
 10,930,490 

 
11,205,350 
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Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2019  
 
 
11.  Accumulated Surplus 
 

Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserves as follows: 
 
 
  

 
 
 2019  

 
 
 2018  

 
 

 
 $  

 
 $ 

 
Invested in Tangible Capital Assets  

Tangible capital assets 
Obligation under capital lease 

 
  
 10,930,490 
 (2,565,999) 

 
 11,205,350 
 (2,840,665) 

  
   8,364,491 

 
 8,364,685 

 
Unrestricted Surplus (Deficit)  62,467 

 
 100,288 

 
Reserves  

Capital Reserves 
Building Life Cycle Reserve     
Working Fund Reserve     
Program Reserves < Stewardship     

< Part VIII Program 
< LRC Production Centre      
< ORWC 
< Conservation Lands     
< Planning and Regulations 
< Watershed Science and Engineering      
< Corporate Communications 
< Part IV    

 
 832,994 
 798,895 
 910,000 
 63,065 
 307,525 
 100,800 
 125,402 
 91,443 
 483,016 
 117,500 
 90,491 
 523 

 
 707,011 
 728,895 
 555,000 
 122,555 
 224,493 
 100,800 
 107,463 
 91,443 
 333,015 
 67,500 
 90,491 
 523 

 
Total Reserves   3,921,654  

 3,129,289 
 
Accumulated Surplus   12,348,612 

 
 11,594,262 

 
  
 
12.  Special Levy on Member Municipalities 
 

The Authority’s share of the cost of the Rideau River Ice Management - City of Ottawa was funded by 
a special levy on the benefiting municipality for 2019 of $1,329,002 (2018 $793,014).  Other special 
levies in 2019 from the City of Ottawa include Water Control Infrastructure $10,000 (2018 $10,000), 
Water Control Infrastructure Operation and Maintenance $40,000 (2018 $23,500), Water Quality 
Monitoring $161,084 (2018 NIL), and Britannia Water Control Structure Reserve $21,500 (2018 NIL). 

 
  
 
13.  Source Water Protection  
 

The Authority is receiving funding support for the Drinking Water Source Protection Program. Funds 
are to be used to lead and deliver the local source protection program for the Mississippi-Rideau 
Source Protection Region. This project will be delivered with the collaboration of the Mississippi Valley 
Conservation Authority. Any unspent funds are repayable to the Province. 
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Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2019  
 
 
14.  Related Party 
 

The Authority has an economic interest in the Rideau Valley Conservation Foundation.  During the 
year, the Rideau Valley Conservation Foundation transferred donations of $35,455 (2018 $19,611), 
grant revenue of $31,775 (2018 $60,375), Species at Risk program revenue of $71,440 (2018 
$125,153) and Shoreline program revenue of $90,464 (2018 $6,321) in addition, expense 
reimbursements of $3,849 (2018 $ nil) to the Authority. Of these transfers, $229,134 (2018 $211,460) 
is outstanding at year end. Amounts owing are due on demand, non-interest-bearing and have no 
specific terms of repayment but are expected to be paid after the Foundation’s Annual General 
Meeting, held annually in June.   
The Foundation funds are used to support the conservation programs of the Authority to protect and 
conserve the lands and waters of the valley of the Rideau River in Eastern Ontario. All transactions 
between the Authority and the Foundation are recorded at fair market value. 

 
  
 
 
15.  Contingent Liabilities and Commitments  
 

The nature of conservation authority activities is such that there may be litigation pending or in prospect 
at any time.  With respect to claims as at December 31, 2019, management believes that the Authority 
has valid defenses and appropriate insurance coverages in place.  In the event any claims are 
successful, the amount of any potential liability is not determinable, therefore, no amount has been 
accrued in the financial statements. 

 
  
 
16.  Liabilities for Contaminated Sites 
 

The Authority reports environmental liabilities related to the management and remediation of 
contaminated sites where the Authority is obligated or likely obligated to incur such costs.  A 
contaminated site liability of $Nil (2018 $Nil) has been recorded based on environmental assessments 
or estimations for those sites where an assessment has not been conducted.  The Authority’s ongoing 
efforts to assess contaminated sites may result in additional environmental remediation liabilities 
related to newly identified sites, or changes in the assessments or intended use of existing sites.  Any 
changes to the Authority’s liabilities for contaminated sites will be accrued in the year in which they are 
assessed as likely and reasonably estimable. 

 
  
 
 
17.  Budget Amounts 
 

The 2019 budget amounts that were approved on March 23, 2019 were not prepared on a basis consistent 
with that used to report actual results (Public Sector Accounting Board Standards). The budget included 
capital items such as infrastructure replacements and estimated costs for constructed assets, as program 
expenses, but the actual expenses have been removed in the Statement of Operations. The revenues 
attributable to these items continue to be included in the Statement of Operations, resulting in a significant 
positive variance.   
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Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2019  
 
 
17.  Budget Amounts / continued 
 

The following analysis is provided to assist readers in their understanding of differences between the 
approved budget and the audited financial statements: 

 
  

 
 Approved  
 Budget  

 
 
 Actual  

 
 

 
 $  

 
 $  

 
Surplus for the Year Per Statement of Operations  915,085  754,351 
 
Assets Capitalized as TCA  (915,000)  (175,144) 
 
Gain on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 0  (12,057) 
 
Amortization 358,600  440,206 
 
Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 0  21,856 
 
Repayment of Obligation Under Capital Lease (274,667)  (274,667) 
 
Transfers from Reserves 35,000  182,736 
 
Transfers to Reserves (119,018)  (975,100) 
 
Adjusted Surplus for the Year 0  (37,819) 

 
  
 
18. Comparative figures 
 
 Comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to financial statement presentation. 
 
  
 
19.  Segmented Information 
 

Certain allocation methodologies are employed in the preparation of segmented financial information.  
Government grants, user charges, transfers from other funds, and other revenues are allocated to the 
specific program or service they relate to. Expense allocations are both internal and external. The 
basis of accounting for inter-segment transfers is at cost using activity based costing for the allocation 
of internal support costs to departments. These costs include the net expenditures for departments, 
such as human resources, information systems, finance and others, commonly referred to as 
overhead. 
 

 Rideau Valley Conservation Authority segments its activities into six main program areas which are 
 reported in the accompanying supplementary schedules to the financial statements. 
 

Watershed Sciences and Engineering Services 
 

Watershed management and health monitoring program costs and revenues are those required to 
develop the framework and management strategy to provide a rational approach to natural systems 
protection, restoration and use. The main activities included in this segment are watershed and sub 
watershed plans, resource inventory and environmental monitoring, flood protection services and 
source water protection. 
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Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2019  

 
 

19.  Segmented Information / continued 
 

Planning Advisory and Regulatory Services 
 

Planning advisory and regulatory services include costs and revenues associated with the approval of 
development applications or rendering of opinions on the impact of development applications on 
natural hazards, natural heritage resources and water resources as provided under provincial 
legislation which includes the Planning Act, Conservation Authorities Act and the Environmental 
Assessment Act. 

 
Stewardship Services 

 
The stewardship services costs and revenues are those associated with providing service and 
assistance to private and public landowners on sound environmental practices that will enhance, 
restore or protect lands and natural features.  This category includes activities such as fisheries 
rehabilitation, tree planting and reforestation, wildlife habitat improvements, management plans, 
agricultural best practices and erosion control services. 

 
Conservation Land Management Services 

 
The conservation land management services includes all expenses and revenues associated with 
lands, improvements, buildings and structures owned by Rideau Valley Conservation Authority.  It 
also includes active programming on some Authority lands. 

 
Corporate Services 

 
Corporate services includes management and non-program specific costs and revenues.  These 
include internal support service costs such as senior management costs, board costs, office services, 
financial services, human resources, information technology and corporate communications. 

 
  
 
 
20. Subsequent Events 
 

Since December 31, 2019, the outbreak of the novel strain of the coronavirus, specifically identified as 
“COVID-19”, has resulted in a widespread health crisis that has affected economies and financial 
markets around the world resulting in an economic downturn. This outbreak may also cause staff 
shortages, reduced demand on programming offered by the Authority, increased government 
regulations or interventions and decrease in government funding, all of which may negatively impact 
the financial condition and operations of the Authority. The duration and impact of the COVID-19 
outbreak is unknown at this time and it is not possible to reliably estimate the length and severity of 
these developments.  
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Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2019  
 
 
21.  Segmented Disclosures 
 

 
Watershed 
Sciences & 

Engineering 
Services 

Planning 
Advisory & 
Regulatory 

Services 

 
Conservation 

Land 
Management 

Services 

Corporate 
Services & 

Internal 
Recoveries 

 
  

Stewardship 
Services 

 

  Grand Total 
 $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Revenues       
Levies 3,065,720 939,080 683,402 949,767 1,756,971 7,394,940 
User fees, program 
  revenues &    
  other 

1,713,522 1,457,498 692,734 313,450 25,409 4,202,613 

Interest revenue --- --- --- --- 125,277 125,277 
Donations 11,669 --- 92,382 31,227 --- 135,278 

  4,790,911 2,396,578 1,468,518 1,294,444 1,907,658 11,858,108 
             
Expenses   

107,225 
  

2,736 
  

2,667 
  

49,429 
  

278,148 
  

440,205 Amortization 
Charge – Common 
  Cost 228,035 257,099 88,546 109,227 174,762 857,669 
Charge – Vehicle  
  & Equipment 54,345 60,648 32,307 67,689 24,418 239,407 

Operating 
  Expenses 2,746,522 141,992 700,693 287,480 829,156 4,705,843 

Interest on Capital 
  Lease --- --- --- --- 139,946 139,946 
Recovery – 
  common costs --- --- --- --- (856,077) (856,077) 

Recovery – LRC --- --- --- --- (23,984) (23,984) 
Recovery –   
  Vehicle & 
  Equipment 

(4,163) --- --- --- (235,283) (239,446) 

Salaries, Wages & 
  Benefits 1,540,405 1,715,267 596,202 761,923 1,211,836 5,825,633 

 4,672,369 2,177,742 1,420,415 1,275,748 1,542,922 11,089,196 

Non Pension 
Retirement Benefit --- --- --- --- 14,562 14,562 

Net Surplus 118,542 218,836 48,103 18,694 350,176 754,350 
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Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

 
December 31, 2019  

 
22.  Risk Management 
 

In the normal course of operations, the Authority is exposed to a variety of financial risks which are 
actively managed by the Authority. 

 
The Authority’s financial instruments consist of cash, investments, accounts receivable, accounts 
payable, accrued vacation and other accrued liabilities.  

 
The Authority’s exposure to and management of risk has not changed materially from December 31, 
2019. 
Credit risk arises from the possibility that the entities to which the Authority provides services to may 
experience difficulty and be unable to fulfil their obligations.  The Authority is exposed to financial risk 
that arises from the credit quality of the entities to which it provides services.  The Authority does not 
have a significant exposure to any individual customer or counter party.  As a result, the requirement 
for credit risk related reserves for accounts receivable is minimal. 

 
Interest Rate Risk 

 
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that the value of, or cash flows related to, a financial 
instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates.  The Authority is exposed to 
financial risk that arises from the interest rate differentials between the market interest rate and the 
rates on its cash and cash equivalents and operating loan.  Changes in variable interest rates could 
cause unanticipated fluctuations in the Authority’s operating results. 

 
Liquidity Risk 

 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Authority will not be able to meet its obligations as they fall due.  The 
Authority requires working capital to meet day-to-day operating activities.  Management expects that 
the Authority’s cash flows from operating activities will be sufficient to meet these requirements.  

 
  
 
23. Public Sector Salary Disclosure 
 

Rideau Valley Conservation Authority is subject to The Public Sector Salary Disclosure Act, 1996.  
Salaries and benefits that have been paid by the Authority and reported to the Province of Ontario in 
compliance with this legislation are listed on the Ontario Ministry of Finance website at 
https://www.ontario/ca/page/public-sector-salary-disclosure or can be provided in an alternative format 
upon request from the Authority. 
 

  
 

 

83

https://www.ontario/ca/page/public-sector-salary-disclosure


 

23 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 
 Continuity of Reserves < Schedule 1  

 
For the year ended December 31 

 
 

 
 

2019  

 
 

2018  
 
 

 
 

 
$  

 
$  

 
Net Transfers From / (To) Other Funds  

Transfers from (to) operations 

 
 792,364 

 
932,105 

 
Total Net Transfers Approved By Board 

 
 792,364 

 
932,105 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
Reserves and Reserve Fund Balances, 

Change in Year 

 
 792,365 

 
932,105 

 
Reserves and Reserve Fund Balances, 

Beginning of Year 

 
  

3,129,289 
 

2,197,184 
 
Reserves and Reserve Fund Balances,  

End of Year  
 

 
3,921,654 

 
3,129,289 

 
 
  
 
 
 Composition of Reserves 

 
 
For the year ended December 31 

 
 

2019  

 
 

2018  
 
 

 
$  

 
$  

 
Reserves  

Capital Reserves 
Building Life Cycle Reserve 
Working Fund Reserve     
Program Reserves < Stewardship      

< Part VIII Program 
< LRC Production Centre      
< ORWC 
< Conservation Lands      
< Planning and Regulations 
< Watershed Science and Engineering     
< Corporate Communications 
< Part IV         

 
832,994 
798,895 
910,000 

63,065 
307,525 
100,800 
125,402 

91,443 
483,016 
117,500 

90,491 
523 

 
707,111 
728,895 
555,000 
122,555 
224,493 
100,800 
107,463 

91,443 
333,015 

67,500 
90,491 

523 
 
 
Total Reserves 3,921,654 

 
3,129,289 
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Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 
Program Revenues < Schedule 2 

 
For the year ended December 31 

 
(Note 17) 

(unaudited) 
Budget  

 
 

2019  

 
 

2018  
 
 

 
$  

 
$  

 
$  

 
Watershed Sciences and Engineering Services   
 

Watershed Report Cards 
Drinking Water Source Protection 
Surface Water Quality Monitoring 
Hydrometric Monitoring and Forecasting 
Flood Erosion and Drought Studies     
Ground Water Monitoring  
Aquatic and Terrestrial Habitat Monitoring      
Water Control Operations 

-- 
-- 
-- 
-- 

88,425 
145,000 

40,000 
-- 

786 
750 

14,009 
131 

607,092 
75,409 
74,450 
1,069 

-- 
-- 

113,001 
8,000 

125,015 
141,144 

82,513 
2,812 

 
  273,425 773,696 

 
472,485 

 
Planning Advisory and Regulatory Services 
 

Plan Review 
Section 28 Conservation Authorities Act 
Septic Re-Inspection Program      
Part VIII Building Code Act 
Part IV Clean Water Act     

340,000 
240,000 

22,889 
524,251 

7,800 

426,281 
300,056 

68,033 
652,967 

3,830 

 
369,038 
295,273 

19,854 
678,707 

20,599 
 
  1,134,940 1,451,167 

 
1,383,471 

 
Stewardship Services 
 

Landowner Resource Centre 
Landowner Resource Centre < Production Centre 
Private Land Forestry  
Clean Water Program 
Other      

 
-- 
-- 

506,845 
256,000 
200,788 

 
-- 
-- 

497,575 
80,523 

207,019 

 
538 

73,787 
598,546 
138,043 
161,198 

 
 963,633 785,117 

 
972,112 

 
Conservation Land Management Services 
 

Program Management and Land Donations 
Baxter 
Foley Mountain 
Other Developed Conservation Areas     
Other Conservation Areas 
Lease and Management Agreements     

20,000 
150,000 

70,000 
59,000 
13,000 
32,000 

1,766 
171,421 

96,770 
43,181 

100 
31,437 

 
4,207 

161,813 
88,711 
40,259 
3,766 

34,243 
 
  344,000 344,675 

 
332,999 

 
Corporate Services 
  

Administration and Finance 
Communications  

40,000 
1,800 

-- 

131,536 
2,435 

623 

 
107,433 

3,251 
-- 

85



 

25 
 

Watershed Information Management System 
 
  41,800 134,594 

 
110,684 

 
 
Net Program Revenues 2,757,798 3,489,249 

 
3,271,751 

 
 
  
 
 Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 
 Program Expenditures < Schedule 3 
 
 
For the year ended December 31 

 
 (Note 16) 
 (unaudited) 
 Budget  

 
 
  2019  

 
 
  2018  

 
 

 
  $  

 
  $  

 
  $  

 
Watershed Sciences and Engineering Services 
 

Program Management 
Watershed Report Cards 
Drinking Water Source Protection (note 13)     
Surface Water Quality Monitoring     
Hydrometric Monitoring and Forecasting     
Flood, Erosion and Drought Studies 
Groundwater Monitoring     
Aquatic and Terrestrial Habitat Monitoring     
Water Control Infrastructure < operations     

< capital maintenance      
Rideau River Ice Management            
Amortization     

     59,971 
    165,073 
    230,803 
    476,179 
    255,396 
    323,578 
    292,208 
    410,649 
     82,799 
     10,000 
    675,059 
     49,600 

94,085 
141,836 

  201,340 
  435,097 
  294,081 
  745,346 
  162,202 
  346,280 
   69,544 
  696,331 
1,379,002 
  107,225 

 177,164 
 203,429 
 201,874 
 320,871 
 224,025 
 321,262 
 236,311 
 405,973 
 89,572 
 204,491 
 893,014 
 51,143 

 
    3,031,315     4,672,369 

 
 3,329,129 

 
Planning Advisory and Regulatory Services 
 

Program Management 
Plan Review 
Section 28 Conservation Authorities Act      
Part IV Clean Water Act 
Part VIII Building Code Act      
Septic Re inspection Program 
Amortization      

    126,824 
    787,546 
    616,326 
      7,800 
    524,251 
     22,889 
      2,700 

  153,333 
  675,860 
  702,236 
    3,830 
  569,935 
   69,812 
    2,736 

 
 92,283 
 580,356 
 595,153 
 20,599 
 544,000 
 19,957 
 2,736 

 
    2,088,336     2,177,742 

 
 1,855,084 

 
Stewardship Services 
 

Program Management 
Landowner Resource Centre                 
     < Storefront 
     < Production Centre 
Private Land Forestry     
Clean Water Program 
Shoreline Stewardship Program     
Other 
Amortization     

   148,197 
-- 
-- 
-- 

   646,778 
   498,744 
   279,846 
    73,187 
     2,600 

     137,435 
-- 
-- 
-- 

     623,299 
     322,803 
     274,524 
      59,687 
       2,667 

 
 139,711 

-- 
 159,592 
 84,367 
 595,476 
 372,234 
 202,070 
 97,431 
 2,667 

  1,649,352    1,420,415 
 

 1,653,548 
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 Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 
 Program Expenditures < Schedule 3 
 
 
For the year ended December 31 

 
(Note 16) 

(unaudited) 
Budget  

 
 

  2019  

 
 

2018  
 
 

 
$  

 
  $  

 
$  

 
Conservation Land Management Services 

Program Management and Land Donations  
Baxter Conservation Area 
Foley Mountain Conservation Area       
Other Developed Conservation Areas 
Other Conservation Lands      
Lease and Management Agreements 
Amortization     

  108,449 
  310,206 
  298,142 
  287,098 
  210,789 
   32,000 

     49,400 

108,997 
 345,927 
 280,990 
 252,838 
 204,383 
  33,184 
  49,429 

 61,620 
 309,759 
 265,735 
 204,099 
 188,778 
 33,365 
 50,898 

 
    1,296,084    1,275,748 

 
 1,114,254 

 
Corporate Services 
 

Management and Members  
Finance and Administration    
Communications         
Foundation 
Headquarter Lease and Maintenance  
Watershed Information Management System     

  298,674 
  421,772 
  276,396 
   87,849 
  249,705 
  229,118 

 284,262 
 410,146 
 210,320 
  83,825 
 179,242 
 214,245 

 
 265,241 
 433,946 
 150,844 
 77,111 
 189,965 
 185,061 

 
    1,563,514    1,382,040 

 
 1,302,168 

 
Internal Cost < Expenditures (Recoveries) 
 

Gain on Disposal 
Common Cost     
Vehicles and Equipment 
Amortization      

 
--   

14,699 
  (68,518) 
  254,300 

 (12,057) 
  16,247 
(121,456) 
 278,148 

 
 (4,447) 
 (1,537) 
 (104,921) 
 263,003 

 
      200,481      160,882 

 
 152,098 

 
Total Corporate Services  1,763,995 1,542,922 

 
 1,454,266 

 
 
Net Program Expenditures   9,829,082   11,089,196 

 
 9,406,331 
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March 10, 2020

Ms. Sommer  Casgrain - Robertson
Rideau Valley Conservation Authority
3889 Rideau Valley Drive PO Box 599
Manotick, ON  K4M 1A5

Dear Ms. Casgrain - Robertson:

Management letter for the year ended December 31, 2019

We have recently completed our audit of Rideau Valley Conservation Authority in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards (“GAAS”). The objective of our audit was to express an opinion on the
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards:
government not-for-profit organizations. Included in our audit was the consideration of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements. This consideration of internal control was for the
purpose of designing audit procedures that were appropriate in the circumstances. It was not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control or for identifying all significant control deficiencies that
might exist.

An audit is not specifically designed to identify all matters that may be of interest to management in discharging its
responsibilities, however, during the course of our audit, we did, identify some areas for improvement that we are
bringing to your attention with this letter. It is our responsibility to communicate any significant deficiencies identified
to those charged with governance. A significant deficiency in internal control is defined as a deficiency or
combination of deficiencies in internal control that, in the auditor’s professional judgment, is of sufficient importance
to merit the attention of those charged with governance. 

Segregation of duties - Cash receipts, A/R

Observation:

Employee responsible for closing daily sales is responsible for preparing the bank deposit, processing the
information into the system and depositing cash.

Recommendation:

Separate cash counting duties and have another employee deposit cash.

Deferred Revenue

Observation:

The underlying assumptions used in calculating deferred revenues should be updated to better reflect actuals

Impact:

This could cause actual surplus/deficit to be misstated

Recommendation:

Review with each department manager the underlying assumptions used in developping the deferred revenue
estimate. Programs which are no longer active but have a deferred revenue balance should be brought into
income.

  

ACCOUNTING  › CONSULTING  › TAX

709 COTTON MILL STREET, CORNWALL ON,  K6H 7K7

T: (613) 932-3610   F: (613) 938-3215   MNP.ca88



HST on mileage

Observation:

No hst is being claimed on the mileage expenses.

Impact:

This results in potential ITC's that remain unclaimed by the Organization.

Recommendation:

Management should implement a policy to calculate the implicite HST rate on all mileage that is claimed on a per
KM basis. Per diem mileage claims are not entitled to ITC's.

We have discussed the matters in this letter with Sommer Casgrain - Robertson and received her comments
thereon. 

We would like to express our appreciation for the co-operation and assistance we have received during the course
of our audit from Sarah Wayne. 

We would be pleased to discuss with you further any matters mentioned in this letter at your convenience. This
communication is prepared solely for the information of management and is not intended for any other purpose. We
accept no responsibility to any third party who uses this communication.

Sincerely,

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

encls.

2
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Rideau Valley Conservation Authority
2019 Audit Findings

Report to the Audit Committee

December 31, 2019

Ian Murphy

T: 613.209.8252

E: ian.murphy@mnp.ca
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OVERVIEW

We are pleased to submit to you this Audit Findings Report (the “Report”) for discussion of our audit of the financial
statements of Rideau Valley Conservation Authority (the “Organization") as at December 31, 2019 and for the year then
ended. In this report we cover those significant matters which, in our opinion, you should be aware of as members of the
Audit Committee.

As auditors, we report to the board on the results of our examination of the financial statements of the Organization as at
and for the year ended December 31, 2019. The purpose of this Report is to assist you, as members of the Audit
Committee, in your review of the results of our audit.

This Report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee and management and should not be
distributed to or used by any other parties than these specified parties.

We appreciate having the opportunity to meet with you and to respond to any questions you may have about our audit, and
to discuss any other matters that may be of interest to you.

ENGAGEMENT STATUS

We have substantially completed our audit of the financial statements of the Organization which has been carried out in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and are prepared to sign our Independent Auditor's
Report subsequent to completion of the following procedures:

 Receipt of the remaining outstanding legal confirmations;

 Receipt of the signed management representation letter;

 Discussion of subsequent events with the Audit Committee;

 Receipt of City of Ottawa debenture documentation; and

 The Audit Committee's review and approval of the financial statements.

No significant limitations were placed on the scope or timing of our audit. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We expect to have the above procedures completed and to release our Independent Auditor’s Report on March 26, 2020.

Unless unforeseen complications arise, our Independent Auditor’s Report will provide an unmodified opinion to the board of
the Organization. A draft copy of our proposed Independent Auditor’s Report has been included with this report. The matters
disclosed in the Independent Auditor’s Report are discussed further in the relevant sections of the Report.

AUDIT REPORTING MATTERS

Our audit was carried out in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, and included a review of all
significant accounting and management reporting systems, with each material year end balance, key transaction and other
events considered significant to the financial statements considered separately.

SIGNIFICANT AUDIT, ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING MATTERS

AREA COMMENTS

CHANGES FROM AUDIT SERVICE PLAN There were no deviations from the Audit Service Plan

previously presented to you

FINAL MATERIALITY Final materiality used for our audit was $280,000 for

December 31, 2019.

© MNP LLP 2020. All rights reserved. Rideau Valley Conservation Authority - December 31, 2019 Audit Findings  1  | Page
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AREA COMMENTS

IDENTIFIED OR SUSPECTED FRAUD While our audit cannot be relied upon to detect all

instances of fraud, no incidents of fraud, or suspected

fraud, came to our attention in the course of our audit.

IDENTIFIED OR SUSPECTED NON-
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Nothing has come to our attention that would suggest

any non-compliance with laws and regulations that would

have a material effect on the financial statements.

MATTERS ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH
RELATED PARTIES

No significant matters arose during the course of our

audit in connection with related parties of the

Organization.

GOING CONCERN No events or conditions were identified that may cast

significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a

going concern.

AUDITOR’S VIEWS OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING PRACTICES, ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The application of Canadian public sector accounting

standards allows and requires the Organization to make
accounting estimates and judgments regarding

accounting policies and financial statement disclosures. 

As auditors, we are uniquely positioned to provide open

and objective feedback regarding your Organization’s
accounting practices, and have noted the following items

during the course of our audit that we wish to bring to

your attention.

The accounting policies used by the Organization are
appropriate and have been consistently applied.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCLOSURES The disclosures made in the notes to the financial
statements appear clear, neutral and consistent with our

understanding of the entity and the amounts presented in

the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES IN INTERNAL
CONTROL

While our review of controls was not sufficient to express

an opinion as to their effectiveness or efficiency we have

detected significant deficiencies in internal controls,

which are included with this report and in the

Management Letter provided.

MATTERS ARISING FROM DISCUSSIONS WITH
MANAGEMENT 

There were no significant matters discussed, or subject

to correspondence, with management that in our
judgment need be brought to your attention.
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SIGNIFICANT RISK AREAS AND RESPONSES

SIGNIFICANT RISK AREA RESPONSE AND CONCLUSION

Deferred revenue and restricted contributions

Risk of overstating payables to reduce surplus due to

management bias

Test existence of payables using a higher risk factor

Trade and other

Risk of understating receivables to decrease surplus due

to management bias

Extend procedures on subsequent receipt testing

OTHER AREAS

AREA COMMENTS

AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE We confirm to the Audit Committee that we are

independent of the Organization. Our letter to the Audit

Committee discussing our independence is included as
part of the additional materials attached to this report.

MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS We have requested certain written representations from

management, which represent a confirmation of certain

oral representations given to us during the course of our

audit. This letter, provided by management, has been

included as additional material to this report.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES No significant differences were proposed to management

with respect to the December 31, 2019 financial
statements. 

OTHER INFORMATION Pursuant to our responsibilities under Canadian

generally accepted auditing standards, we have

reviewed other financial and non-financial information

included in documents containing the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We review

these documents for the purpose of ensuring their

content does not contradict information derived from our

audit procedures. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES

SIGNIFICANT UNADJUSTED DIFFERENCES

DIFFERENCES NOTED AND ITEMS AFFECTED [BALANCE SHEET] [EARNINGS]

Accrued interest receivable $ 19,100 $ 19,100

Septic fees $ (38,338) $ (38,338)

Natural Disaster Mitigation Program $ 26,611 $ 26,611

Revenue on completed projects remaining in deferred

revenue - Water control structure 2009/2010 Funding

$ 41,143 $ 41,143

Total Unadjusted Differences (Income Effect) $ 48,516

We appreciate having the opportunity to meet with you and respond to any questions you may have about our audit, and to
discuss any other matters that may be of interest to you. 

Sincerely,

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

encls
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MNP LLP – Wherever Business Takes You

Assurance › Consulting › Tax

About MNP LLP

MNP is a leading national accounting, tax and business consulting firm in Canada. We proudly serve and respond to the

needs of our clients in the public, private and not-for-profit sectors. Through partner-led engagements, we provide a

collaborative, cost-effective approach to doing business and personalized strategies to help organizations succeed across

the country and around the world.
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10.0 2020 Budget and Municipal Levies 
Report #: 6-200423

To: RVCA Board of Directors 
From: Sarah Wayne 

Manager, Finance & HR 
Date: February 20, 2020 

Recommendation: 

THAT the Board of Directors of the Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 
approves the attached 2020 Budget in the amount of $10,736,338 (dated February 
19, 2020); and further  

THAT the Board of Directors of the Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 
establishes a 2020 general municipal levy of $6,037,523; and further 

THAT this levy be apportioned to the participating municipalities according to the 
attached sheet entitled “2020 Proposed Municipal Levy Apportionment” (dated 
February 19, 2020); and further 

THAT the Board of Directors of the Rideau Valley Conservation Authority 
establishes special levies payable by the City of Ottawa as sole benefitting 
municipality as follows: 

1. $10,000 – Capital Reserve for Water Control Structures in Ottawa;
2. $21,500 – Capital Reserve for Britannia Village Flood Control Project;
3. $40,000 – Operation of Water Control Structures in Ottawa;
4. $946,215 – Rideau River Ice Management in Ottawa;
5. $158,696 – Aquatic Monitoring in Ottawa.

Note: This Staff Report was originally on the agenda for RVCA’s February 27, 2020 
Board of Directors meeting which had to be cancelled due to inclement weather. 
There was then no Board of Directors meeting in March because of physical 
distancing requirements under Ontario’s State of Emergency due to COVID-19.  

It is recognized that due to the COVID-19 pandemic, some revenues projected in this 
budget will be impacted and measures will need to be taken to mitigate these 
impacts. Staff will work with the Board of Directors and all levels of government in the 

For Information 
 For Direction 
X For Adoption 

X Attachments – 25
pages 
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coming weeks and months to identify and implement appropriate mitigation 
measures. In the meantime, staff recommend approving the budget as presented as it 
has been circulated to all 18 member municipalities for review and comment as 
required by the Conservation Authorities Act and the RVCA will have to remain nimble 
throughout 2020 to adjust accordingly to address the financial impacts of COVID-19.  

 
Purpose 
To approve an operations and capital budget for the RVCA for the year 2020. 
 
Background 
At their September 26, 2019 meeting, the Board received a high level summary of 
RVCA’s 2019 budget and an overview of 2020 budget factors and pressures. The Board 
directed staff to prepare a preliminary draft budget for 2020 based on the following 
direction: 

• A municipal levy increase of 2% plus assessment growth which is 1.5%   
• An increase in fees of 2% 
• A cost of living increase for staff closer to 1.9% which is the August to August 

Consumer Price Index (management had proposed 1%) 
 

At their October 24, 2019 meeting, the Board received a preliminary draft budget that 
reflected the budget direction they set at their September meeting. In keeping with a 
commitment to continuously improve RVCA’s budgeting and financial reporting 
processes, staff presented RVCA’s 2020 budget in two parts: Operations and Capital. 
This step is in preparation for completing a long-term capital asset budget and capital 
asset management plan in 2020.  
 
At their November 28, 2019 meeting, the Board received a final draft budget for 2020 
and directed staff to circulate it to municipalities for consultation. This was completed on 
December 17, 2019. As of April 15, 2020 no comments had been received from  
member municipalities (comments were originally requested by February 18, 2020, this 
deadline was then extended to March 24, 2020).  
 
The attached draft budget which is being presented for approval, contains only one 
change from the draft budget that was presented in November and circulated to 
municipalities for consultation.  

• The Special Levy for Aquatic Monitoring in Ottawa (Water Quality Monitoring) 
has been reduced from $164,000 to $158,696 and program costs have been 
reduced accordingly.  

 
Analysis 
The attached draft budget totals $10,736,338 which can be broken down as follows: 
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2020 Draft Budget Overview
2019 Budget 2020 Budget

Operating Costs
Staffing Costs

Salary 4,521,557$      4,681,787$      
Payroll taxes and benefits 1,232,977$      1,258,118$      
Subtotal of Staffing Costs 5,754,534$      5,939,906$      

Non-Labour Operating Costs 2,981,924$      3,260,356$      
Rideau River Ice Management 675,059$         996,215$         
Total Operating Costs 9,411,517$      10,196,477$   

Capital Costs
Water Control Infrastructure TCA's 860,000$         -$                 
Other TCA's 55,000$           45,000$           
Reserve Transfers (net) 199,018$         239,293$         
Office Building Debenture Repayment 274,667$         255,568$         
Total Capital Costs 1,388,685$      539,861$         

Total 10,800,202$   10,736,338$    
 
 
Staffing Highlights 

• The attached draft budget supports 70 FTE’s, which is an increase of 2 FTEs 
from the 2019 budget. One FTE is a contract position that is externally funded 
and one represents a more accurate presentation of our usual summer student 
hiring for which we usually receive 50% government grant funding. There is no 
increase in permanent staff. 

• RVCA uses the August to August Consumer Price Index as a basis for their cost 
of living adjustment. This year, the Index was 1.9%. This budget includes a cost 
of living increase of 1.5% for staff, which represents a compromise between the 
pressures of cost of living and funding cuts.   

• This budget also accommodates grid movement of 2% for staff who are not at 
their full job rate and grid movement is contingent on a positive performance 
appraisal. 

• Overall, payroll taxes (WSIB, EI, CPP, EHT) and contribution rates for OMERS 
and Benefits remain largely unchanged from 2019. 

 
 
Program Highlights 
This section explains changes in program expenses and revenues compared to the 
2019 budget.  
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Watershed Science and Engineering Services 
• There is a $35,000 decrease in Surface Water Quality Monitoring revenues and 

costs, due entirely to a program funded by special levy for which the final amount 
had not been confirmed at the time of the 2019 budget.  The 2020 budget 
represents the actual value of the 2019 program, which is also the estimated 
value of the 2020 work. 

• There is a $30,000 decrease in Hydrometric Monitoring and Forecasting, 
reflecting a small reallocation of staff time out of this program, and some 
expected efficiencies to be achieved with new data collection and analysis 
methodology. 

• There is a $54,000 increase in programs revenues and costs in Flood Erosion 
and Drought Studies, representing a new federally funded project. 

• There is a $145,000 decrease in Groundwater Monitoring program revenues and 
costs due to the completion of a program that was funded by the City of Ottawa. 

• There is a $321,000 increase in Rideau River Ice Management, with a 
corresponding increase in Special Levy. 

 
Planning Advisory & Regulatory Services 

• There is a $30,000 increase in Site Specific Plan Review due to costs related to 
digitizing files, plus a small amount of staff reallocation to reflect actual effort on 
permit applications. 

• There is a $70,000 increase in Section 28 Conservation Authorities Act due 
mainly to reallocation of staff resources to increase our monitoring efforts.  We 
expect these increased monitoring efforts to generate some offsetting permit 
revenues and decrease our costs related to enforcement, which are largely 
unrecoverable. 

 
Stewardship Services 

• There is a $70,000 increase in program revenues and related costs in Private 
Land Forestry Assistance, due to increased funded activity.   

• There is a $50,000 decrease in funded program revenues and related costs in 
Shoreline Stewardship. 

 
Conservation Land Management Services 

• Baxter Conservation Area has a $25,000 increase in program revenues and 
associated casual staffing costs. 

 
Corporate Services 

• Management and Members has an increase of $10,000 to deal with costs 
associated with legislative changes expected in 2020. 

• Finance and Administration has an increase of $40,000 due to deal with 
increasing third party and legal costs associated with HR matters and FOI 
requests. 
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Capital Budget Highlights 
• The absence of Water Control Infrastructure Tangible Capital Assets (TCA’s) 

represents the trend in these types of projects.  Whereas in the past we would 
undertake the construction of infrastructure and then assume ownership of it, 
projects now tend to be of a contract engineering nature, where we plan and 
supervise the construction on a fee-for-service basis.  As such, these projects 
are not capital items.  

• This year’s proposed TCA’s consist of $30,000 for boardwalks and bridges 
repair/replacements at Baxter funded by existing capital reserves, plus $15,000 
for Hydrometrics gauges funded by current year capital levy.   

• The Office Building Debenture Repayment represents the principal portion of this  
year’s payments, as dictated by a repayment schedule entered into with the City 
of Ottawa which ends in 2030. 

 
Municipal Levy Highlights 

• The Municipal Levy will increase to $6,037,523 (3.5% increase from 2019) 
• Attached is a sheet showing what the levy apportionment would be to member 

municipalities.  
• Below is a chart showing how this proposed levy increase compares to years 

past. 
 

Budget  
Year 

Assessment 
Growth 

Municipal  
Levy 

Levy  
Increase 

Levy / $100,000 
of Assessment*  

2020 1.50 % $ 6,037,523 3.5 % $ 5.62 
2019 1.30 % $ 5,833,355 3.3 % $ 5.62 
2018 1.30 % $ 5,647,004 3.3 % $ 5.66 
2017 1.30 % $ 5,466,606 3.3 % $ 5.50 
2016 1.55 % $ 5,289,763 3.6 % $ 5.31 
2015 1.28 % $ 5,118,419 3.2 % $ 5.22 
2014 n/a $ 4,943,500 3.6 % $ 5.11 
2013 2.07 % $ 4,770,000 3.9 % $ 6.17 
2012 1.31 % $ 4,589,000 4.6 % $ 6.05 
2011 2.27 % $ 4,387,000 4.7 % $ 5.86 
2010 n/a $ 4,190,000 2.7 % $ 5.73 
2009 1.63 % $ 4,081,000 5.6 % $ 6.74 
2008  $ 3,865,000 5.4 % $ 6.48 

   * Based on Current Value Assessment (modified) provided by the Ministry of Natural Resources 
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Budget Direction 
This year, budget direction to staff from City of Ottawa Council was to stay within a 2% 
property tax increase. The three Ottawa Conservation Authorities (RVCA, SNC and 
MVCA) therefore began their 2020 budget process with a target levy increase of 
assessment growth plus 2%.  Assessment is the value of a property for taxation 
purposes (calculated by MPAC) while assessment growth is how much new 
assessment there is in an area from the previous year (e.g. new construction).  
Assessment growth automatically adds to a municipality’s tax revenue from one year to 
the next and Council can then decide whether to increase the tax rate on top of that. 
 
For 2020 assessment growth in the City of Ottawa is 1.5% which means the City would 
like our 2020 levy increase to be no more than 3.5% as this would be equivalent to a tax 
increase of 2%. Last year, the Municipality of North Grenville also indicated they sought 
a tax increase of no more than 2%. 
 
Input From Other Sources 
RVCA’s draft budget was circulated to all member municipalities on December 17, 2019 
for review and comment. Municipalities were asked to provide comments by February 
18, 2020 (this deadline was then extended to March 24, 2020). Staff also offered to 
present to municipal councils during this time and a brief overview of RVCA’s draft 2020 
budget was presented at our Municipal Engagement Session on January 17, 2020. As 
of April 15, 2020, no comments were received from municipalities.  
 
Financial Considerations 
See analysis section 
 
Legal Considerations 
RVCA’s draft 2020 budget and municipal levies are in accordance with: 

• Conservation Authorities Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. C.27 
• O. Reg. 670/00: Conservation Authority Levies 
• O. Reg. 139/96: Municipal Levies 

 
Adherence to RVCA Policy 
n/a 
 
Link to Strategic Plan 
This draft budget supports the implementation of multiple key priorities in the Strategic 
Plan. 

 
Attachments: 

• 2020 Draft Operations and Capital Budget (February 19, 2020) 
• 2020 Capital Budget Schedule 
• 2020 Draft Operations Budget Revenue Breakout (February 19, 2020) 
• 2020 Draft Capital Budget Revenue Breakout (February 19, 2020) 
• 2020 Proposed Municipal Levy Apportionment 
• 2020 Workplan  
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Rideau Valley Conservation Authority

2020 Draft Budget (dated February 19, 2020)

Fiscal 2018 

(Audited)
2019 Budget 2020 Budget

Operating Revenue

Municipal operating levies 5,647,004$    5,371,170$   5,559,161$    

Special levies 826,514$       809,059$      1,144,911$    

Rideau River Ice Management 793,014$    575,059$   946,215$    

Water Quality Monitoring -$   194,000$   158,696$    

Water Control Operations 10,000$   40,000$     40,000$   

Provincial funding 444,561$    473,490$   354,751$    

MNRF Operating Grant 242,687$    242,687$   121,344$    

Drinking Water Source Protection 201,874$    230,803$   233,407$    

Program Revenues

Watershed Science and Engineering Services 472,485$    273,425$   213,288$    

Surface Water Quality Monitoring 113,001$    -$     -$   

Hydrometric Monitoring and Forecasting 8,000$     -$     -$   

Flood Erosion and Drought Studies 125,015$    88,425$     169,488$    

Groundwater Monitoring 141,144$    145,000$   -$   

Aquatic and Terrestrial Habitat Monitoring 82,513$   40,000$     43,800$   

Water Control Infrastructure Operations 2,812$        -$        -$   

Planning Advisory and Regulatory Services 1,383,471$    1,134,941$   1,183,336$    

Site Specific Plan Review 369,038$    340,000$   346,800$    

S. 28 Conservation Authorities Act 295,273$    240,000$   284,800$    

Part IV Clean Water Act 20,599$   7,800$    7,800$     

Part VIII Building Code Act 678,707$    524,251$   505,828$    

Septic Re-Inspection Program 19,854$   22,889$     38,108$   

Stewardship Services 972,112$    963,632$   962,230$    

LRC - Storefront\General Stewardship 538$     -$     -$   

LRC - Production Centre 73,787$   -$     -$   

Private Land Forestry Assistance 598,546$    506,845$   605,932$    

Clean Water Program 138,043$    256,000$   206,000$    

Shoreline Stewardship Program 61,757$   134,064$   82,000$   

Beaver Management -$   -$     -$   

Ontario Rural Wastewater Centre 99,441$   66,723$     68,298$   

Conservation Land Management Services 332,999$    344,000$   337,000$    

Land Donations / Acquisitions 4,207$     20,000$     20,000$   

Baxter Conservation Area 161,813$    150,000$   175,000$    

Foley Mountain Conservation Area 88,711$   70,000$     72,000$   

Other Developed Conservation Areas 40,259$   59,000$     30,000$   

Other Conservation Lands 3,766$     13,000$     8,000$     

Lease and Management Agreements 34,243$   32,000$     32,000$   

Corporate Services 110,684$    41,800$     41,800$   

Finance and Administration 107,433$    40,000$     40,000$   

Communications 3,251$     1,800$    1,800$     

GIS -$   -$     -$   

Engineering Projects 298,863$    -$     400,000$    

Water Control Structures/Engineering 298,863$    -$     400,000$    

TOTAL REVENUES - OPERATING 10,488,693$     9,411,516$   10,196,477$     
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Fiscal 2018 

(Audited)
2019 Budget 2020 Budget

Expense

Watershed Science and Engineering Services 3,124,640$       2,971,714$         3,114,286$       

Program Management 177,164$          59,971$              91,483$            

Watershed Report Cards 203,429$          165,073$            159,395$          

Drinking Water Source Protection 201,874$          230,803$            233,407$          

Surface Water Quality Monitoring 320,871$          476,179$            435,043$          

Hydrometric Monitoring and Forecasting 224,025$          255,396$            225,129$          

Flood Erosion and Drought Studies 321,262$          323,578$            377,792$          

Groundwater Monitoring 236,311$          292,208$            110,655$          

Aquatic and Terrestrial Habitat Monitoring 405,973$          410,649$            403,301$          

Water Control Infrastructure Operations 982,586$          757,858$            1,078,082$       

Amortization 51,143$            -$                    -$                  

Planning Advisory and Regulatory Services 1,855,084$       2,085,638$         2,180,818$       

Program Management 92,283$            126,824$            129,580$          

Site Specific Plan Review 459,358$          613,817$            642,911$          

Non-Site Specific Plan Input 120,997$          173,730$            170,551$          

S. 28 Conservation Authorities Act 554,559$          595,727$            665,600$          

S. 28 Conservation Authorities Act - Program Dev. 40,594$            20,599$              20,439$            

Part IV Clean Water Act 20,599$            7,800$                7,800$              

Part VIII Building Code Act 544,000$          524,251$            505,828$          

Septic Re-Inspection Program 19,957$            22,889$              38,108$            

Amortization 2,736$              -$                    -$                  

Stewardship Services 1,653,548$       1,646,751$         1,628,031$       

Program Management 139,711$          148,197$            152,519$          

LRC - Storefront\General Stewardship 159,592$          -$                    -$                  

LRC - Production Centre 84,367$            -$                    

Private Land Forestry Assistance 595,476$          646,778$            720,421$          

Clean Water Program 372,234$          498,744$            451,885$          

Shoreline Stewardship Program 202,070$          279,846$            228,908$          

Beaver Management 9,070$              6,463$                6,000$              

Ontario Rural Wastewater Centre 88,361$            66,723$              68,298$            

Amortization 2,667$              -$                    -$                  

Conservation Land Management Services 1,114,254$       1,246,684$         1,300,006$       

Program Management 57,413$            88,449$              85,693$            

Land Donations / Acquisitions 4,207$              20,000$              20,000$            

Baxter Conservation Area 309,759$          310,206$            337,310$          

Foley Mountain Conservation Area 265,735$          298,142$            305,675$          

Other Developed Conservation Areas 204,099$          287,098$            297,179$          

Other Conservation Lands 188,778$          210,789$            222,148$          

Lease and Management Agreements 33,365$            32,000$              32,000$            

Amortization 50,898$            -$                    -$                  

Corporate Services 1,302,166$       1,493,516$         1,552,302$       

Management and Members 265,241$          298,674$            316,099$          

Finance and Administration 433,946$          421,772$            464,336$          

Communications 150,844$          276,396$            280,418$          

Foundation 77,111$            87,849$              92,736$            

GIS 185,061$          229,118$            231,690$          

Headquarter Lease and Management 189,965$          179,705$            167,023$          

Internal Cost (Recoveries) 152,098$          (53,820)$             (0)$                    

Common Cost (1,537)$             0$                       0$                     

Vehicles and Equipment (104,921)$         (68,518)$             (0)$                    

Amortization 263,003$          -$                    -$                  

Contingency -$                  14,699$              -$                  
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Gain on Disposal (4,447)$             -$                    -$                  

Engineering Projects 204,491$          -$                    400,000$          

Water Control Structures/Engineering 204,491$          -$                    400,000$          

Non Pension Post Retirement Benefit Obligation 21,034$            21,034$              21,034$            

Non pension post retirement benefit obligation 21,034$            21,034$              21,034$            

TOTAL EXPENSES - OPERATING 9,427,315$       9,411,516$         10,196,477$     

ANNUAL SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) - OPERATING 1,061,378$       0$                       0$                     

Capital Budget

Municipal levies - Capital 462,185$            478,361$          

Headquarters Building - Capital (repayments) 274,667$            255,568$          

Building Life Cycle Reserve Investment 70,000$              70,000$            

Other Asset Management - Capital - see schedule 20,000$              15,000$            

Transfers to Reserves 97,518$              137,793$          

Special levies - Capital 31,500$              31,500$            

Britannia Water Control Structure - Capital 21,500$              21,500$            

Other Water Control Structures - Capital 10,000$              10,000$            

Province - Capital -$                    -$                  

Foundation - Capital -$                    0$                     

Funded Capital Projects 860,000$            -$                  

Transfers from Capital Reserves - see schedule 35,000$              30,000$            

TOTAL REVENUES - CAPITAL 1,388,685$         539,861$          

Capital Expenses 1,259,667$         370,568$          

Principle Repayment of Obligation under Capital Lease HQ 274,667$            255,568$          

Capital Projects/Purchases - see schedule 915,000$            45,000$            

Transfer to Building Life Cycle Reserve 70,000$              70,000$            

Transfers to Reserves - see schedule 129,018$            169,293$          

TOTAL EXPENSES - CAPITAL 1,388,685$         539,861$          

ANNUAL SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) - CAPITAL -$                    0$                     

ANNUAL SURPLUS - OPERATING & CAPITAL 0$                       0$                     

Accounting Reconciling Items

Fiscal 2018 

(Audited)
2019 Budget 2020 Budget

TCA, Reserves, and Debenture Activity

Assets Capitalized as TCA (243,866)$         915,000$            45,000$            

Gain on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (4,447)$             -$                    

Amortization 370,448$          (358,600)$           (420,190)$         

Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 12,871$            -$                    

Repayment of obligation under capital lease (263,667)$         274,667$            255,568$          

Transfers from reserves 68,803$            (35,000)$             (30,000)$           

Transfers to reserves (1,000,909)$      119,018$            169,293$          

Accounting Surplus/(Deficit) 611$                 915,085$            19,671$            
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2020 Capital Budget Schedule

Capital Purchases

Baxter Boardwalk and Bridges 30,000$              Funded from Existing Reserves

Hydrometrics Monitoring Gauges 15,000$              Funded from Current Year Capital Budget

Total Capital Purchases 45,000$              

Transfers to Capital Reserves

Funded by Municipal Capital Levy

Mike 11 6,000$                Flood Erosion and Drought Studies software tool

Drape 3,000$                GIS data

Topographical Data 10,000$              GIS data

Flood Event Aerial Imaging 12,000$              Hydrometrics data

Water Control Infrastructure 100,000$            structures other than Britannia

Vehicles 6,793$                fleet reserve

137,793$            

Funded by Special Levy

Ottawa WCI 10,000$              

Britannia 21,500$              

31,500$              

Transfers other than Building 169,293$            

Building Life Cycle 70,000$              mandatory annual transfer

Total Capital Reserve Transfers 239,293$            
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Rideau Valley Conservation Authority

Revenue Breakdown

2020 Draft Operating Budget 

(dated February 19, 2020)
2019 Budget 2020 Budget 2019 Budget 2020 Budget 2019 Budget 2020 Budget 2019 Budget 2020 Budget 2019 Budget 2020 Budget 2019 Budget 2020 Budget 2019 Budget 2020 Budget

Watershed Science and Engineering Services

Program Management  $       42,508  $        82,983  $                -    $                -    $        17,000  $          8,500  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        59,508  $        91,483  $        59,971  $        91,483 

Watershed Report Cards  $     164,610  $      159,395  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      164,610  $      159,395  $      165,073  $      159,395 

Drinking Water Source Protection  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      230,803  $      233,407  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      230,803  $      233,407  $      230,803  $      233,407 

Surface Water Quality Monitoring  $     281,715  $      276,346  $      194,000  $      158,696  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      475,715  $      435,042  $      476,179  $      435,043 

Hydrometric Monitoring and Forecasting  $     217,433  $      215,129  $                -    $                -    $        10,000  $        10,000  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      227,433  $      225,129  $      255,396  $      225,129 

Flood Erosion and Drought Studies  $     173,003  $      180,461  $                -    $                -    $        55,687  $        27,844  $                -    $                -    $        88,425  $      169,488  $      317,115  $      377,792  $      323,578  $      377,792 

Groundwater Monitoring  $     146,745  $      110,655  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      145,000  $                -    $      291,745  $      110,655  $      292,208  $      110,655 

Aquatic and Terrestrial Habitat Monitoring  $     362,685  $      359,501  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        40,000  $        43,800  $      402,685  $      403,301  $      410,649  $      403,301 

Water Control Infrastructure Operations  $       24,836  $        27,866  $      615,059  $      986,215  $      117,500  $        64,000  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      757,395  $   1,078,081  $      757,858  $   1,078,082 

Amortization  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

 $  1,413,534  $   1,412,336  $      809,059  $   1,144,911  $      430,990  $      343,751  $                -    $                -    $      273,425  $      213,288  $   2,927,008  $   3,114,286  $   2,971,714  $   3,114,286 

Planning Advisory and Regulatory Services

Program Management  $     126,361  $      129,581  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      126,361  $      129,581  $      126,824  $      129,580 

Site Specific Plan Review  $     273,353  $      296,111  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      340,000  $      346,800  $      613,353  $      642,911  $      613,817  $      642,911 

Non-Site Specific Plan Input  $     161,266  $      159,551  $                -    $                -    $        12,000  $        11,000  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      173,266  $      170,551  $      173,730  $      170,551 

S. 28 Conservation Authorities Act  $     355,264  $      380,800  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      240,000  $      284,800  $      595,264  $      665,600  $      595,727  $      665,600 

S. 28 Conservation Authorities Act - Program Dev.  $       20,135  $        20,439  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        20,135  $        20,439  $        20,599  $        20,439 

Part IV Clean Water Act  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $          7,800  $          7,800  $          7,800  $          7,800  $          7,800  $          7,800 

Part VIII Building Code Act  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      524,251  $      505,828  $      524,251  $      505,828  $      524,251  $      505,828 

Septic Re-Inspection Program  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        22,889  $        38,108  $        22,889  $        38,108  $        22,889  $        38,108 

Amortization  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

 $     936,380  $      986,482  $                -    $                -    $        12,000  $        11,000  $                -    $                -    $   1,134,941  $   1,183,336  $   2,083,321  $   2,180,818  $   2,085,638  $   2,180,818 

Stewardship Services

Program Management  $     147,733  $      152,519  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      147,733  $      152,519  $      148,197  $      152,519 

LRC - Storefront\General Stewardship  $                0  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                 0  $                -    $                -    $                -   

Private Land Forestry Assistance  $     139,470  $      114,490  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        20,000  $      120,000  $      486,845  $      485,932  $      646,315  $      720,422  $      646,778  $      720,421 

Clean Water Program  $     242,280  $      245,885  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      256,000  $      206,000  $      498,280  $      451,885  $      498,744  $      451,885 

Shoreline Stewardship Program  $     145,318  $      146,907  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        94,000  $        40,000  $        40,064  $        42,000  $      279,382  $      228,907  $      279,846  $      228,908 

Beaver Management  $         6,000  $          6,000  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $          6,000  $          6,000  $          6,463  $          6,000 

Ontario Rural Wastewater Centre  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        66,723  $        68,298  $        66,723  $        68,298  $        66,723  $        68,298 

Amortization  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

 $     680,802  $      665,801  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      114,000  $      160,000  $      849,632  $      802,230  $   1,644,434  $   1,628,031  $   1,646,751  $   1,628,031 

Conservation Land Management Services

Program Management  $       87,986  $        85,693  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        87,986  $        85,693  $        88,449  $        85,693 

Land Donations / Acquisitions  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        10,000  $        10,000  $        10,000  $        10,000  $        20,000  $        20,000  $        20,000  $        20,000 

Baxter Conservation Area  $     159,743  $      162,310  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $          5,000  $          5,000  $      145,000  $      170,000  $      309,743  $      337,310  $      310,206  $      337,310 

Foley Mountain Conservation Area  $     227,679  $      233,675  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $          6,000  $          6,000  $        64,000  $        66,000  $      297,679  $      305,675  $      298,142  $      305,675 

Other Developed Conservation Areas  $     227,635  $      267,179  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        59,000  $        30,000  $      286,635  $      297,179  $      287,098  $      297,179 

Other Conservation Lands  $     197,325  $      214,148  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $          8,000  $        13,000  $                -    $      210,325  $      222,148  $      210,789  $      222,148 

Lease and Management Agreements  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        32,000  $        32,000  $        32,000  $        32,000  $        32,000  $        32,000 

Amortization  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

 $     900,367  $      963,004  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        21,000  $        29,000  $      323,000  $      308,000  $   1,244,367  $   1,300,004  $   1,246,684  $   1,300,006 

Corporate Services

Management and Members  $     287,711  $      316,099  $                -    $                -    $        10,500  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      298,211  $      316,099  $      298,674  $      316,099 

Finance and Administration  $     371,261  $      424,338  $                -    $                -    $        20,000  $                -    $                -    $                -    $        40,000  $        40,000  $      431,261  $      464,338  $      421,772  $      464,336 

Communications  $     273,670  $      278,618  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $          1,800  $          1,800  $      275,470  $      280,418  $      276,396  $      280,418 

Foundation  $       87,386  $        92,736  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        87,386  $        92,736  $        87,849  $        92,736 

GIS  $     225,655  $      231,690  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      225,655  $      231,690  $      229,118  $      231,690 

Headquarter Lease and Management  $     179,705  $      167,023  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      179,705  $      167,023  $      179,705  $      167,023 

 $  1,425,388  $   1,510,504  $                -    $                -    $        30,500  $                -    $                -    $                -    $        41,800  $        41,800  $   1,497,688  $   1,552,304  $   1,493,515  $   1,552,302 

TOTAL EXPENSESMunicipal Levy Special Levy Province Foundation Other Revenue TOTAL REVENUE

REVENUE EXPENSES
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Internal Cost (Recoveries)

Common Cost  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                 0  $                 0 

Vehicles and Equipment  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $       (68,518)  $                (0)

Amortization  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Contingency  $       14,699  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        14,699  $                -    $        14,699  $                -   

Gain on Disposal  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

 $       14,699  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        14,699  $                -    $       (53,820)  $                (0)

Engineering Projects

Water Control Structures/Engineering  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      400,000  $                -    $      400,000  $                -    $      400,000 

 $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      400,000  $                -    $      400,000  $                -    $      400,000 

Non Pension Post Retirement Benefit Obligation

Non pension post retirement benefit obligation  $               -    $        21,034  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        21,034  $        21,034  $        21,034 

 $               -    $        21,034  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        21,034  $        21,034  $        21,034 

OPERATING SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)  $  5,371,170  $   5,559,161  $      809,059  $   1,144,911  $      473,490  $      354,751  $      135,000  $      189,000  $   2,622,798  $   2,948,654  $   9,411,516  $ 10,196,477  $   9,411,516  $ 10,196,477 
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Rideau Valley Conservation Authority

Revenue Breakdown

2020 Draft Capital Budget 

(dated February 19, 2020)
2019 Budget 2020 Budget 2019 Budget 2020 Budget 2019 Budget 2020 Budget 2019 Budget 2020 Budget 2019 Budget 2020 Budget 2019 Budget 2020 Budget 2019 Budget 2020 Budget

Watershed Science and Engineering Services

Program Management  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Watershed Report Cards  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Drinking Water Source Protection  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Surface Water Quality Monitoring  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Hydrometric Monitoring and Forecasting  $       27,500  $        27,000  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        27,500  $        27,000  $        27,500  $        27,000 

Flood Erosion and Drought Studies  $         6,000  $          6,000  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $          6,000  $          6,000  $          6,000  $          6,000 

Groundwater Monitoring  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Aquatic and Terrestrial Habitat Monitoring  $         7,500  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $          7,500  $                -    $          7,500  $                -   

Water Control Infrastructure Operations  $               -    $      100,000  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      100,000  $        31,500  $      100,000 

Amortization  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

 $       41,000  $      133,000  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        41,000  $      133,000  $        72,500  $      133,000 

Planning Advisory and Regulatory Services

Program Management  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Site Specific Plan Review  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Non-Site Specific Plan Input  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

S. 28 Conservation Authorities Act  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

S. 28 Conservation Authorities Act - Program Dev.  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Part IV Clean Water Act  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Part VIII Building Code Act  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Septic Re-Inspection Program  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Amortization  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

 $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Stewardship Services

Program Management  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

LRC - Storefront\General Stewardship  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Private Land Forestry Assistance  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Clean Water Program  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Shoreline Stewardship Program  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Beaver Management  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Ontario Rural Wastewater Centre  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Amortization  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

 $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Conservation Land Management Services

Program Management  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Land Donations / Acquisitions  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Baxter Conservation Area  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        30,000  $                -    $        30,000  $                -    $        30,000 

Foley Mountain Conservation Area  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Other Developed Conservation Areas  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Other Conservation Lands  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Lease and Management Agreements  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Amortization  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

 $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        30,000  $                -    $        30,000  $                -    $        30,000 

Corporate Services

Management and Members  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Finance and Administration  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Communications  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

Foundation  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

GIS  $         3,000  $        13,000  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $          3,000  $        13,000  $          3,000  $        13,000 

Headquarter Lease and Management  $     344,667  $      325,568  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      344,667  $      325,568  $      344,667  $      325,568 

 $     347,667  $      338,568  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      347,667  $      338,568  $      347,667  $      338,568 

REVENUE EXPENSES

Municipal Levy Special Levy Province Foundation Other Revenue TOTAL REVENUE TOTAL EXPENSES
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Internal Cost (Recoveries)

Common Cost  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                 0  $                -   

Vehicles and Equipment  $       73,518  $          6,793  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        35,000  $                -    $      108,518  $          6,793  $      108,518  $          6,793 

Amortization  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                 0  $                -   

Contingency  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                 0  $                -   

Gain on Disposal  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                 0  $                -   

 $       73,518  $          6,793  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $        35,000  $                -    $      108,518  $          6,793  $      108,518  $          6,793 

Engineering Projects

Water Control Structures/Engineering  $               -    $                -    $        31,500  $        31,500  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      860,000  $                -    $      891,500  $        31,500  $      860,000  $        31,500 

 $               -    $                -    $        31,500  $        31,500  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      860,000  $                -    $      891,500  $        31,500  $      860,000  $        31,500 

Non Pension Post Retirement Benefit Obligation

Non pension post retirement benefit obligation  $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

 $               -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -   

CAPITAL SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)  $     462,185  $      478,361  $        31,500  $        31,500  $                -    $                -    $                -    $                -    $      895,000  $        30,000  $   1,388,685  $      539,861  $   1,388,685  $      539,861 
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RVCA Member 

Municipality

Percentage  

in Watershed

For 

2019

For 

2020
Difference 

For 

2019

For 

2020
Difference

For 

2019

For 

2020
Difference 

Athens* 4 12,592,060$   12,857,817$  265,756.78$   0.0121 0.0120 -0.0001 1,500.00$   1,600.00$  $100.00

North Dundas* 1 15,361,337$   16,359,627$  998,290.11$   0.0148 0.0152 0.0004 1,500.00$   1,600.00$  $100.00

Clarence-Rockland 3 90,820,629$   94,381,892$  3,561,262.89$   0.0876 0.0879 0.0003 5,108.64$   5,305.75$  $197.11

Westport 100 113,587,437$   118,120,928$   4,533,490.85$   0.1096 0.1100 0.0004 6,389.27$   6,640.26$  $250.99

Augusta 19 152,973,266$   157,955,403$   4,982,136.69$   0.1475 0.1471 -0.0004 8,604.71$   8,879.58$  $274.87

Central Frontenac 22 200,910,283$   207,003,784$   6,093,501.44$   0.1938 0.1928 -0.0010 11,301.16$   11,636.87$   $335.71

Merrickville-Wolford 100 378,495,995$   393,570,010$   15,074,015.25$   0.3651 0.3666 0.0015 21,290.32$   22,124.83$   $834.52

Montague 100 384,241,190$   404,161,141$   19,919,951.25$   0.3706 0.3764 0.0058 21,613.48$   22,720.22$   $1,106.74

South Frontenac 13 421,589,078$   433,431,737$   11,842,659.15$   0.4066 0.4037 -0.0029 23,714.29$   24,365.69$   $651.40

Elizabethtown - Kitley 61 690,548,792$   702,302,839$   11,754,046.57$   0.6660 0.6541 -0.0119 38,843.22$   39,480.48$   $637.27

Beckwith 64 756,573,135$   785,659,419$   29,086,284.20$   0.7297 0.7317 0.0020 42,557.07$   44,166.44$   $1,609.36

Drummond/North Elmsley 70 765,180,901$   788,293,037$   23,112,136.35$   0.7380 0.7342 -0.0038 43,041.26$   44,314.49$   $1,273.23

Tay Valley 65 807,896,542$   829,004,474$   21,107,931.76$   0.7792 0.7721 -0.0071 45,444.00$   46,603.11$   $1,159.11

Smiths Falls 100 864,768,062$   886,651,308$   21,883,246.15$   0.8341 0.8258 -0.0083 48,643.01$   49,843.77$   $1,200.76

Perth 100 880,975,615$   907,156,260$   26,180,644.70$   0.8497 0.8449 -0.0048 49,554.68$   50,996.47$   $1,441.79

Rideau Lakes 51 1,162,003,636$   1,194,637,120$   32,633,483.78$   1.1208 1.1126 -0.0082 65,362.45$   67,157.43$   $1,794.98

North Grenville 67 1,708,213,328$   1,778,421,344$   70,208,016.39$   1.6476 1.6563 0.0087 96,086.62$   99,975.29$   $3,888.67

Ottawa 46 94,272,384,576$     97,661,448,790$   3,389,064,214.18$    90.9271 90.9567 0.0296 5,302,800.81$     5,490,111.87$    $187,311.06

103,679,115,862$   107,371,416,930$   3,692,301,068 100 100 0 5,833,355 6,037,523$   204,168$     

*Athens and North Dundas are charged our minimum levy amount which is $1,600 for 2020. 3.5%

Rideau Valley Conservation Authority - 2020 Proposed Municipal Levy Apportionment

Levy Increase: 

Current Value Assessment (modified) 

in Watershed

TOTALS:

Levy Portion     

Based on CVA (modified)
Municipal Levy

(February 19, 2020)
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ince our formation in 1966, the RVCA 

has worked with our municipal partners 

to deliver programs and services that 

protect the Rideau watershed for the 

benefit of everyone. Our goal is to ensure 

actions upstream don’t have detrimental 

impacts downstream.

 

Municipalities understand that it takes a healthy 

watershed to support local economies, protect 

public health, reduce flooding, droughts and 

erosion and make communities resilient to 

climate change.  In 2020, we continue on 

this path as we work to conserve our shared 

watershed and ensure our future. 

Our Legislative Mandate

To provide programs and services designed 

to further the conservation, restoration, 

development and management of natural 

resources in the Rideau watershed 

(Conservation Authorities Act).

Our Vision 

A thriving watershed with clean abundant 

water, natural shorelines, rich forests and 

wetlands, diverse habitats and sustainable land 

use that is valued and protected by all. 

Our Mission 

To understand, manage, protect, restore 

and enhance the Rideau watershed through 

science, stewardship, education, policy  

and leadership. 

Our Priorities 

Our Strategic Plan outlines a number of key 

priorities. Some are now complete, while 

others will be achieved this year and are 

highlighted in our “Special for 2020” boxes. 

SS
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The RVCA’s proposed budget for 2020 is $10.74 million and will 

enable the RVCA to continue making progress on a number of 

important priorities. This budget is a small decrease from last 

year’s budget of $10.76 million due in large part to fewer erosion 

control infrastructure projects being undertaken in 2020, offset 

by an increase in ice management costs. 

Our proposed budget for 2020 can be broken down into three 

main expenditures:

• 9 percent for Rideau River Ice Management 

• 5 percent for capital projects

• 86 percent for operations to deliver all programs and services

2020 Budget

Expenditures

• Staff time has been reallocated among programs and 

departments for 2020 to support the completion of 

strategic priorities, better reflect program costs and better 

serve our municipalities and watershed residents

• Reserve contributions for regularly occurring capital 

expenses have been included as recommended by  

our Auditor 

• This budget continues to reflect our 2018 corporate 

restructuring which resulted in an overall reduction of  

2 permanent staff FTEs 

• Like our member municipalities, salary costs increase 

annually. While benefit and OMERS contribution rates as 

well as payroll taxes remained relatively steady over last 

year, grid movement is set at 2 percent for any staff still 

moving through their salary band. The RVCA also uses 

the Consumer Price Index as our economic adjustment 

figure. This year the figure was 1.9 percent but this budget 

has only accommodated an increase of 1.5 percent.

Revenues

• Annual provincial funding from the Ministry of Natural 

Resources and Forestry was cut by $117,401 in 2019 

which has been absorbed in this budget 

• Other revenue streams such as program and user fees, 

fundraising and grants is increasing by 4.2% or $418,865 

from last year

• Special levies to the City of Ottawa will increase overall  

by $371,156 to reflect increased costs for Rideau River  

Ice Management 

• The municipal levy will increase by $186,351. This is a 

3.5 percent increase which equates to a 2 percent tax 

increase as 1.5 percent will come from new assessment 

growth in the watershed. This is in keeping with municipal 

budget direction in recent years.

Special Levies $1,181,715

Provincial Funding $354,751

Other Revenue $3,167,654

Municipal Levy $6,037,522

Total: $10,741,642

Watershed Science &
Engineering Services $3,519,590

Stewardship Services $1,628,031

Planning Advisory &

Regulatory Services $2,180,818

Conservation Land
Management Services $1,300,006

Corporate Services $1,573,336

Capital Projects $300,568

Transfer to Reserves $239,293

Total: $10,741,642

Where does the money come from? Where does the investment go?

Special Levies $1,181,715

Provincial Funding $354,751

Other Revenue $3,167,654

Municipal Levy $6,037,522

Total: $10,741,642

Watershed Science &
Engineering Services $3,519,590

Stewardship Services $1,628,031

Planning Advisory &

Regulatory Services $2,180,818

Conservation Land
Management Services $1,300,006

Corporate Services $1,573,336

Capital Projects $300,568

Transfer to Reserves $239,293

Total: $10,741,642
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Being a municipally-based organization, the foundation of our 

budget is the municipal levy. However, we are committed to 

minimizing pressure on the levy and for the sixth consecutive 

year, the RVCA has kept its municipal levy increase to a two 

percent tax increase by reducing costs, finding efficiencies and 

maximizing other revenue sources. While the levy remains the 

foundation of our budget, other sources make up nearly half 

our revenue. This means that for every dollar invested through 

the municipal levy, the RVCA is able to double that investment 

to deliver a variety of programs and services in the Rideau 

watershed. Our other revenue sources include:

• Charging fees for education programs, conservation areas, 

permits and planning comments 

• Getting grants for special projects, students and interns 

• Fundraising through our Foundation 

• Special levies for specific projects that benefit a  

particular municipality 

• Joint programming and staff sharing with neighbouring 

conservation authorities 

• Landowner contributions for services they receive

Municipal Levy Apportionment
Based on assessment value, the City of Ottawa will pay almost 

91 percent of RVCA’s levy in 2020. This amounts to $5.49 million 

leaving our other 17 municipalities to share the remaining 

$547,411. Levy costs for these municipalities range from $1,600 to 

$99,975 depending on their assessment.

Municipal Levy

RVCA Services
Serving our Municipalities and Residents
RVCA staff work closely with municipal staff because our work 

is so interconnected. In fact, it’s hard to find a municipal service 

that our programs don’t support either directly or indirectly! For 

example, our work supports municipal development review, 

emergency management, water and sewage services, tourism 

and recreation and of course economic development. And the 

benefit of a conservation authority is that these programs are 

delivered consistently across the watershed at a fraction of the 

cost because our staff are shared among 18 municipalities and 

sometimes neighbouring Conservation Authorities. This saves 

money and avoids duplication. RVCA’s programs also serve 

a wide range of public interests and needs benefiting local 

watershed residents from lake country to agricultural areas to 

urban communities. 

Through the RVCA, municipalities and residents have access to 

expert staff who develop a strong understanding of our local 

watershed and share their knowledge, expertise and skills with our 

partners. In the following pages, you will find information about 

all of RVCA’s programs and services organized into five key areas:

 

1. Watershed Science and Engineering Services

2. Planning Advisory & Regulatory Services

3. Stewardship Services

4. Conservation Land Management Services

5. Corporate Services
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Watershed Science &  
Engineering Services

RVCA collects, monitors and analyses watershed data to gain 

a better understand of natural hazards and the health of our 

watershed. This includes understanding local flood, erosion and 

slope stability hazards as well as the condition of local lakes and 

streams, forest and wetland cover as well as fish and aquatic 

communities. This knowledge enables RVCA, municipalities 

and other partners to make informed decisions about how best 

to manage our shared natural resources, protect people and 

property from natural hazards and tailor programs and services 

to meet the evolving needs of our watershed. This information 

and data is shared with municipalities, partners and the public 

through online tools, maps, reports, presentations and other 

accessible means. 

Watershed Science and Engineering Services includes:

• Watershed Reporting

• Drinking Water Source Protection

• Surface Water Quality Monitoring

• Hydrometric Monitoring and Forecasting

• Flood and Hazard Mapping

• Groundwater Monitoring

• Aquatic & Terrestrial Habitat Monitoring

• Habitat and Wetland Restoration

• City Stream Watch

• Water, Flood and Erosion Control Structures

Special for 2020  
• Enhance RVCA’s monitoring network and modeling for flood forecasting and warning

• Complete flood and hazard mapping on Bilberry Creek, Stevens Creek, Upper Jock River and Mosquito Creek

• Deliver the City Stream Watch Program on Black Rapids, Sawmill Creek, Mud Creek and Cardinal Creek

• Incorporate Watershed Watch water quality data into RVCA’s centralized database (WISKI)

• Review RVCA’s environmental monitoring efforts watershed-wide 

• Target poor water quality sites to better understand causes and develop mitigation plans

• Complete the Stillwater Creek Stabilization Project 

• Conduct post-effectiveness monitoring on recent habitat creation and improvement projects at Jebbs Creek, Remic 

Rapids, Wolfe Lake, Scanlan Creek, Otter Lake and Otty Lake

• Work with the Province to update technical rules under the Clean Water Act and then revise local technical reports 

and source protection policies to reflect these changes
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Watershed Science and Engineering Services includes:

Watershed Reporting

• Report on the health of the watershed through user- 

friendly, accessible analysis of the RVCA’s extensive 

monitoring programs. 

• Identify concerns, trends and priority areas for action at  

both a subwatershed and catchment scale.

• Engage with municipalities, watershed residents, NGOs  

and government agencies to focus watershed management 

actions where they are needed most.

Drinking Water Source Protection

• Administer the province’s Drinking Water Source Protection 

Program under the Clean Water Act in the Mississippi and 

Rideau watersheds.

• Help protect present and future sources of municipal drinking 

water from contamination and overuse.

• Work with municipalities, provincial ministries, property 

owners, businesses, health units and others to implement 

source protection policies.

Surface Water Quality Monitoring

• Provide a consistent baseline dataset that can give a general 

indication of water quality in the watershed. 

• Assess the contribution of tributary streams to loadings in the 

Rideau River and upper watershed lakes. 

• Monitor ambient water quality conditions at locations on 

major tributary streams and watershed lakes.

• Involve local lake residents in monitoring to increase the 

extent of monitoring activities and provide training to develop 

consistent methods to ensure data integrity. 

• Sample bottom dwelling bugs (benthic invertebrates) to 

determine water quality and habitat conditions using a 

biological method which compliments water chemistry 

sampling programs.

Hydrometric Monitoring and Forecasting

• Collect, manage, analyze and disseminate data and 

information about the abundance or scarcity of surface water 

resources within the watershed.

• Issue flood and drought advisories and warnings as needed.

• Expand data availability through the RVCA website.

Flood and Hazard Mapping

• Study and map hazard lands as defined by the MNRF such 

as floodplain, steep slopes and unstable soils for effective 

administration and enforcement of regulations under Section 

28 of the Conservation Authorities Act. 

• Support municipalities with up-to-date mapping of hazard 

lands for Official Plan and Zoning By-law schedules. 

• Refine RVCA’s numerical watershed modeling system for use 

in floodplain hydrology and hydraulic analyses for ungauged 

watersheds and for investigating the potential impacts of land 

use and climate change on a watershed scale.

Groundwater Monitoring

• Monitor groundwater conditions as part of the Provincial 

Groundwater Monitoring Network.

• Collect data from 16 groundwater monitoring wells at  

13 different locations.

• House and share hydrogeological information with  

watershed partners.
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Aquatic & Terrestrial Habitat Monitoring

• Collect information on the physical and biological  

attributes of surveyed creeks and streams (habitat  

surveys, fish sampling, thermal regime) through the  

Stream Characterization program. 

• Inventory detailed land cover information to help  

facilitate land use planning and regulations, ecosystem  

management and conservation objectives for the RVCA  

and member municipalities.

• Collect field survey information to assist landowners and 

municipalities when attempting to understand flooding issues 

as a result of beaver dam activity.

• Collect information on headwater drainage features through a 

rapid assessment method characterizing the amount of water, 

sediment transport, and storage capacity within headwater 

drainage features.

• Undertake Ontario Stream Assessment Protocol at  

special Habitat Restoration project sites as a tool for post 

effective monitoring.

Habitat and Wetland Restoration

• Create, restore and/or enhance fish and wildlife habitats in  

the watershed.

• Use watershed monitoring data to identify opportunities and 

at-risk areas.

• Partner with like-minded organizations to secure funds and 

complete restoration work. 

• Conduct post-construction monitoring for five years to 

measure project success.

City Stream Watch

• Monitor, record and report on the health of 25 creeks  

and streams within the City of Ottawa.

• Gather information using a robust network of  

trained volunteers.

• Collect information about the physical and biological 

characteristics of creeks and streams following  

rigorous protocol.

• Use data to guide rehabilitation and enhancement projects.

Water, Flood and Erosion Control Structures

• Operate and maintain water, flood and erosion control 

structures (berms, dams and weirs).

• Determine whether to maintain, rehabilitate or  

decommission existing structures.

• Work with municipalities interested in constructing  

or replacing structures to alleviate flooding or  

erosion concerns.
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Planning Advisory  
& Regulatory Services

RVCA plays a key role in development review to help 

municipalities and the province meet their legislative 

responsibilities of providing safe drinking water, protecting 

people from natural hazards and protecting important natural 

features. Our role includes providing comments to municipalities 

on Planning Act applications and municipal planning documents; 

issuing permits for development in areas vulnerable to flooding, 

erosion or unstable slopes or near wetlands, shorelines or 

watercourses; issuing approvals for septic systems and re-

inspecting lakefront septic systems in some municipalities; 

and regulating activities near sources of municipal drinking 

water. Staff provide a comprehensive streamlined service to 

municipalities and applicants that brings together local watershed 

knowledge and provincial policies to reduce municipal liability, 

avoid delays and unnecessary expenses for applicants, and 

create safe sustainable communities. 

Planning Advisory & Regulatory Services include:

• Site-Specific Plan Review 

• Non Site-Specific Plan Input 

• Section 28 Regulations

• Septic Approvals 

• Septic Re-Inspection

• Source Water Regulations

Special for 2020 
• Update Planning MOUs with Lanark County and the United Counties of Leeds and Grenville 

• Prepare policies for site-specific and non-site specific plan review

• Update policies for the administration of Section 28 of the Conservation Authorities Act

• Enhance follow-up monitoring to ensure compliance with Section 28 permit conditions 

• Continue to promote septic approval and septic re-inspection services to municipalities 

• Work with municipalities to further streamline development review and improve client service 

• Implement annual reporting on RVCA’s compliance with timelines to process permits and provide planning 

comments to municipalities 
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Planning Advisory & Regulatory Services include:

Site-Specific Plan Review 

• Review planning applications on behalf of the Province  

and municipalities.

• Provide comments to municipalities on natural hazards 

(floodplains, steep slopes, unstable soils), natural heritage 

(wetlands, significant woodlands, significant valley lands) and 

surface and ground water quality and quantity. 

• Staff work closely with applicants to discuss concerns and 

alternatives and prepare recommendations to the municipal 

approval authority.

• RVCA’s review and recommendations brings local  

watershed science, provincial policies and guidelines,  

and individual municipality needs together to ensure 

sustainable development.

Non Site-Specific Plan Input

• Provide input to municipalities on official plans, 

comprehensive zoning by-laws, environmental assessments 

and other special studies in an effort to identify natural 

hazards and protect and enhance surface and groundwater 

quality and quantity, wetlands and other natural features. 

• Participate on technical advisory committees that oversee  

the preparation of master servicing studies, community  

design plans, subwatershed studies and environmental 

management plans. 

• Sharing watershed knowledge and expertise with 

municipalities through these processes helps build  

sustainable communities.

Section 28 Regulations

• Regulate development, interference with wetlands and 

alterations to shorelines and watercourses as mandated by 

the Conservation Authorities Act. 

• Mapping is prepared to show where development is  

regulated including hazard lands such as floodplains,  

steep slopes and unstable soils.

• Staff work closely with property owners to guide them 

through the permitting process and encourage pre-

consultation to avoid unnecessary costs and delays.

• Staff also work with property owners to resolve issues of 

non-compliance and violations outside of the legal system 

wherever possible. 

Septic Approvals 

• Provide full review and approval services for private septic 

systems under Part 8 of the Ontario Building Code.

• This service is available to interested municipalities and 

is currently provided in the City of Ottawa and Tay Valley 

Township in partnership with our neighbouring  

Conservation Authorities.

• Staff work closely with local septic designers and installers  

as well as property owners when delivering this service.

Septic Re-Inspection

• Provide mandatory and discretionary inspection  

programs for existing private septic systems under  

the Ontario Building Code.

• This service is available to interested municipalities and is 

currently provided in the Township of Central Frontenac, 

Township of North Frontenac, Township of Rideau Lakes  

and Tay Valley Township.

• Staff work closely with property owners, lake associations  

and other local partners when delivering this service.

Source Water Regulations

• Act as Risk Management Inspectors and Officials on behalf 

of 12 municipalities in the Mississippi and Rideau watersheds. 

This service implements policies in the Mississippi-Rideau 

Source Protection Plan under Part IV of the Clean Water Act.

• Screen development applications within vulnerable drinking 

water areas on behalf of municipalities.
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Stewardship Services
RVCA provides technical and financial support to landowners 

and other partners to help them undertake projects on private 

and public property that will improve watershed health. Projects 

include tree planting, naturalizing shorelines, managing runoff, 

enhancing habitat and upgrading wells and septic systems. 

Staff work closely with private landowners, municipalities, lake 

associations, NGOs, community groups, businesses, government 

agencies and the public to complete these important on-

the-ground projects. Information from RVCA’s science and 

monitoring programs help target areas and projects that provide 

the most benefit. Completing landowner stewardship projects 

across the watershed helps improve water quality, increase forest 

and wetland cover, reduce flooding and erosion and increase 

climate change resiliency. 

Stewardship Services includes:

• Tree Planting

• Butternut Recovery 

• Rural Clean Water

• Shoreline Naturalization

• Beaver Management

• Ontario Rural Wastewater Centre

Special for 2020 
• Complete thinning of conservation area plantations 

• Explore forest certification on RVCA properties

• Complete a tree planting compensation project for Hydro Ottawa along the Jock River

• Assist with the Bilberry Creek Shoreline Restoration Project

• Target shoreline naturalization projects in the Tay and Lower Rideau subwatersheds

• Continue to promote small-scale runoff reduction projects, invasive species management and pollinator/wildlife 

habitat enhancement

• Complete planting projects on Mosquito Creek in partnership with the Riverside South Community Association

• Work with member municipalities to promote and implement shoreline buffer conditions as part of site plan control
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Tree Planting

• Deliver a quality, full-service tree planting program to rural 

landowners that plants 200,000 trees a year on private land.

• Provide significant cost subsidies through external funding.

• Provide technical advice on woodlot management and best 

practices for landowners

• Review Conservation Areas coniferous plantations for  

thinning opportunities and potential revenue generation.

Butternut Recovery 

• Help repopulate the endangered butternut tree through the 

development of healthy, disease-tolerant seedlings.

• Locate healthy, disease-tolerant butternuts on private lands.

• Collect seeds to grow seedlings for distribution to landowners 

free of charge. 

Rural Clean Water

• Provide financial and technical assistance to farmers and  

rural landowners undertaking projects to protect and improve 

water quality in the watershed.

• Address erosion control and reduce the amount of nutrients, 

bacteria and microorganisms entering groundwater and 

surface water.

• Provide financial support through cost-share grants. 

• Promote and support best management practices that 

address both surface and groundwater issues.

Shoreline Naturalization

• Increase the amount of natural shoreline cover across  

the watershed.

• Provide a simple and affordable option for landowners 

to complete naturalization projects on their shoreline by 

providing free advisory site visits, customized planting plans, 

subsidized native trees and shrubs, project management and 

monitoring and assistance with planting installation. 

• Work closely with municipalities, Parks Canada and  

RVCA regulatory staff to facilitate planting requirements  

for planning and permit applications when needed. 

• Fundraise for special large-scale projects and stewardship 

targeting.

Beaver Management

• Track nuisance beaver calls, distribute beaver management 

information to landowners and municipalities and assist with 

advice on managing beavers and dams 

• In certain circumstances, provide monitoring and coordinate 

trapping and dam breaching for municipalities addressing 

wide-spread beaver activity causing flood damage.

Ontario Rural Wastewater Centre

• Develop and teach courses for septic installers, designers and 

regulators looking to advance their knowledge of  

design, inspection, and repairing on-site systems.

• Ensure best practices, technology and innovations are  

being used across the industry.

• Manage and maintain a demonstration site at Baxter 

Conservation Area that provides hands-on learning  

through displays of a wide variety of wastewater  

treatment technologies.

Stewardship Services includes:
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Conservation Land 
Management Services

RVCA accepts land donations to protect valuable features like 

forests, wetlands and shorelines in perpetuity. Staff manage these 

properties so natural features are left to perform natural functions 

like slowing runoff, filtering pollutants, reducing flooding and 

erosion and providing habitat. Some properties are developed 

into public conservation areas to encourage residents to spend 

time outdoors and develop an appreciation for nature. Two 

conservation areas also offer outdoor education programs to 

get children outside and teach them about the importance of 

our natural environment and the need to protect it for future 

generations. RVCA’s conservation areas are valued by local 

communities and municipalities as they provide affordable 

recreation, tourism and education for local residents and visitors.

Conservation Land Management Services includes:

• Conservation Lands

• Conservation Areas

• Outdoor Education

Special for 2020 
• Update Foley Mountain Conservation Area’s Management Plan  

• Complete Natural Areas Management Plans for recently acquired lands 

• Revitalize the pond at Perth Wildlife Reserve as a Species at Risk compensation project

• Work with Ducks Unlimited to install a new flood control structure and culvert at Mica Mines

• Work with local partners to enhance the Hutton Creek Marsh upstream of the Motts Mills Conservation Area

• Improve parking at Chapman Mills Conservation Area, renovate picnic shelter at Portland Bay Conservation Area and 

replace culverts at Baxter Conservation Area

• Continue fundraising campaign to improve boardwalks and accessibility at Baxter Conservation Area and complete 

interim repairs to the boardwalk bridge 

• Expand RVCA’s Forest School program 
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Conservation Land Management Services include:

Conservation Lands

• Accept land donations to protect high-quality natural areas  

in perpetuity for their invaluable environmental and  

ecological services and public benefits.

• Manage 59 properties (3,000+ hectares) of critical  

green infrastructure.

• Develop management plans for each property to ensure 

strategic land use planning and efficient use of resources.

Conservation Areas

• Welcome more than 200,000 visitors annually to  

11 public conservation areas.

• Provide nature-based recreation and visitor experiences 

through trails, picnic shelters, beaches, boat launches,  

docks and lookout points.

• Connect people to nature and ensure people of all 

backgrounds, abilities and circumstances can access  

natural areas and the Rideau River system.

Outdoor Education

• Deliver high quality, curriculum-based education programs, 

day camps and group programs that promote the values  

of conservation and environmental stewardship.

• Maintain quality facilities and interpretive centres at Baxter  

and Foley Mountain Conservation Areas where these 

programs and camps are offered.

• Incorporate new technology into education programs to 

enhance learning experiences.

• Encourage families and children to be active in outdoor  

play all-year-round.
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Corporate Services
The RVCA is a public sector body committed to operating in 

an open, accountable and transparent manner. Working with 

all levels of government, residents, businesses and community 

partners the RVCA delivers programs and services that conserve, 

restore and responsibly manage land and water resources while 

balancing human, environmental and economic interests. As 

the needs of our watershed change, RVCA remains agile in 

the face of increasing growth pressure, fiscal constraints and 

climate change impacts. Through strategic planning, program 

reviews and consultation with partners and stakeholders, the 

RVCA is focused on modernizing our programs to ensure they 

are effective and cost-efficient at meeting the current and future 

needs of our watershed.  

Corporate Services includes: 

• Management, Finance & Human Resources

• Communications and Outreach 

• GIS and Information Management

• Rideau Valley Conservation Foundation

Special for 2020 
• Engage with the Province regarding changes to legislation and support the implementation of recommendations 

from the Special Flood Advisor

• Create an asset management plan

• Implement an information management strategy

• Prepare a records retention policy and schedule

• Develop an open data policy for GIS data

• Develop additional offline field collection data apps for staff  

• Create client feedback surveys for additional programs

• Raise $125,000 over three years for the Steve Simmering Conservation Land Endowment Fund which enables us to 

continue accepting land donations 
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Corporate Services includes:

Management, Finance & Human Resources

• Provide overall management of the RVCA through work 

planning, budgeting, financial reporting, policy  

development, issues management, municipal and  

government relations, partnership development, employee 

management and payroll. 

• Serve the needs of the Board of Directors (training, meetings, 

agendas and minutes).

• Operate the RVCA efficiently, effectively and safely for staff 

and patrons while providing excellent customer service.

Communications and Outreach

• Increase awareness, knowledge, and understanding of  

RVCA services, programs and initiatives. 

• Build effective relationships with municipal, provincial and 

federal levels of government as well as other stakeholders  

and partners. 

• Maintain a positive, proactive relationship with watershed 

media to ensure a high level of accurate, comprehensive 

regional media coverage. 

• Provide communication support through communication 

planning, media relations and plain language services. 

• Distribute corporate information through annual reports, 

Around the Rideau newsletter, municipal information  

sheets, program brochures, displays, media releases,  

website, social media and public events/workshops.

GIS and Information Management

• Create and manage high-quality databases of watershed  

data and provide high-quality technical mapping to help  

staff make sound and informed watershed decisions.

• Support flood and hazard mapping studies, analysis  

and delineation as well as the development of  

catchment and subwatershed reports.

• Create tools to ensure the data is readily accessible  

to staff, consultants and the public.

Rideau Valley Conservation Foundation

• Support the RVCA in its conservation efforts by raising  

much-needed funds for conservation programs and services.

• Solicit donations from corporate and private donors, manage 

multiple special fundraising campaigns, apply for grants and 

administer compensation projects.

• Focus efforts on raising funds for land care, river care and 

conservation education.

Questions?
 

Sommer Casgrain-Robertson, General Manager

Rideau Valley Conservation Authority

3889 Rideau Valley Drive, P.O. Box 599, Manotick, ON K4M 1A5

613-692-3571, ext. 1214  |  sommer.casgrain-robertson@rvca.ca
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11.0  COVID-19 Pandemic Response 
  Report #: 7-200423
         
To:  RVCA Board of Directors  
From:  Sommer Casgrain-Robertson 

General Manager 
Date:   April 16, 2020 
 
 
Recommendation:  
 
THAT the Board of Directors of the Rideau Valley Conservation Authority receive 
this report and approve RVCA’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
 
Purpose 
To seek approval of RVCA’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
Background  
In recent months, a novel coronavirus has emerged that causes COVID-19 in humans. 
On March 11, the World Health Organization declared the global outbreak of COVID-19 
a pandemic, and on March 17, the Province of Ontario declared a State of Emergency.  
 
COVID-19 is spread mainly from person to person through close contact. There is 
currently no vaccine available, so public health officials and all levels of government are 
focused on containing the outbreak and preventing the spread of novel coronavirus. 
This response includes orders issued by the Province of Ontario under the Emergency 
Management and Civil Protection Act, as well as ongoing advice and recommendations 
from federal, provincial and local Medical Officers of Health.  
 
Many levels of government are also providing programs and support to organizations, 
businesses and individuals to help people deal with the impacts of COVID-19, including 
financial and employment related impacts. 
 
The RVCA has been monitoring the pandemic closely and implementing measures to 
address the outbreak as it evolves locally and provincially. This staff report provides a 
summary of actions taken to-date by the RVCA to protect the health and safety of staff 
and the public, as well as a summary of how the ongoing pandemic could impact 
RVCA’s operations, programs and budget. The RVCA has kept our clients, partners and 
the public informed of our COVID-19 response through emails, phone calls, social 
media posts, as well as a special section on our website: https://www.rvca.ca/about-
us//rvca-covid-19-response 
 

 For Information 
 For Direction 
X For Adoption 
 Attachment 
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Analysis 
The RVCA formed a Pandemic Planning Committee to work with staff to implement 
measures to address COVID-19 based on the advice and recommendations of 
government and public health officials. The goal is to: 

• Protect employee health and safety first and foremost; 
• Protect the health and safety of our clients and the public; 
• Maintain delivery of programs and services where possible; and 
• Protect the legal and financial interests of the RVCA. 

    
Staff Awareness 
The RVCA began by ensuring timely, frequent and accurate information was provided to 
staff regarding COVID-19. This included:  

• Information about the disease, how it spreads and how to protect yourself and 
others  

• Information about the measures and protocols being implemented by RVCA to 
protect the health and safety of staff and the public 

• Information about emergency orders from the province, temporary amendments 
to legislative processes and timelines and federal support programs 

• Information about mental wellbeing, as well as programs and resources available 
to support employees during this challenging time  

 
This information was provided to staff through email updates (with links to government 
resources), as well as posters which were placed in high visibility areas around the 
office (provided by local health agencies). Managers also reiterated this information 
during team meetings and one-on-one conversations, and at all times, staff were 
reminded and encouraged to raise questions, concerns and suggestions regarding 
COVID-19 so that the RVCA could address them. 
 
Workplace Health and Safety 
The measures that the RVCA implemented to protect the health, safety and wellbeing of 
staff include: 

• Closing all workplaces to the public (no public access to buildings or facilities) 
• Cancelling all rentals, courses, education programs, volunteer events and any 

other function or circumstance involving in-person interaction with the public  
• Requiring no contact site visits (residents are asked to stay in their home and 

communicate with staff via email or telephone before, during or after a site visit) 
• Requiring all staff to work from home except those who cannot perform their 

duties remotely and who perform a function that is in keeping with the essential 
businesses order (Ontario Regulation 82/20) 

• Restricting the maximum number of staff allowed at any one workplace at a time 
• Enhancing disinfection protocols at all workplaces 
• Limiting one staff per vehicle (or reimbursing for the use of personal vehicles) 
• Assigning equipment and vehicles to specific staff to avoid sharing 
• Implementing disinfection protocols if equipment or vehicles must be shared 
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• Restricting interaction with contractors and in some cases, requiring them to 
have their own COVID-19 procedures 

• Requiring the use of personal protective equipment  
• Developing Standard Operating Procedures for particular programs and 

workplaces  
 
Additionally, staff are required to follow all public health recommendations including: 

• Maintaining a distance of 2 metres or 6 feet from anyone they do not live with 
• Staying home if feeling sick 
• Self isolating if exhibiting symptoms of COVID-19, having been exposed to 

COVID-19 or after returning from being out of the country  
• Washing hands frequently and for 20 seconds 
• Not touching their face and sneezing into their sleeve 

 
Conservation Areas 
The Province issued an emergency order (Ontario Regulation 104/20) requiring all 
outdoor gathering places and amenities be closed including washrooms, buildings, 
beaches, picnic areas, shelters, picnic tables, benches and lookouts. The province 
specified that conservation areas and trails could remain open for walk through access. 

• RVCA posted signs at all conservation areas (figure 1) stating that gathering 
places and amenities are closed. The sign also reiterates the importance of 
staying home and maintaining physical distancing.  

• Locks have been placed on all buildings including washrooms; picnic tables have 
been stacked or removed; caution tape has been placed around larger structures 
like picnic shelters; and boards have been screwed across observation platforms.  

• One directional walking has been implemented on trails at Baxter and Foley 
Mountain to facilitate physical distancing (directional signage has been posted) 

• Gates are also being closed at night at Baxter and Foley Mountain. 
• All boat launches have been closed  
• Chapman Mills Conservation Area has also been closed (figure 2) due to heavy 

use and the small size of the site. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         

       Figure 1              Figure 2 
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Business Continuity 
By implementing alternative operating procedures, the RVCA has been able to continue 
delivering most programs and services, albeit in a modified manner: 

• All plan review and regulatory services have continued  
• Staff have provided uninterrupted flood forecasting and warning services  
• Work continues on flood plain mapping, data analysis, report writing, policy 

development, information management, GIS, fundraising, communications and 
program reviews  

• IT has been extremely busy supporting staff who are now working remotely  
• Program development and reaching out to partners has ramped up for 

stewardship, monitoring and septic re-inspection to be ready for field season 
(even if the start is delayed) 

• Tree planting is proceeding as the province has deemed forestry an “essential 
business”  

• Monitoring of conservation areas continues including the installation of signage 
and other measures in response to the pandemic 

• With the cancellation of outdoor education programs, education staff have been 
developing new curriculum and posting resources and activities on social media 
to help parents engage children in meaningful outdoor experiences during these 
isolating times 

• Staff have also taken advantage of training opportunities during this time as well 
as devoting time to working on long-standing priorities on RVCA’s departmental 
workplans and strategic plan which will provide tremendous value to the RVCA. 

 
Looking ahead: 

• RVCA will continue to monitor the province’s response to COVID-19 and will 
work with other conservation authorities to modify programs and service delivery 
to comply with the advice of local health officials and provincial orders.  

• Conservation areas continue to be monitored and additional sites may be closed: 
o If that is the recommendation of the province, municipalities or local health 

officials, or 
o If visitors do not respect physical distancing rules, meet in groups at parks, 

access or vandalize closed amenities or facilities,  
 
Input From Other Sources 
Conservation Ontario arranged two teleconferences for conservation authority General 
Managers to discuss the COVID-19 pandemic, Ontario’s emergency orders and how 
conservation authorities are responding to the situation (March 26 and April 8, 2020). 
 
The Cataraqui Region Conservation Authority has also been hosting twice weekly 
teleconferences for General Managers of the 10 eastern conservation authorities to 
discuss the pandemic and how conservation authorities are responding locally.  
 
RVCA has also been working closely with South Nation Conservation and the 
Mississippi Valley Conservation Authority to discuss and coordinate our responses to 
the pandemic. 
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RVCA has also been consulting legal counsel (Bird Richard) for advice regarding the 
pandemic, Ontario’s emergency orders and employment implications.  
 
RVCA has also been in discussions with watershed municipalities, health units and 
other partners to discuss local public health recommendations, Ontario’s emergency 
orders and local responses. 
 
RVCA also submitted questions to Conservation Ontario seeking clarification from the 
Province about how Ontario Regulation 82/20 and 104/20 apply to conservation 
authority operations and programs. The RVCA has been informed that a written 
response is expected from the Ministry of Environment, Conservation and Parks. 
 
Financial Considerations 
The RVCA reviewed its 2020 budget to identify revenue streams that may be impacted 
by COVID-19. The most vulnerable are sources of self-generated revenue which 
amount to 30% of our budget or $3,167,654. In particular: 

• Planning Advisory and Regulatory Services - $1,183,336 or 11%  
• Conservation Land Management Services - $337,000 or 3%   

 
Planning Advisory and Regulatory Services had a strong first quarter in 2020 with 
revenues on budget from January through March. Moving forward, there could be a 
temporary decline in permit applications due to provincial restrictions on non-essential 
construction, and planning files may temporarily decline as Committees of Adjustment 
suspend the circulation of files to commenting bodies. However, we anticipate higher 
than normal volume once COVID-19 restrictions are lifted so at this time we do not 
forecast a program deficit at year-end. 
 
Conservation Land Management Services has been affected by the closure of our 
education programs and building facilities, and restrictions on the use of our 
Conservation Areas. The result has been no revenue from rentals or programs and a 
decline in revenue from conservation area passes. With no rentals or programming 
taking place at Baxter or Foley Mountain, the RVCA had to issue temporary lay-off 
notices to our casual outdoor education interpreters due to insufficient work. While we 
could see a potential loss of $20,000 per month in this department while COVID-19 
restrictions are in place, this loss will be partially offset by a reduction in payroll 
expenses.  
 
Depending on the nature and duration of COVID-19 restrictions, the financial impact on 
the RVCA could change. Staff will continue to monitor the situation and report changes 
to the Board of Directors. In the meantime, RVCA is undertaking additional steps to help 
mitigate financial losses due to COVID-19 including: 

• Applying the 10% Temporary Wage Subsidy for Employers – $25,000 savings 
• Reviewing the Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy program – 75% wage subsidy  
• Reviewing changes to the Canada Summer Jobs Program – 100% wage subsidy 
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Legal Considerations 
Under the Occupational Health and Safety Act, employers have a range of legal duties 
to protect the health and safety of employees. Employees also have the right to refuse 
unsafe work and the right to be informed about actual and potential dangers in the 
workplace. 
 
Under the Emergency Management and Civil Protection Act, the Province of Ontario 
declared a State of Emergency due to COVID-19 and has issued orders including: 

• Ontario Regulation 51/20 – Closure of Establishments; 
• Ontario Regulation 52/20 – Organized Public Events, Certain Gatherings; 
• Ontario Regulation 82/20 – Closure of Places of Non-Essential Businesses; and 
• Ontario Regulation 104/20 – Closure of Outdoor Recreational Amenities. 

 
The Employment Standards Act also provides minimum standards for most employees 
working in Ontario, setting out the rights and responsibilities of employees and 
employers including new COVID-19 job-protected unpaid leaves. 
 
In light of these legal considerations, the RVCA has been working, and will continue to 
work, with legal counsel and other conservation authorities to develop Standard 
Operating Procedures, protocols and practices to protect the health and safety of staff, 
follow Ontario’s emergency orders and comply with the Employment Standards Act. 
 
Adherence to RVCA Policy 
In 2009, the RVCA prepared a Pandemic Policy which included a Pandemic Plan and 
Payroll Continuity Plan. This policy and associated plans were a good starting point but 
did not anticipate current government measures such as workplace closures and 
physical distancing orders. This policy will be updated to reflect the measures that have 
been implemented by the RVCA in response to COVID-19. 
 
Link to Strategic Plan  
N/A 
 
Attachments  
N/A 
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